WEST anxtezEr

KOWLOO}

2023/ ;4 Annual ,Répgrt A flﬁﬁ)%‘ | Business Review ¥7%&
% 7 // s e S

F—

/' z . // it
/ = < 4 o '/h S

CULTURAL DISTRICT

7

v ’AUTHORITY‘ 4
7 7
- L — =
Z 2% ]







Table of Contents
H &%

002

004

006

008

010

011

016

About the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority

FRAAXIEEERER

Chairman’s Statement

EE

Chief Executive Officer’s
Statement

THABHRS

The Board
EFRH

Senior Management
BHREEAER

At a Glance
FEME

The Year in Review

FEMOHE

102

113

117

118

122

130

Scan this QR code to download the full version of
the Annual Report from the WestK website.
I 4B B EAAXEEHiE
THERAFERENTERE -

Creating Values for
Our Society

BIEEE BEmMug

Financial Review

fit %5 O] B

Financial Highlights (Consolidated)
BHEHE (KE)

Awards and Recognitions
RIFMARET
Acknowledgements

0 o4t

Photo Credits
B kR &R


https://wk.org.hk/annual-report?r=qr

About the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
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The West Kowloon Cultural District (“WestK"” or the “District”) is a strategic
investment by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR")
Government to meet the long-term infrastructure and development needs
of Hong Kong’s arts and culture. As one of the largest cultural projects
in the world, our goal is to create a vibrant cultural quarter where the
local, national and international arts scenes can interact, develop, and

collaborate.

To realise this vision, the HKSAR Government established the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA” or the “Authority”) on
11 July 2008. The Legislative Council also approved an upfront endowment
of HK$21.6 billion for developing and operating WestK.

Spanning 40 hectares of reclaimed land, WestK integrates arts and
culture, education, open spaces, Hotel, Office and Residential (“HOR")
Developments, and Retail, Dining and Entertainment (“RDE") facilities.
Upon completion, it will offer about 23 hectares of public open space, a
two-kilometre harbourfront promenade, and a variety of arts and cultural
facilities hosting worldclass exhibitions, performances and events.

Core arts and cultural facilities in WestK that are currently open to the
public include the Xiqu Centre, Freespace, the Art Park, M+ and the Hong
Kong Palace Museum (“HKPM"”). The Lyric Theatre Complex is under
construction and scheduled for completion in 2025/26.

WestK and WestK logos are trademarks of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.
©2024 West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. All Rights Reserved.
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23 hectares of Public Open Space
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Chairman’s Statement
3 %

“Emerging stronger post-pandemic, WestK’s global

collaborations, exemplified by the successful Hong Kong

International Cultural Summit, have set the stage for a new

era of cultural excellence and international recognition.”

[ B4R A > P SCA U I 8 A e > I R R BR 5 10 - 3Bl B 2R 0 D
A 9 I B AW ey e i 38 > % SCAL B0 8 R 4B PHBE BT 2 IB BB TR 65 - |

A Year of Rejuvenation and Growth

The financial year 2023/24 marked a significant turning point for the West Kowloon Cultural
District (“WestK" or the “District”) as we emerged from the challenges of the pandemic with
renewed vigour and determination. Our unwavering commitment to establishing WestK as a
premier global arts destination has been the driving force behind our strategic initiatives and
operational endeavours.

Expanding Global Reach

The past year has been a testament to the resilience and adaptability of our organisation. We
celebrated numerous milestones and achievements that underscore our progress in realising
our vision. In the first full reporting year post-pandemic, the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority (“WKCDA") capitalised on the resumption of global travel to position WestK as a
leading cultural destination.

The inaugural Hong Kong International Cultural Summit (“HKICS” or “the Summit”) hosted
by WKCDA in March 2024 was a resounding success, attracting over 2,000 arts and cultural
visionaries worldwide. The summit featured some 40 eminent speakers and witnessed the
signing of memorandums of understanding (“MOUs") with over 20 top museums and cultural
institutions from around the world. Through the summit, WestK has helped foster international
collaboration and demonstrated Hong Kong's role as a new but important player in the global
cultural arena, perfectly aligning with our dual strategies of “bringing in” and “going global”.
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We were also proud to see M+’s blockbuster exhibition Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now, captivated
around 586,000 visitors when it was on tour at Spain’s Guggenheim Museum Bilbao, following
its successful conclusion at M+ in Hong Kong, breaking the visitor record of the Guggenheim
museum during the summer season. This international success exemplifies our efforts to

showcase Hong Kong's cultural vibrancy on the global stage.

More Milestones and Achievements

Our cultural institutions have continued to excel, captivating audiences with their innovative
and thought-provoking offerings. The Special Exhibition at the Hong Kong Palace Museum
("HKPM") Gazing at Sanxingdui: New Archaeological Discoveries in Sichuan broke records
of HKPM's Special Exhibition attendance, attracting close to 230,000 visitors in 3.5 months
and reinforcing HKPM’s position as a leading cultural institution in Hong Kong and beyond.
Similarly, The Impossible Trial, WestK's first commissioned original Cantonese musical, returned
to the Xiqu Centre in November 2023, achieving full-house attendance for 21 shows, setting
the stage for its Mainland China debut and another rerun in 2025. The inaugural WestK
FunFest showcased our commitment to engaging diverse audiences and enriching the cultural

landscape of Hong Kong.

Our achievements and the recognition we garnered from cultural institutions and the public,
both domestically and internationally, would not have been possible without the unwavering
support from the Central Government, the HKSAR Government, and our dedicated sponsors.
Their acknowledgment of the values that the WestK creates for Hong Kong has been
instrumental in driving our mission to develop Hong Kong into an East-meets-West centre
for international cultural exchange. We also extend our heartfelt gratitude to the members
of the Board of WKCDA, the Boards of WKCDA's subsidiaries, the Consultation Panel, and the

committees under the Board of WKCDA, for their invaluable advice and guidance.

Remain True to Our Original Aspiration

Looking ahead, we are excited about the opportunities that lie before us. The relaxation
of the "Enhanced Financial Arrangement” for WestK approved by the HKSAR Government
in July 2024, which allows the sale of residential units in the West Kowloon Cultural District
(being part of its approved development plan), creates favourable conditions for financing,
diversifying our development models, and expanding income sources. This strategic
arrangement will undoubtedly boost our confidence and capability to foster long-term

financial sustainability of WestK.

As we continue our journey, | am confident that with the collective efforts of our dedicated
team and the solid support of our stakeholders, we will overcome any challenges, continue to
achieve excellence, solidify WestK'’s position as a world-class cultural and arts hub, and help

Hong Kong develop into an East-meets-West centre for international cultural exchange.

The Honourable Henry Tang Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority

Hong Kong, 4 September 2024
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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“In 2023/24, WKCDA'’s exceptional financial resilience,
bolstered by strategic partnerships, resulted in a 42%

revenue increase, enabling us to enhance our cultural

offerings and solidify our status as a leading global cultural

destination.”
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Embracing a Year of Opportunities

The financial year 2023/24 has been a challenging yet rewarding year for WKCDA, marked by
the staging of a wide array of highly acclaimed programmes and exhibitions as well as strong
revenue growth despite adverse market conditions. Our strategic initiatives and operational
resilience have enabled us to navigate through these challenges successfully, positioning WestK
as a leading global cultural destination and a beacon of arts excellence.

Robust Operational Performance

Within a short span of one year after the lifting of anti-epidemic restrictions in early 2023,
WestK has made significant strides and achievements during the reporting year. Our arts and
cultural facilities attracted about 4.4 million visitors from around the globe. Since its opening
in November 2021, M+ has welcomed over 5.7 million visitors, while the HKPM, opened in
July 2022, has seen more than 2.2 million visitors. Our performing arts programmes reached
an audience of over 185,200, reflecting the broad appeal and high quality of our cultural
offerings.

WestK also achieved a significant milestone in becoming a must-see cultural tourism
destination—over 60% of the visitors to our two museums are from overseas and the
Mainland. According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board’s Visitor Profile Report 2023, WestK
was, for the first time, on the top ten list of most-visited places in Hong Kong — the sixth
most-visited place for both overnight visitors and Mainland visitors, and the seventh among
visitors from long-haul markets. This accomplishment underscores our dedication to cultivating
cultural tourism through world-class facilities and top-notch programmes. According to an
impact study commissioned by WKCDA in early 2024 regarding the social and economic impact
of WestK in 2023, an estimated total of 12.6 million visitors have visited the District (including
4.4 million visitors to the arts and cultural facilities and those to the Art Park), demonstrating
that the District has become a popular destination for leisure and recreation in Hong Kong.

i 1 B 0B 2 4

2023/ 24 B FEHEBRRACRAMRBEREMBN—F - BEAY
BRIENTIHRE BAXCENRERT - RIGREFINGENESE > I
ERTAMNKBAER  RAKMOKRBUERER MEEELNHE, <
BAARNRERBE > ERMAADIKELNXEREME > URERSEX
EEMRROFE -

£ A 2 0 3 B

B2023E M RMEBREUEK BAERSEEEE—FARTTEREN
ERMAE  HANXEEMREWRSI TH4MM0BREHAZHNGHEE
FHe BQ1FENARBUEK M+BRFES70E B AREF > M20225478
FARENERAREXCEMETRT208ARET - 5> BANKREE
MEBEANRS| TEB185 2008 B R ERRMANMEMNEHBESE
ABTHAANNS T ECEHERITER-

BAATERERAESRONXCREM T EHSERESANEEA
ER —HMAMBABYEBBR RS ETRABIRAMNIKRE  BRES
BREERB0BF(HBRESNBRE) BAERESFHERET AR
PIRBEREZY AFEBRKRERAMKEREIFRMNEANM UK
REKERBHFRENBE LU ERROME SETHMA—BEUARR
NUEREXCEMKREMAERIXCREZRNEZH - REBLERE
BR2024GEFMNEXEITH—ERENMR EFRN1, 2608 ARE
FEAAXCE(EEINFERNEMIEREAIAM0BARRIFEMRQE
WFHE)  BHEANEHATETRAMBENRMEE-



Financial Resilience and Growth

As a cultural district operating on a self-financing model without recurrent government
subvention, WestK has been facing a highly challenging operating environment given the
three-year pandemic and the slower than expected economic recovery in the past year.
However, we are pleased to report that WKCDA has demonstrated strong resilience in its
operations in this fiscal year, with a robust revenue growth of 42% year-on-year, rising from
HK$746 million to HK$1,061 million. Our business-to-business (“B2B") revenue increased by
35% year-on-year, reaching HK$518 million from HK$385 million, with notable growth across
all segments, including fundraising, venue hire, and commercial leasing. Furthermore, business-
to-customer (“B2C") revenue saw a remarkable 47% year-on-year increase, climbing from
HK$168 million to HK$246 million, primarily driven by admission income. Together with other
efforts, the Authority managed to narrow its underlying operating deficit by 20% year-on-year,
decreasing from HK$718 to HK$578 million.

Multi-pronged Approach to Enhance Future Sustainability

Significant efforts in development have been made by WKCDA in driving sponsorship and
patronship. These efforts have been crucial to securing the support of numerous sponsors who
have recognised and endorsed our achievements throughout the reporting year. A notable
milestone is the launch of the Authority’s three-year partnership with Cathay as our exclusive
Travel Partner. This collaboration enables us to present successful exhibitions and performances
overseas and bring exciting exhibitions, programmes, artists, and performing groups to WestK.

The recent relaxation of the “Enhanced Financial Arrangement” for WestK approved with
conditions by the HKSAR Government, which permits the sale of residential developments in
Zone 2 of the District which being part of WestK'’s initial development plan, is a significant
milestone towards attaining financial sustainability for WestK in the long run. This strategic
move enables WKCDA to secure necessary funding resources to support its operations and
capital expenditures in the coming decade by unlocking the development potential of its land
without imposing additional financial burden on the HKSAR Government. More importantly,
it gives us the needed time and space to formulate and implement a comprehensive package
of commercialisation and revenue generation initiatives, paving the way for WestK to achieve
long-term financial sustainability.

Moreover, WKCDA will fully leverage its strengths and opportunities to support the
development of Hong Kong’s cultural and creative industries, as well as establish Hong Kong
as a vibrant cultural tourism landmark. We believe with concerted efforts, WestK will be able
to realise the vision of consolidating Hong Kong's strategic position as a centre for East-meets-
West international cultural and artistic exchange.

Together We Scale New Heights

I would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the members of the Board of WKCDA for their
invaluable guidance and advice, and to the HKSAR Government for its steadfast support. | also
extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our stakeholders, partners, and staff for their unwavering
trust, support and dedication. Together, we have made monumental strides on our journey
towards cultural excellence. | am profoundly confident that we will triumph over future
challenges and scale new heights in the decade ahead.

Betty Fung Ching Suk-yee, GBS
Chief Executive Officer of the West Kowloon Cultural District

Hong Kong, 4 September 2024
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The Board
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Chairman Vice Chairman
EE ElES
The Honourable The Honourable
Henry TANG Ying-yen, Bernard Charnwut CHAN,
GBM, GBS, JP GBM, GBS, JP
BEERE, REBRKE,
KREFEE, GBS, JP

REFENE, GBS, JP

Members B &

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping,

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, Mr Glenn FOK The Honourable Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
GBS, JP SBS, JP ERBRE Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP BHmiE
#EEFEL, GBS, JP SBIBHS &£, SBS, JP EREILE, P
Ms Yolanda Mr Paulo PONG Kin-yee, Ms Dee POON Chu-ying Ms Winnie TAM Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
NG Yuen-ting, MH BBS, JP EBBEEY T Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP BEAait
REEZ L, MH BEZRa ST &£, BBS, JP

EBaAZ LT, SBS, SC, JP

Current membership of the WKCDABoard BAXILEEERESEREERE



Ms Tennessy HUI Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP Mr LIU Che-ning
Mei-sheung, MH, JP BB, SBS, SC, P ERHLL, P BEE R
SFEER L, MH, JP

Members (Public Officers) K8 (2B AE) Ex-officio Member & AR &
The Honourable The Honourable The Honourable Mrs Betty FUNG
Kevin YEUNG Yun-hung, GBS, JP Bernadette LINN Hon-ho, JP Christopher HUI Ching-yu, GBS, JP CHING Suk-yee, GBS
MM %, GBS, JP HERLL, P SFIEF L&, GBS, P BRERER L, GBS

The biographies of the current Board members can be found in the “Governance Report and Financial Statements” section of the Annual Report.
The full version of the Annual Report can be downloaded from the WestK website by scanning the QR code on the content page of this book.
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Senior Management
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mARE B A
Chief Executive Officer

THER

Mrs Betty FUNG
CHING Suk-yee, GBS
BIEHER L, GBS

Chief Corporate

Museum Director, M+

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
(District Development)
BlfTHAR (BEHER)

Ms Wendy GAN Kim See
et

Museum Director,

Executive Director,

Development Officer M+ BYIEER Hong Kong Palace Museum Performing Arts

HERBEREE EEMEXCHEYEER REBWITHAEE
Ms Joyce HO Ms Suhanya RAFFEL Dr Louis NG Chi-wa Mr Paul TAM
fAIEM =z £ Egit REERL EIRRKE

Chief Financial Officer
HEMBEE

General Counsel

IR

Chief Projects Officer
HREIEAEE

Ms Carmen LEE
FRXXL

Ms Amy Maria TAM
EEEYL

Mr Sunny CHAN Wing Chung
BR 3K B ST &£

The biographies of the current Senior Management can be found in the “Governance Report and Financial Statements” section of the Annual Report.
The full version of the Annual Report can be downloaded from the WestK website by scanning the QR code on the content page of this book.
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Visitations to WestK's arts and
cultural facilities

BAANIEEX{CEMRBHEHFETAR
Around £

4,400,000

Art Park visitors not included (estimated in the millions)
FEFEMABEGE (BtEHEEAR)

During the Hong Kong International
Cultural Summit (March 2024)
ERXCEIEwIEHAM (202453R8)

Delegates to WestK
HEALRR

2,000+

Online viewers

WMLEBEE

420,000+

MOUs signed
FZIREEEE

21



Visitations to M+

M+sA & AR

ab, 2,740,000+

Total for the reporting year

BREFENBE

Visitations to HKPM
EEAMEXIEBMEFEAR

<> 1,290,000+

Total for the reporting year

BEFENBE

Performing Arts programme
audience reach

REZMWMHBBERAR

Live programmes and online programmes included
BERBNEL®HE

185,200+

Total for the reporting year

BEFENMBE

Participants of WestK Performing Arts
learning programmes

AAREZMEKRREFHSERAR

116,700+

Total for the reporting year

REFENBE

Participants of learning programmes
by museums in WestK

MEABMESBEEFHSHEAR

Activities for academia, schools, family, community and young people,
and interpretation, dig\ta\ and research programmes included
BERRR 2R RE-HE - FEAETH > UKRZRE - 8ExR
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451,090,600+

Total for the reporting year
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Share of tourists
among visitors to WestK's museums

hRREEANEYE
ABHEPRELE

Estimate based on surveys conducted in March, as of
the reporting year-end
MBEFEEARMPIAMENBELERIEGE

M+

b 64%

HKPM
EARAMEXCEYE

Ay 68%



Occupancy of the Commercial
Leasing Portfolio

[ES =B phebii B S

926%

As at the end of the reporting year
BERTFETEA

External hirer events across WestK

It AEEHEHE

WestK's performing arts venues and museums’ spaces and public
open spaces for hire included
BETAHEBNREBWN G - BYEZH > URFINGEHI

K8y 450+

Total for the reporting year
REFENEST

Income from fundraising
ERUEA

A 722%

Income from commercial leasing

BEHEEERA

@, 121%

Cost recovery rate

R 2 Yy [o] 28

L&Y%

Interest income not included
TEEFEFNEWA

Followers of WestK's social media pages

BAhASHXERFRENSE

T G65%
735,950+

As at the end of the reporting year
BERTFEETEA
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In our first full reporting year following the return to normal global
travel post-pandemic, the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
("WKCDA" or the “Authority”) seized the opportunity to propel the
West Kowloon Cultural District (“WestK” or the "District”) to the
forefront as a premier global arts destination and significantly elevate
Hong Kong's stature on the international cultural stage.

Two key strategies underpinned our efforts: “bringing in” and “going
global”. With “bringing in” we hosted globally significant events and
exhibitions, including the inaugural Hong Kong International Cultural
Summit (“HKICS” or the “Summit”), highlighting our robust arts scene
and helping establish WestK as well as Hong Kong as a prominent

player in the global cultural arena. We fostered collaborations with
over 20 leading arts and cultural institutions worldwide, taking global
arts and cultural discourse to the next level, sparking a new era of
creativity and cultural connectivity for Hong Kong.

Meanwhile, through *“going global”, we extended our -cultural
influence by touring our acclaimed exhibitions and performing
arts programmes to Mainland China and international locations.
The expansion bolsters our global presence and demonstrates our
commitment to fostering international cultural exchange.

2023/ U ERBFREREREEFNEEARBRSEE  BAXEE
EER(TEERI) EFARIBIEERE RERAAXXEE (TH
Jul) BRA A2 IRIE B B2 BT » TR A S B EERXEhR
B £ B3 L o

BARAHITMARE TSI ERIMIEHEI - ESIERILE
BA|MTZEERBENBRENRE af8ESRERXESE
wmiB(THERE)  BEETEEBEINBMES > BRABAM
REBEBEBRXXC2M MM - HAREKBEB - +HTEREXH
BEF  RERENZMXEXAFERNERD > #HEBEMXE
BE > RERISMZRNMER -

HEEE > HMABBIEHE)  BREZFINRERREZNEHAR
FEREAMKRBHREMSEREED  BHEERAANZKEE
71> FEEHMRERRXEZRRD o
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Over the course of the three days, the Summit offered a rich array of cultural
and networking events, including the Welcome Dinner, the Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU") Signing Ceremony, the Opening cum the Plenary Session, as
well as four topical Panel Discussions. The Summit drew nearly 40 eminent speakers
and MOU signing partners from the world’s top museums and arts and cultural
institutions. Over 2,000 delegates hailing from various countries, including museum
directors and curators, artists and cultural practitioners, academics and government
policymakers, actively engaged in diverse activities and discussion forums.

Through its hosting of the Summit, WKCDA demonstrated how Hong Kong is an
ideal East-meets-West location for cultural dialogue and exchange. We highlighted
the city’s diverse arts scene, rooted in cultural diversity and its unique position as an

international meeting-place between different cultures.

—EZHNEERE  §FRT-RIEETNXCRXREY  SERIBRE - SRR
EEERD  RAEEEXAR > UKASEENR SEREADEFNION+UREERBEREYEREXEBNEEREAREUREEENENSE
BHELHE  BA_TARBHAZMNAR > SEEVEERRERA - EWMREXEIFE - BERBFAAKRAS  —FA2AZSRIHNARIRMH -

EERBBEME
=

EHE AtRARRTERFAREPIXCENIAHEEEFENREHRERZ - ERNEBHIXEIEYE  URFAHEZERNE
BXRER BERX i)
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ERERETEERTSESENNEEMERS -



The Summit commenced with the inspiring Opening cum Plenary Session at the Xiqu Centre, graced by distinguished guests.
The speakers emphasised the Summit’s significance for the future of global cultural cooperation, along with the important role
Hong Kong has to play.

REEEXIRETEBAPFORT AR ERERRAFE ZAIRRERRHE BEMARASEREBRKRERXECEENE
E > URERBEFRENEEAG -

“The West Kowloon Cultural District, the vast piece of harbourside land we are now
standing on, is essential to realising Hong Kong as an East-meets-West centre for
international cultural exchange—to our rise as an arts and cultural hub connecting the

world.”

TBEAXEE  hERMNRESENERSENT > CEFTBERADIXCEHRR
RLERE > NEREFEENAC —HHRMBARAZEHRFNEMRXEELE © 1 30

The Honourable John KC Lee,
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

FEERUTHETHREFRBRE, KEAMEBE, SBS, PDSM, PMSM

“This Summit injects new energy into the development of Hong Kong's cultural
industries, paving the way for the integrated development of Hong Kong's culture
and tourism at a wider, deeper, and higher level.” (ransiation)

TERBEORMW > FEATEXCEZERRIATHNG N > hiRESHFTEXCMIK
BEEEEE EXER - EEKFLHMEER -

Dr Wang Xudong, Director of the Palace Museum, who delivered a congratulatory
message on behalf of Sun Yeli, Minister of Culture and Tourism, the People’s Republic of China

HEBYRERREBREIAREBRXENEENBRAZLTERER

“Cultural exchanges between France and Hong Kong are dense, and we want to
continue strengthening them, with the West Kowloon Cultural District as a major

partner. " (translation)

TEZEAEBEZMNXERRIEEEE  EAFEUAANCELTIESERHF » HE
TNB& 3T © 1 ceEx)

Mr Bertrand Lortholary, Ambassador of France to China
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® Beijing ItE
China Theatre Association

PEEBERRGE

® Shanghai EiE
The Shanghai Center of

Global Partnership Network — Institutions Signing
Memoranda of Understanding with the

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
ZRGMEY M — HG UL RS B R
ERER(-SCE iR

® Chongqing EE

Chongqing Chuanju Theatre

-l

® Shanghai ki
Shanghai Museum

Los Angeles

RIS

® Shijiazhuang BRIE
Shijiazhuang Arts Research

Chinese Operas ListEeE Bureau

Lisgigh BTG ARIEH AT

[ )
France

EE

® Paris B% ® Paris B% ® Poris BF ® Versailles RLEFE

Centre Pompidou Musée national Picasso— Guimet-National National Museum of the

[FEEE B R EMTFIS G Paris Museum of Asian Arts Palaces of Versailles and Trianon

B 22 E 3 E IR EMTEE

EXRE N EMEYIEE REAEENREDREREYE

m;
Japan

B#

® Tokyo R

The National Art Center, Tokyo
ERvESTE S

® Tokyo R
Tokyo National Museum

RREIIEYIEE

Qatar Spain

FIEH Lictoigs s

® Doha ZM§ ® Madrid HER

Qatar Museums Museo Nacional Del Prado

RERBYEERR BRI ZERIGYIE
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Thailand United Arab Emirates United Kingdom
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® Naokhon Pathom f#4EHT ® Sharjah 7bi0 ® |ondon &3 ® |ondon &3

Film Archive Sharjah Art Foundation Tate Victoria and Albert Museum
(Public Organisation) DNEmEEE RIGEME S F D S T S YIEE
REIBRERE

United States Singapore Korea

=E Frhnsg FEE

® |os Angeles &5 ® Singapore FfNiE ® Seoul B

Getty Conservation Institute Asian Film Archive Leeum Museum of Art, Samsung Foundation of Culture
BHREMIEFR SNERERE ZEXEEEE leeum EFiTEE




A Platform for New Partnerships

By AR HEREN PG

The Summit provided an ideal platform for collaborations and cross-
cultural connections. WKCDA signed MOUs with 21 world-renowned arts
and cultural institutions from 11 countries, including France, Japan, Korea,
Qatar, Singapore, Spain, Thailand, the United Arab Emirates, United
Kingdom and United States, as well as cities in Mainland China such as
Shanghai, Chongqging and Shijiazhuang. The signatories represented the
world’s top museums, conservation and art research institutes, art centres,
film archives, theatres and theatre associations. These MOUs formalised
research, exhibition collaborations and joint projects for future cultural
exchanges, empowering WKCDA to work with major global institutions to
showcase Hong Kong as a global cultural hub.

SEREABEXLAENZIRREHEATS - EEREARABNEEIXTME
H2IMERMB X EEMEBRT TEFERE  EFEEEE - B - 8
B~ RIEW@ MK BEMRT - RE - MHABSERE - #E - XE - &
tB -EE - AREFAMET - BIISFERNENEFEEZREREYE -
XMEEHE - PO - EXRENE - BARKSEARES - EEREER
ERMITARETXERANER  HEEEMRE - REAERHEMEEE
B rE—SZEEBFALRABEXCEMTRPOHMA -



“The Summit marks not only an important milestone
for the West Kowloon Cultural District to showcase its
strengths to the world, but also the commencement of
collaborative endeavours that promise to reverberate
across the cultural realms at the global level.”

[ Uk Ve € AS AL v thE SRR AR P L SCAR B i B 0 » SERE G 35 2 BRSCIL I A
A AT -

The Honourable Henry Tang Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
Chairman of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority

BRERE, KEFMEBE, GBS, JP
AAXIEEEEREERERE
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Engaging Cultural Dialogues
b & SCAk 2 3
=

g

HKICS also delved into critical arts and culture issues of our g

day. Moderated by Betty Fung, Chief Executive Officer of &

WKCDA, the Summit’s Plenary Session took a deep dive into B

various cultural district models and best practices, exploring EEIE

their role in fostering city development by stimulating
innovation and enriching the creative economy. Other
topics included the effect of innovative technology on
museum interpretation practices, and ways of expanding
international cultural collaborations in the modern era. Rich
in opportunities for collaboration and cross-fertilisation,
these discussion sessions and informal chats sowed the seeds
for future innovation in the sector.

In addition to the 2,000 local and international delegates who attended physically, the Summit’s live-streamed sessions also drew over
420,000 views. These are significant figures in the field of arts and culture, indicating just how much global attention was focused on Hong

Kong over the three days of the Summit, and reinforcing WKCDA'’s emerging leadership role in the global arts and culture landscape.

EERAERARHTESXCEMNEERE EERTHAHEENEERTEXRRE > BRAXCEMENRRREERAMEHETR
Mo MHRNXCEMEMAREHTNKENHETBUETREMN - H3RZECFEA AR EBEYERRNOZE - EARRERXXER RN
HNERE - SERENEXEURAMIFELRIRSA - RETEENSHEHRE - HBTEAHN -

BRTYRESEN_TARES MM R MNAR > EFERNEARGBERLER  RBE—E-HEZTEEMNSEREBEZIKERE > HES
A& BEREETEERAESRXCEMFANREMI -
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Speakers of Hong Kong International Cultural Summit
7 v B B SO AL R G T R A

Plenary Session — Cultural Districts’
Contributions to Social and Economic
Transformation of Cities

Bt - XIEEHEHHER
RERUBNER

Chair of East Bank Board, Deputy Director and
Chief Operating Officer of Victoria and Albert
Museum, London, United Kingdom
HE M East BankESRFERMELH &
BURAAREYERERREERSE

Director, Museum of Islamic Art, Doha, Qatar
RERLRFHEEMEYERE

Director and CEO, Melbourne Arts Precinct
Corporation, Australia
BN R A B & AR B R 1T AR

International Artistic Director, Benesse Art Site
Naoshima, Japan

BABESELEZMEtEREM B ES

Chief Executive Officer, West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority, HKSAR
AAXICEEIEF1TEAAR

Panel Discussion (I) - Promise of Digital

HEW (—) @ BIBEREE

Media Artist and Director, Refik Anadol Studio,
United States/Turkey

EE THHEEBEMR K Refik Anadol
Studio %8 &5

Director and CEO, Fine Arts Museums of San
Francisco, United States

EXE=F M XM EYEERBTHRER

Project Head, Center for Cultural Innovations at
TAKANAWA GATEWAY CITY, East Japan Railway
Foundation for Cultural Innovations, Japan
HARHARE#EXCRIRME
TAKANAWA GATEWAY CITYZ A5 Bl 5 #7 0)
EHEXE

Head Curator, New Media and Asia Pacific,
Centre Pompidou, France

72 [ JBe Eb S B 2R 22 1l A ST AL R0 R O AR R
DAMEEERREA

New York-based cultural strategy consultant and
author, United States
ERMBNXCREEBRMES

Panel Discussion (Il) — Decentring Digital

& ()  BIRENFR

Co-Founder and Executive Chairman,
Animoca Brands, HKSAR

Z 7 Animoca BrandsH# & Bl 3 A F&
HITERE

Director Designate, MIT Museum, United
States and Founding Director, BIOTOPIA
Naturkundemuseum Bayern, Germany
FEMEETISRBYEREIER
=B BIOTOPIAE A fE SE B 48R B BB £E &=

Independent Curator and Former Director,
Banco de la Republica Art Museums,
Bogotd, Colombia

BUKEBA - SfabaE EMERITENM
BRI EE &

Architect, Founder of MAD Architects, China
EEE - MADEEEFEFRAIE A

Museum Director, M+, HKSAR
M+1B¥IEEEE R
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Speakers of Hong Kong International Cultural Summit (Continued)
T W B B SO AU R 0 o O R (M)

Panel Discussion (lll) — Rethinking Museum Panel Discussion (IV) — New Ways of

Interpretation in a Global Context Collaborating and Sharing in the Post-
HEHG (Z) : 2ERBETHIEWERRE Pandemic Era: International Perspectives
Y B & FEm (M)  2EERASEEAEEN
wAER  BERS
o
Director, National Museum of China L
=8 RIBYEREE & Director, The Palace Museum, China
H=EEYERE
o
Director, Museo Nacional Del Prado, Spain g
I & 2 ERIBYEE & Director, National Museum of the Palaces of
Versailles and Trianon, France
« FENBESNRECSREXRIBYEER
President, Guimet—National Museum of Asian
Arts, France L
AEE RE M EM ISR ER Executive Director, Tokyo National Museum,
" Japan
LEREELES A BASRRET EYEEE
[ 3
. [ 3
Museum Director, Hong Kong Palace Museum,
HKSAR Director, Smithsonian's National Museum of
FE T EYEEE Asian Art, United States
FELERE LT MNEMEYEER
Moderator | E# A
3

Museum Director, Hong Kong Museum of Art,
HKSAR
BEBBMEBER



Daylight Brilliance, Nighttime Glamour:
Hong Kong’s Artistry on Display
B R RS

HKICS was strategically timed to coincide with Hong Kong's 2024 Art Week, thus giving summit participants a flavour of the city’s
international art scene at its most vibrant. The 2024 Art Week featured major events such as Art Basel Hong Kong, Art Central and Tai Kwun
Contemporary Artists’ Night. These highly anticipated gatherings brought together international artists, musicians, and galleries to exhibit
their remarkable works.

The rich array of art-related activities available during the Summit emphasised to all participants just what a significant stop Hong Kong is
in the global art circuit, and helped promote the city as a must-visit destination for art-lovers and those professionally involved in arts and
culture.

EMSERENREASE LR ) EFA204FFRBEMEARAFE > 2024FNEBEMERFARECETENRESERE « Art Central A R K8
rafffRzR > EREREMNR SHEXVER > REBEEGNEMN (R RETARTABRAREBEMANFTLRS -

BEGEHEASNNERENEY AAGERTEACEZRENEAPNEER NI  AIRUANREEERFAENBEREMEEMNERZAL
WE Z M o

LEO

B[O i Y MSIASY Ul UedA 9yl

MR T XS B ALNOHLAY LD1YLSId TVHNLIND NOOTMOM LSIM






Mr Cheuk Wing-hing, GBS, JP, Deputy Chief Secretary for Administration, and visiting “LIV Golf 2024 Hong Kong“

BEAEIARAEKELE, GBS, JPEZMILIV Golf 2024F#Bi LLBENHERF2EEANEXCIEME °

Over the reporting year, WestK’s cultural facilities drew an impressive
4.4 million visitors from around the globe. M+ had welcomed more than
5.7 million visitors since opening in November 2021, while Hong Kong
Palace Museum (“HKPM"), which opened in July 2022, had seen more
than 2.2 million visitors, as of the end of March in 2024. These figures
are substantial and do not even include millions of visitations to the Art
Park throughout the year. They underline WestK’s growing popularity
and influence, with M+ ranked as the 15th most-visited museum in the
world and the second-most visited in Asia by The Art Newspaper two
years after its opening. HKPM has secured a place in the top ten Asian
museums—a remarkable achievement in just one and a half years since its
opening. Throughout the year, WestK'’s renowned uniqueness and status

as a world-class icon attracted over 190 visits from global leaders.

EREEE  ONANXEENXCEMEZMKRE T 2HRA4408 ARE
e M+H2021F1MBRABUNRK > HE2024F38 5 > EiEHS708 I
SE; MR2022F78EENEBREXCEWE » #E2024F38 K »
NERFBEB2Z20BEAZBAR LU FEXRAHTERABZEENRD
SR OELERGBEEETHANEBAENRIIANEED FHEBRERE >
{The Art Newspaper) i M+5I A2 IREZEDHNEMIBMES +H M > UK
THEPHBRE-_NIEYE , EEANEXCENERRE—FF > BES
DM+ AREBYMEZS  c REEBRUEMHERBXCHMZNMAU > BLER
Mok iE 1901E 2k B tH R Kt A BUAR E#h EI 55 o
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Exhibitions and Programmes “Going Global”
[ W2 s A8 4 B e R 55 B 6 H

Alongside WestK’s continued evolution as a thriving integrated arts and cultural hub, WKCDA's
“going global” strategy has made significant strides. By showcasing the best of Hong Kong's unique
arts and culture scene on the international stage, initiatives under this strategy have solidified the
city’s profile as a globally relevant and important centre of arts and culture, and fostered meaningful
cultural exchanges and collaborations with international partners and peers.

BEANTHRELBFRMAAGESEMREEE  EBRTEHEAI KBRTZHNEEZAR - EBE
EREa LREEEBRNEMXERN  TEHZI KRB THNHREBE-—PEETEBEEREM LR
BENEERFW  TREAEBMOBHEMEENXERRASHE-



Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now Breaks Records at Bilbao
[ A — U HAEES ] R 5 a WA

S€0

A proof of our strategy’s success is the exhibition
Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now, which made its
debut in Hong Kong at M+ before embarking
on an international journey. The blockbuster
exhibition, featuring around 200 of Kusama's
works, captivated visitors at Spain’s Guggenheim
Museum Bilbao from June to October 2023
and set a new visitor record for the museum
with approximately 586,000 visitors during the

summer season.

TEMBE:: —WNNEFEESIEHRMARERIIN
BEZ— EBENEAV-EESRHE BEEHRE
MKERE iR > BN 2023F6BE 108 HM%E
ARFEACGLREZMERN BRERHER
BEHN_BHER FERIZHBE > BELH
58.6B ARBEHE > BITRZEMNENETAL
Wik o

WE @R MOINSY Ul JedA 3yL

MR T XS B ALNOHLAY LD1YLSId TVHNLIND NOOTMOM LSIM






Forging Cultural Bonds Worldwide
AmEEE T EE

Embarking on a journey of exploration and collaboration, our leadership made
strategic business visits to various destinations, leaving an indelible mark on the
global arts and culture landscape.

In May 2023, Betty Fung, Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA, spoke at the
International Museum Day Symposium in Singapore on Business Sustainability
for Museums. During the event, she engaged in in-depth discussions with various
stakeholders, fostering collaborative relationships. Additionally, between June
and August 2023, Fung visited Paris, France, Hamberg, Germany and Manchester
in the United Kingdom, as well as several Mainland Chinese cities including
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, and Chengdu. During these trips, she met
with local government departments and arts and cultural institutions to explore
collaboration opportunities. She was elected as Executive Committee member of
the Association of Asia Pacific Performing Arts Centres (“AAPPAC") for the term
2023-25, and attended the Brisbane Conference in September 2023.

AABERSERE  EERNEEERMH RS » EITHBEUEDM > BUREAT
NEZREMCRENZEN -

AAXCEEERTHRAR B NER2023F A HFEEMMBLTH TEREYE
B g MEMENEERABTHERREREFERS > THEFRAKMERAR
W BIUSERME o LS > 2023 F6c A ECAMAM > RRIFEEER - FEE
EMEBSHEE > Uk Ed Rl BN - REBSSEAMET - FHBAHAR
XEEMEE > REAFHRE MU BELSTAREEMI OB E2023F 20255 E
PITEEEME > MHR2023F9IAHERENRTEMERITNERE -

In October 2023, Suhanya Raffel, Museum Director of M+, led a
delegation to London where she announced M+'s 2024 exhibition
line-up to top tier international arts journalists. She also hosted the
“M+ in London” stakeholder engagement event, bringing together
museum supporters and patrons from all over the world to foster
exchange. Raffel is also the President of the International Committee
for Museums and Collections of Modern Art (“CIMAM”) and chaired
the CIMAM board meetings in Barcelona, Spain and Buenos Aires,
Argentina in June and November 2023 respectively.

Dr Louis Ng, Museum Director of HKPM, embarked on a series of
visits to museums in the Mainland and overseas. He took the roles of
moderator and speaker at various international conferences, aiming
to foster worldwide collaborations and broaden the museum’s
cultural impact on a global scale.

Paul Tam, Executive Director, Performing Arts, WKCDA, attended
prestigious arts conferences, markets and festivals in the Mainland
and overseas. He led Roundtables on Hong Kong's performing arts
ecology at the Australian Performing Arts Market in Melbourne
(2023) and Adelaide (2024). During his visits, Tam introduced the
District's performing arts portfolio and explore collaborations,
heightening the international profile of the district.

These strategic visits have elevated WestK’s profile on the world
stage, reinforcing its status as a global cultural partner and arts hub.

M+ EMEEREXHEEANRNRE > N2023F 108 FHHN > WEKE
XAEHEBAMM+2024ENREE > LERF TM+TEMR KL ES >
EZEM+REHRZMPOZRHEMEDA > REXHK o b5 > FRER
HAZMEYERERZES (TAMAM)) EEREENERE > ©
2023 6ARNMBANEONFEERERFAREGAEHRHT MG
BETAVAMEEZERG:E °

ERRENtHYEERATEFLIABSHERXERTA > £E&E
FAMKRBHNZSHEEYE  TEZEERERLBEEIRRERS
B BUERSEXRSF EHBYETERETNZEN -

AAXCEEERREEMITHRAERRRERHFENAM KB F
THAREBMEER  EFBENEME - I NERNEEA (2023
F) MAERE (2024%F) BTHNRBEWERREE  IRHTEHEE
RESWECHEZER > TEEBENBAEANKREEMHHR > &K
REMFHE  RABANERMZE -

BEGHRRANTEHEINEERE  APRABAEERES LN
e ZEEEAZRXXCAEBSHNETREREANASR -
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Botticelli to Van Gogh:

Masterpieces from the National Gallery, London
1€ e B2 U1 A 30 AL o+ % I B 5K S i B B2

HKPM'’s Special Exhibition Botticelli to Van Gogh: Masterpieces from
the National Gallery, London captivated close to 240,000 visitors from
November 2023 to April 2024. The Special Exhibition featured an exquisite
collection of rare and precious artworks from the National Gallery in

London.

HKPM created a historic milestone as the first cultural institution in Hong
Kong to collaborate with the National Gallery, presenting a selection of
the Gallery’s treasures in Hong Kong for the first time ever. A total of 52
masterpieces made up the exhibition, dating from the fifteenth to early
twentieth centuries. Works by iconic artists, such as Botticelli, Raphael,
Titian, Caravaggio, Rembrandt, Goya, Turner, Constable, Monet, and Van
Gogh, all provided compelling viewing, encompassing the most significant
turning points in Western art.

EBWEXCEYER2023F1MBE2024F 48 iR B MNP RE NMERRY
MRS ZAEEREWERHE RUREBEEEREMEERPHOHHY
BE > RIE24BARBE -

RENEENEXCEMERABDEREMEKRSIN  EEREERTH
HEBRREMESELENLERE  EEYNEXCEYETESETEEHER
HEXENESHFNXEEE  IREE RERETIHEE_+HEN
BAREMEERA > TR2GEWMEENKHRGEE > SFRIEDAN - i1
W REFARE -MHEH - IR RH - BEHERQ - EXNRSE I
HEAFEMPSEEENEIRE -
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HKPM invites Hong Kong artists to reinterpret and
reinvent the time-honoured art of Chinese garden
with seven artworks that blend kinetic, multimedia,
and sound installations.
ERAREXILEMERE T EBEAMBMKEMET H
FR HEHE - SHBENBSRE  RERHARR
TREEABFNPEESREMREN -
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Madame Song: Pioneering Art
and Fashion in China
HKEAE ¢ B lg S 8 B N B
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This year, M+ devoted a monographic exhibition to Song Huai-Kuei, widely
recognised as Madame Song. She stood out as one of the most influential
Chinese women from the 1980s to the 2000s, excelling as an artist,

entrepreneur, fashionista, and cultural ambassador.

The museum'’s Special Exhibition Madame Song: Pioneering Art and Fashion

in China, launched in July 2023, brought together over 320 objects, from

garments and artworks to archival materials and large-scale tapestries. It
offered an in-depth look at Song'’s life and her achievements, highlighting
her instrumental role in shaping the landscape of art, fashion, and popular
culture in China, as well as transforming China into a cosmopolitan and
culturally diverse society today. Over 163,000 visitors flocked to the
exhibition during its nine-month display period.

M+EETEERTTURBEEATIENEE  REEERAEBAETRY
T B1980FE 2000 FKHBERAFZEHNNWPELRYE  FREMER  BRE
B RRBBMXXEAME mMER -

BRHREMTREE : BWAEARHBAS R2023F7ABREM+RY > SHE
TEBB320ER - BEREK - 2w  EREHUEXUBEHBEWHRES -
BERARISREENEFNEM > CEMBEBREDENEN - BFEMRT
XEFHRERRENAG > MRt EPERELARSXECSTEREHEN
BEPMBFENZEND SPNEANERESRM > R5IEiIB16.3B ARG -
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Sigg Prize 2023 Exhibition
[ 7 d %% 2023 ] Jé B

The Sigg Prize 2023 exhibition brought together works by six artists
shortlisted for the second edition of Sigg Prize, a biennial award
recognising important artistic practices in Greater China.

TERBEBIRERVF_EFREAUABBTEMRNRE FRiES
MERT—R > BARBAFERENERENRNEZENER -
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M+ Sigg Collection: Another Story
M+ 56 98 i+ 0 1

Following the inaugural exhibition on
key objects from the Sigg Collection, M+
Sigg Collection: Another Story, running
from September 2023 onwards, unveiled
a cache of gems from the extensive
collection, drawing 308,000 visitors by the
end of the reporting year.

BEESHFINEEM+EFREREES > M+
R2023F9AERITE _BEREREE —
TM+F RS © BE > REEMEENERE
BH—RIFREY BEREEEHEERR
BREBER3I30.8BARBE -
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First-ever WestK FunFest
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Family-focused Performances Connecting Communities
Tk 9 Ak I 0 5 K MK B H R



The FunFest was built around three key concepts: “Family”, “Participation”, and “Fun”.
Highlights included interactive children’s theatre ZOOOM that provided performances for
both the public and 27 schools, and Little Thai Forever, a drama inspired by life in Hong
Kong's Thai community. Two events made their Hong Kong premieres: Pram People (Hong
Kong Edition), in which prams formed the centre of an immersive experience for participants
with audio stories collected from local families, and 70-Minute Dance Parties, a celebration
of dance and community inside a shipping container under the open skies.

TEARFUNEME I U TRE) - T2E I MTBRK ZABSAa%&L0 > EXHHEEEAARM2
MERMEFRENRERSERN(NNE)  URZERREERMBEFRENERA (D
RETEE) FHEAMETINEERER  QREUBREAPL  FALHRERENES
WEABMEGRINZABRN(BBE—K) (FBR) ; UREFSEHEARRZEMTE
BBN(+DIRE) -
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Xiqu Centre 5th Anniversary Celebrations

5k ith b0 T R AF S B

The year 2024 marks the fifth anniversary of WestK'’s Xiqu Centre, Hong Kong's landmark
arts venue dedicated for Chinese traditional theatre. To commemorate the milestone, the
Xiqu Centre organised an anniversary series that kicked off in January with a performance
by the famed China National Peking Opera Company’s Youth Troupe. Collaborating with
three prominent local troupes from different generations — Sing Fai Cantonese Opera,
Ming Chee Sing Chinese Opera and Canto Op, spectacular classic theatrical treasures
and new original works were presented to celebrate five successful years. Over 20

performances reached an audience of more than 12,000.

0 FEEFEAANCEHMPLOHEELRE - FAEEH
BEEATESMNERBERESH > —RIZEHEE1AHE
BESMPLEE BHER— R EEEBEREIAEEXRSE
MERXRFEREFEESERE » LEWREFRR o b5 > ot
SAPERREFLVFENER > OEBEREER B2
BAERERABEE—2 > EHRZSEBEREEE  HERE
FRESHDOAAE - BiB205EHRSE 12,0008 8 R -
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First-ever Freespace Dance
EHORBLEIHET Bl %2023 ]

WestK continued to expand its growing reputation for excellence in the
performing arts with the inaugural Freespace Dance 2023, held in April and
May 2023. This month-long cutting-edge dance festival celebrated visionary
women choreographers from around the world.

EHE B H%2023) 7£2023F 48 RSB MM IIEM » E—FPBETHALER
RBHABMNELME ERNRRERNEET AP —MER > FEHASH
BERGRER  RERAGSTRE -

690

WE @R MOINSY Ul JedA 3yL

MR T XS B ALNOHLAY LD1YLSId TVHNLIND NOOTMOM LSIM



Featuring five stage performances and works-in-development, the festival offered fresh

perspectives on gender, power relations and other social issues, along with new insights
into creativity and imagination in dance and movement. Among other performances is
a newly commissioned work, Double Happiness: The Promise of Red, choreographed by
acclaimed Hong Kong dance artist Mui Cheuk-yin and performed by Chan Kin-man and

Mui. This work received three nominations for the 25th Hong Kong Dance Awards.

ZEHLETAESEERERHETERNFER  FEARUSNRABREL - #AOMBMN
Hth#t g3l —ARREENTEREGFZRNEBERAZRER BERETPEEENNE
LSRR MENER) HESEEEBEREBERGE  THREXABERFAEER
e fFRNEBFEFHEQAKE-HRES -




Hong Kong Dance Company and
Helen Lai: HerStory
HESEELAREE (L&)

In December 2023, WestK and Hong Kong Dance Company co-presented ZBEREZHEFRBBENEREEMFER(XE) > R2023F12BHBENAXIEE
the return of award-winning dance piece HerStory, choreographed by BEEHBZHEBESH > EFHRLES - FRAERZVERZKSRELIERS
Helen Lai. This moving work by the renowned Hong Kong choreographer  Rs2RIEEHE > EEIAD

gripped audiences with its expressive story of modern women searching to

establish their own identities.

120
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City Contemporary Dance Company:
“HOTPOT East Asia Dance Platform” Japan
WM ENRBEEE :THOTPOTR EHMIE T AI (HAR)

In November 2023, the “HOTPOT East Asia Dance Platform”—part of the
“City Contemporary Dance Festival”—celebrated regional artistic exchange
at Freespace. “"HOTPOT" Japan presented a double bill showcasing
Da Dad Dada by Saori Hala and ZOU made from fume by lkumi Kurosu. As
the festival partner, WestK hosted international delegates and facilitated
several programmes, promoting robust regional collaboration and cultural
dialogue.

2023F 1B THRTEREEMN I NEYHBE Z— THOTPOTR R EBF A
(BXBEYRBEETHET REFTAEZINEER ZEHMXN - THOTPOTER
DEBETEI(AERB)ERMEBKEE > 7 ERDHBH(Da Dad Dada)
MEEASH(ER) BANFAEEONTERE  BESTREHASHEY
EE > UEMTSEEY  RAREERNBEENSEMEHE -



073 The Year inReview 4 #) [ @ WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY Kl R X £ [ {u 3 12






075 The Year inReview 4 #) [ @ WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY Kl R X £ [ {u 3 12



Elevating Local Theatre Talent

HEARME G NF

WestK is committed to nurturing local talent and fostering strong
community bonds. Through a diverse range of initiatives and programmes,
we aim to inspire creativity, support emerging artists, and engage with the
wider community.

Our new series WestK Creators provides local artists with a dynamic
platform to showcase exciting original work across dance, theatre, music
and multimedia. Emphasising exchange and collaboration, this initiative
enables artists to present new or in-progress works to WestK audiences,
fostering a rich exchange of creative ideas.

AARNEREARMAL > NBHEES > LEBSTENEIRHE » HE
BR  IFMBEMK > REHEKRE -

HANZHAT TEAREAl  ATHEBHRERTHIODHHRETE > 2
B A5 B4  SHBESTRRENHAFR > EBAXREGE > &
BABRSEZFRERBENBERMENR AR RERMOHE -
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Experimental Cantonese Opera Works by Local Playwrights

S0 A i L0 A58 K

At the Tea House Theatre, emerging local playwrights offered new
perspectives on the heritage art form of Cantonese opera with an exciting
showcase of four experimental, black box-style works covering diverse topics.

These works included Realm of Trance: Tian Hacks the Coffin, Chang’e’s
Redemption, Romance of Gold and Jade, and The Black Fox Mystery.

ATEZRAFRARR BHEPFOREASEETRAMATFLRMENSZE > B
MEBEEXR  ZOSNASERFRESE LEBKAT » ME /)55 B
R

HEOBMEMERENEREE(E -0 XBE)  (REEBA) - (FEH) R(K
R BN -

6.0
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HKPM'’s Bi-city Youth Cultural Leadership Programme also brought together
16 students from Beijing and Hong Kong for a comprehensive two-month
cultural exchange programme. The participants took part in over 30
activities, which included internships at seven leading cultural institutions
in Hong Kong.

These initiatives, along with the regular student ambassador, school,
and family programmes that are well-established in our two museums,
demonstrate our commitment to supporting and cultivating the next
generation of artists and cultural leaders in the region.

ERREXEEYE EHFEXCAA R RAE I EFRKE
TRMEEN16ZE2E  ARAMMBERANXERR > 28
BB=1+HEY SENEBELtHEAXCHEBEEE -

FRAUEHE > UERTHBYMEEHRRENSEXECAME
ERMBFEE  RRTEMAIFREFHI—AXEERA
7 FMEHMBIRD ©
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Building Community Connections

WAk I o7 B R

Crossover Lab Initiative
¥ A B 2 W ah #

From March to July 2023, WKCDA and Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
collaborated on the Crossover Lab Initiative 2023, a programme designed
to inspire underprivileged youths through arts and culture. Over 700 youths
from diverse cultural backgrounds participated in various programmes
at WestK, broadening their horizons and encouraging future visits. The
initiative motivated these youths to embrace art and culture and serve the
community. Through activities like CrewKids Online Mission, Magic Tea
House, and guided visits to HKPM and M+, they shared their newfound
experiences with over 2,000 community members.

2023F3RE7R EEREFADEEEHNFTTAN BERERTHHA
20231 BEMBMERXEREHFZEFLF BLtERRAFAXCERNE
LDERAABETSEED  BEMMTLUEMEER > EREBAERBRIG -
A E L FEREEMXEURRBHE BBBHRRE /N
BARLEES REASTROFE) - EEUEXLHE
MESEBARM+BmESES > 2MERZH

EMBRTEME  BBB_TARE-



Inclusive West Kowloon
Community Engagement Programme 2023-24
3% il VY L Ak R 2 B 2 2023-24

Supported by the Yau Tsim Mong District Office,
WKCDA hosted the Inclusive West Kowloon
Community Engagement Programme 2023-24
from December 2023 to February 2024. Over 1,300
participants, including individuals with disabilities,
ethnic minorities, and seniors, enjoyed inclusive arts
and culture experiences at HKPM, M+, and the Tea
House Theatre of Xiqu Centre.

BEREHMNERKESEZFR2023F 128 £2024
Fo2RHMEMT THRMANKE S E18]2023-24) ©
Bid1,3002mME (BEBEAL  LEESHNER
B)NEBHESCIEWE « M+ K8 il &0 3 88 B 15
EERTHRXCEAMREER o

€80
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Strive and Rise Programme
It 8 W[ Teen ] 51 &

WKCDA supported the HKSAR Government's Strive and Rise Programme, matching EERXFEBFHERM MHAIBA MTeens 58> A14UETHREKE
14 staff members with underprivileged students. A series of group visits to HKPM =~ BB BMNBLEEITRE - 2024F » EERRZTH—TE24E2H
and M+ will be arranged in 2024 for 1,000 students, fostering youth engagement —RIEFEBHREXLEYERM+NBHEY >  BEANLEETHES
through enriching artistic experiences at WestK. BE BBESVFE2HEEXES -
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B % SCAL R % H Y b

WestK has made remarkable strides in diversifying
Hong Kong’s economic landscape and establish itself
as a must-visit destination for arts and culture over the
reporting year. With its unique offerings attracting
visitors year-round, Mainland and overseas travellers
made up approximately 60% to 70% of WestK's
museums visitor base by the end of the reporting year.
According to the Hong Kong Tourism Board's Visitor
Profile Report 2023, WestK has solidified its position as
the sixth most-visited destination by overnight visitors
in Hong Kong.

BEFER BMRNRESBLEESAERE > BRAE
NTERAERXCKRECINBNMZ— BAALEEE
MEESTNHBEMED BRI TRSHE - HERS
FERGN  ERABYESFED  AMKRBEBIINRELNMN
WAELH - REBEFBRERRR (Q023FFHEBRERE
AE) AAXCERMEBRIKREABRENFEAM -
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The Inaugural WestK Christmas Market

RN F i S

WestK launched the inaugural WestK Christmas Market,
transforming the location into a festive destination. The
10-day bazaar-like event brought together 30 merchants
offering unique gifts, local artisanal wares, and international
holiday foods. Together with the Hong Kong Winterfest
harbourfront pyrotechnics organised by the Hong Kong
Tourism Board, the WestK Christmas Market garnered over
450,000 visitors to the location during the Christmas holiday
period, showcasing WestK's potential as a vibrant and
inclusive cultural and leisure hub.

FABAATENEEERTE AP+ RNERTEERT
=HEE6 RHIARENER - FsHFITESNKAH
AEMNHEER - EHER > ANERTEREBRESE
BREENTEEENLAKEBI BB K EENBEGRNE
MEESHEEERAMAEARS SHBBRSBEAREG > &S
REBAEAXXCAREREBNS TR -
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M+ at Night is another key programme newly launched by
WestK in the reporting year. Visitors experienced the museum
in a whole new way with dynamic lighting, energetic music,
creative activities, and exciting food and drinks. Held on one
Friday evening in selected months, visitors enjoyed a series
of after-hours events at the museum, from performances,
workshops, and film screenings to talks, tours, and in-gallery

activities with curators and experts.

M+ BARIRENSEES—MBHNEREE > UBRE
RYHEL - ARFBMER > WIFEUAZHAARREY
fE - ZBRBARMEF—EBARERIT > S EATUSHEY
E—RIBELREHE > QERE - TEH - EXHB > UAKH
REANEXREIRFNEE HEENRREED -
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Commercial Leasing
mERmENE



Leveraging its strategic location and connectivity to the Greater Bay Area via High
Speed Rail, WestK is emerging as Hong Kong's new Cultural Central Business District
(“CBD"), seamlessly blending art, commerce and community.

To enhance the project’s financial sustainability and generate greater economic
benefits for Hong Kong, the Authority is updating WestK's development blueprint

to include more revenue-generating land uses.

We continued to align our commercial leasing strategy with the vision of
establishing a thriving Cultural CBD. Our portfolio management efforts have been
focused on attracting a rich and diverse range of arts and culture organisations,
institutions, and related enterprises to WestK, building on our success in securing
anchor tenants such as leading auction house Phillips and Hong Kong-based re-
insurance specialist Peak Re.

In the reporting year, Lingnan University and The Hang Seng University of Hong
Kong established satellite campuses in the M+ Tower, further enriching WestK'’s
academic and cultural landscape. Several new tenants began operations in 2023,
including education centres and a floristry business, adding to the diverse mix of
businesses already operating in WestK. The F&B sector also flourished, with a 22%
year-on-year increase in gross receipt, and 27 outlets operating in WestK by the end
of the reporting year.

The upcoming Artist Square Towers will offer further prime office and commercial
space, and are garnering strong interest from diverse industries including cultural
and creative organisations.

AALEEENHENE  IKSEAREREREBRKXE
E > REMEEN BERMHERE NEBXRBATEERN
X ERLEEE -

ARAFENMBAFEL  UAFTBAEERANECEN
w EERERBENMEANERER  fTEESTELHA
BREESWA -

AHEEBRRATEXCROBEECHNES > AABEGHITHE
MEXHEERE  ERRIBEHEETESEE » UREBR
RERNBREREZERBEKPeak ReEF > ANBEBERIBRS
BEMEMEHE RRREMEEES -

BEFER BREABNERELERBESIIRM+ ABRIRK
S E—TSLEERAXTEENSMEAXERE - 15 > 2EZ
MEPRR2023FRBEE ) BERFPORTEEES  E—F
EEAANBEMES BEBRSEERGER BAHBEIHER
REEE BEREBRARFIER2% ©

BRERNENEEAERRUESBENQAZEREEEZRH >
RERSIFRITESEXRIMBREIEEH -
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Propelling the Pop Boom
1 B it 47 & 48 AL

Pop music enjoys immense popularity throughout Asia, including Hong
Kong, and WKCDA is committed to fostering the growth of pop culture and
attracting mega events to Hong Kong. With this aim in mind, WKCDA has been
actively encouraging event organisers to stage pop concerts at WestK'’s outdoor
venues. Since 2022, WestK's Wonderland, a 140,000-square-foot outdoor venue,
has become a popular location for pop concerts, attracting internationally
acclaimed artists such as DPR, Dimitri Vegas & Like Mike and Hong Kong’s
Alfred Hui.

ROBLEARTINRER > AARNIHBRTXERRE  EBFEEEANATEN
AN BNRITEHLE > RIESBETETBEIT - H2022F 1 » ZIFRIT
BHEERIIMMUBTESRNBAMNBARRT ) BEHEMQESUERNSZ
RF R %R > HIEIDPR » Dimitri Vegas & Like Mike » U R AR FHFEEE o
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In July 2023, WKCDA entered into a three-year partnership with Cathay, making
the airline the official Travel Partner for WKCDA. Announced at the WestK
Nightscapes event, this collaboration aims to enhance Hong Kong’s role in promoting
international cultural exchange and boost cultural tourism. As WKCDA's Travel
Partner, Cathay provides air travel for artists and air freights for exhibits involved
in WKCDA's major programmes such as exhibitions of M+ and HKPM, as well as
Freespace Jazz Fest.

2023578 - EERRABREITAN=ZFNSGFIHEH > BRE
XA EERNIEERESH - EFETREBLIFHLE
HEF RFEEATHERMAPIXEMIRPO > L
BAMXCRE BERASBPUEUEEREEBNEMXNEEIR
EONRERRHMZRSE  ELAaM+REBREXCHEYER
EMTEHBTS4H SEREBRHESR -
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HSBC has continued to support M+ as the museum’s Lead Partner. The partnership
encompasses lead sponsorship of selected M+ Special Exhibitions and sponsorship of tours
for non-governmental organisations as well as a range of family-friendly learning activities

under the M+ Family Day banner.

In July 2023, a three-year partnership was formed between M+ and CHANEL. As M+'s
Major Partner, CHANEL supports the pivotal role of CHANEL Lead Curator, Moving Image,
and has enabled the initiation of two new endeavours, the “M+ Restored” film restoration
programme and the Asian Avant-Garde Film Circulation Library, the first and only one of
its kind in Asia. Additionally, CHANEL supports M+ Cinema programmes “Rediscoveries”
and “Afterimage”, providing diverse and engaging cinematic experiences to the public.

ELRBUETAEBHBINIFEM+  c SFEBEEHE
BEEEDBEENM+RHIRE - BB M IFHRMFHBS
RENESEER > UR—RF M+ REBIRFEBED -

M+ B CHANELIR 2023 F7TE R T A =N EHEE - F4A
M+ B EEZ R > CHANELTE & Z #F M+ TCHANEL R Eh ®2 & £ 2R
BAIR > EXFTRENRER > €1F  TM+EBEIERE
Bt R ENEENE—N TE N SRR mE HEMK
T8l o FBF > CHANELSZ M+ BiPe 9 Men S iE Bk ) K T 52
B-BEIEHE > 2ERTRNECZTNELRER -



HKPM signed a cultural heritage collaboration memorandum with The Palace
Museum and the GS Charity Foundation in December 2023. The GS Charity Foundation
committed to supporting new projects at HKPM over five years, aimed at bolstering

cultural exchanges and professional museum development.

HKPM continues its strategic partnership with Bank of China (Hong Kong), focusing
on cultural education and major exhibitions, including the sponsorship of the Special
Exhibition Gazing at Sanxingdui: New Archaeological Discoveries in Sichuan and
“HKPM Showtime Carnival”, as well as donations of tickets to the underprivileged.

ERMEXCEYER2023F128 > AR EEYRRERZ
EESHEEXEARIFEFAETRE - BHAEEERRER
ARAEEXFHEBHNEXCEYEHRTHEE » SEREX
EXRMEMERERR -

BE > ZEEREXCEMECBELFRERT (FE) A
HESERE EFRSFHEEXTCHEMAERE »
BEENRIRENRA =2 M EHHER) > UKk
TEBERMEREEFEIRY > URBMEFAIREFHEHLE -




Our Xiqu programming was further enhanced by the return of the critically
acclaimed Black Box Chinese Opera Festival, sponsored by the Yam Kim Fai and
Pak Suet Sin Charitable Foundation. The festival crew, also sponsored by the
FHKA, performed in various cities in Mainland China and Korea in 2023.

AREANTERNDASHUG I HEBR ) 2BEANBMHEBLRITE - TS
NESSEHEEA HEOZESEEERHEY U RSB RFRES EB B A R 2023
FHFPEAMEBESESEHRTED



The Tea House Student Matinees Scheme also expanded in 2023 to
welcome primary school students in addition to secondary school
students with the support from The D. H. Chen Foundation as the
Growth Partner and Funder. The D. H. Chen Foundation has sponsored
the programme since 2019.

TBEEE O RERGHEESHEIN20BFRZEHKREFEE
BRRENZELE  RESEVOEREHMEMNRERKENREL » B
EENEER BH20195E  REFESTERRHEEENERS
R iR B AE o
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Creating Values for Our Society

Al EE HERHE




We believe in the vital importance of assessing our efforts in
contributing to the betterment of Hong Kong. In 2024, the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA" or the “Authority”)
embarked on a comprehensive impact study to measure the

profound economic and social impacts of West Kowloon Cultural
District (“WestK” or the "District”) on Hong Kong. This study
focuses on five pivotal areas-impact pathways, economic impact,

socio-cultural impact, visitor impact, and wider benefits. The impact
presented in this session, cover the period from 1 January to 31
December 2023, highlighting the positive and transformative
influence of WestK on our beloved city and showcasing our ongoing
dedication to fostering a brighter future for all.

AANCERERR (TEER) RN ASTEBMHELER » LERETFGHIE
HRFELBEE - N2024F ) EERETT —RE2EHNXENWHE
UEEAAXEE (THAL)) HEBKERMEFEZE - MEESF
GRAETESEE > 6  PERE - KEZE -HEXCEE-H
FIGFEENEATEUAREMEZNG - *EHHE2023F1818
ENRANBHMENEE  EHEANEEENEIOREATE LB
REMAIEEEFREBRD ©
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Consistent Efforts in Elevating Hong Kong’s Global
Arts and Cultural Presence

R 28 32 T+ & W DAL 205 5 nY B K R B D

WKCDA has participated in and organised 119 key cultural events globally EERSERERTIVEEEREERENTELED » RABAEASTE
in 2023, promoting the WestK and Hong Kong's art scene. Sfif R AL o

Geographic distribution of culture exchange events participated/(co)organised by WKCDA
AAXEEEERZ2H SN EMBXERREEMIES M
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Impact Assessment
& ]

In 2023, WestK contributed:
R2023F > AAXEENEREIE:

Total Employment Total GDP Contribution Total Tax Contribution
for the HKSAR Government*

FEII4EEE Bt ERERN HEBREBR

10,405 ks6,861M  HKs550w

0.28% of Hong Kong total 0.23% of Hong Kong total

10,405 1B 2 B 5k £ 2 B AE = RO B AL 68.6 1{EHTT 5.50f8# 7T
HEB48800.28% h&EHBLEE0.23%

FTE jobs

* The tax contribution is related to profits and salaries taxes that are: i) directly generated from West Kowloon Cultural District’s construction, operation and tourism activities; ii) indirectly generated from further expenditure on
goods and services to support West Kowloon Cultural District’s operation and its commercial tenants’ provision of economic activities; and iii) induced from the expenditure of additional wages generated from direct and indirect
impacts, resulting from the multiplier effect on the circulation of wages within the Hong Kong economy.

* REEREANTHEREFEREMN ) AACERE  EENREETHHERRE; ) AXFAANCELEERAFXBANKEEY > MEENERRBRBERBIIZHMEENMRRYE ; i) ERFEIHR
ERRBEERUNE  SEERNHAEEEEENENMFEIHMATENRE -
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Visitor Economic Impact — Results
Wi % B AR R R R —— R

Total Tourists & Residents
Visiting WestK in 2023

2023 F FHANANXIEER

Additional Spending
BHWIMNHE

MERPHMERAR

12.6. w211
1,2608 72.11{E# T

Value Added

Contribution to GDP Employment Creation
mERPMEELE Bl i Bk 2

Ik 69 4 1 B 0 "
HK$3'347M 3'808 FTE Jobs
33.47fE # T 3,8081H

2R 2 EAAER



Social Performance Data Table
& BB IR &

Workforce Profile

As of 31 Mar 2024

As of 31 Mar 2023

As of 31 Mar 2022

As of 31 Mar 2021

As of 31 Mar 2020

BEIHR 12024538318 2023835310 R2022638318 R20215383180  K2020%38 318
Hired by WKCDA Directly HAAXTEEEREEBE

Total Headcount BT A# 1,403 1,433 1,386 1,047 901
By Contract Type BRane s

Permanent B 747 672 677 704 601
Temporary R B 656 761 709 343 300
By Gender 2% B & 2

Male oL 519 531 529 395 333
Female 2 884 902 857 652 568
By Age Group RERER S

Under 30 30U T 442 525 532 314 A
30-50 30-50% 751 711 670 591 A
Over 50 505 Bk 210 197 184 142 A
Hired by Contractors for Construction Work HEAEBREERET(E

Total Headcount 2RAH 1,788 2,061 2,611 4,413 2,959
By Contract Type REVE D

Permanent iR 1,435 1,752 2,193 3,751 2,552
Temporary B B 353 309 418 662 407

Health and Safety

FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20

RERZE 2023/24ABUEE  2022/238BEE  2021/22MBEE 2020218 BEE 2019204 B EE
WKCDA Staff BAXCEEERET
Fatality FETA# 0 0 0 0 0
Number of Reportable Accidents EREIEEHRHE 0 1 1 0 0
Accident Rate THERX 0 0.05 0.06 0 0
Service Providers’ Staff IRBHMEEST

(excluding those under construction project) (FEEREBEAST)
Fatality FETAE 0 0 0 0 0
Number of Reportable Accidents BEREIEEHHE 23 14 19 4 10
Accident Rate THERE 1.62 1.01 1.58 0.65 228
Construction Projects under Management of Project Division Ti2SfFIEENEEER
Fatality FET A 0 0 1 0 0
Number of Reportable Accidents BRETHEESR 2 1 4 9 1
Accident Rate THERX 0.05 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.11

L0l
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Social Performance Data Table (Continued)
g RBEEY L (H)

;r::a‘s';;l‘zlngz FY 2023/24
=] 2023/24 B E
Number of Employee Received Training BREBIETAH 695
Total Training Hours 43 51| B 35 11,659
Internal Training Hours 7y EB 4 FI 9,023
External Training Hours ShEREE A 2,636
Average Training Hours Completed per Employee? THEE B T EMN ISR 17

FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
2022/230 BERE  2021/22f4 BN SEE 2020/218A BUEEE  2019/20f4 B SF BE
574 621 657 A

11,966 12,318 8,628 A

10,660 10,331 5,136 A

1,306 1,987 3,492 A

21 20 13 A

Supply Chain

FY 2023/24
2023/248t B FE

{4 fE 88

Number of Suppliers HrEmEE 1,261
Number of Suppliers by Region e s oM EEREE

Asia EER 1,143
Europe BUM 76
North America blEPIl 42
South America mEM 0

FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
2022/230 BEE  2021/22f4 BN SEE 2020/218A BUEEE  2019/20f4 By 5 BE
1,490 1,316 1,183 894

1,346 1,162 1,027 765

86 9% 97 79

58 56 57 48

0 2 2 2

Anti-Corruption FY 2023/24

2023/248t L FE
367

R&®

Anti-corruption Training Hours by Employees BINKR&ESEIIRE

FY 2022/23
2022/238 B 5F [E

150

FY 2021/22
2021/2281 BUF FE

155

FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
2020/218A R EE  2019/2084 By F BE

140 A

W N = >

wN = >

Data not available

A contractor’s worker was accidentally injured by the crane jib during the maintenance of the crane and succumbed to death. The contractor has taken safety measures to eliminate the hazards.

The scope of training data covers permanent employees only.
Calculated as the total training hours/the total number of employees trained.

AERA B R BE R 1

—ERARETAGCHEEERNBED  FEREERERENST - AEBHCRNREEHHBRIIEE -
BIMBEEESEEHRET -

SHEHARAMIBINY RINBTAH -



Environment Performance Data Table — Operations®
REERBBBI R — BHEo

601

unit FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
B 2023/24R BUEE B 2022/23BA BU4EFE  2021/22BA B{SEE 2020/2184 B{SE/E 2019/2084 B £
Energy Consumption RERHER
. e e Kwh
Overall Energy Consumption’ HRBETRHFER" TRE
2
Energy Consumption Intensity* BEERHERE + E:%Ny?: oy
o ] /N
. . et kWh
Direct Energy Consumption BEEEREES FRE
H PN L
Diesel = #
e L
Petrol i #
N = 3y ir = kWh
Renewable Energy Produced and Consumed ABRAEREEENHES FRE
: ; 2 AE S ET = kWh
Indirect Energy Consumption iR RHFE2 TRE
Electricity Consumption AEE ;Vb\’{%
. . = kWh
ICP EV Charger Consumption for Charging ICPEENERERTEEBIHES FEE
Autonomous Vehical EEERSE kWh
Total Energy Consumption for Charging AERENEREES TR
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions BERBEHEK
N tonne CO,e
. e = A 0= 2
Overall GHG Emission RERBHRESE W (R
. o tonne CO,e
Scope 1 Emission? & B2 W= G {t .}uféi
tonne CO,e
ission? - 3 2
Scope 2 Emission & B 5w =g I
tonne CO,e/m?
Carbon Intensity* Bkoa HM_athEs

Bk
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Environment Performance Data Table — Operations® (Continued)
REELBHEBEINERE — ZHE(H)

unit FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20

B 2023/248 BUEE  2022/230A BUEE 2021/22 B 2020/21 B S E  2019/208 B B
Water Consumption RAKE

3
Overall Water Consumption® M KE e 207,075 180,402 121,856 90,184 39,927
LAk
Water Intensity* FkEE* m/m 0.62 0.54 036 029 0.18
Y HE THK S TR ' ' ' ' '
Waste BEREM
frrrd = tonne
Non-hazardous Waste Produced EREEEVELSR P 1,956 2,420 2,005 838 1,278
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity* BEBERYEE fonne/m? 0.0058 0.0072 0.0060 0.0027 0.0057
M 7K
. — = tonne
Non-hazardous Waste Disposal MEFEYEES P 1,924 2,394 1,989 825 1,258
Non-hazardous Waste Recycled or Reused mEBFEYLIWNEEREEHAS
Paper “t ,Alf?; 24,425 19,342 12,232 10,382 19,084
Plastic B ,Afgﬁ 1,110 989 501 634 288
Aluminium Can $R5 g% 1,354 640 218 160 180
Glass W ,/S’:r 2,540 3,091 1,217 1,194 286
Coffee Ground 0 B3k 5 ,A'f% 2,145 2,144 1,654 640 349
Hazardous Waste Produced or Recycled BEERREYELEREKRE
Fluorescent Tubes BHEE n;;n%er 415 1,079 371 491 213
Other Hith
Trees in the District & i i A ”;;“;er 2,536 2,028 1,992 1,855 640
==}

Data not available

The GFA as of 31 March of the financial year is used for the calculation of intensity.

Energy consumption data were calculated based on the amount of purchased electricity and fuels consumed and relevant conversion factors set out in the Energy Statistics Manual published by the International Energy Agency.

Scope 1 GHG emissions primarily came from on-road mobile sources and tree removal. Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions are calculated based on the global warming potential values of the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, and are presented in carbon dioxide
equivalent. The tree emission reduction data are calculated with reference to the Environmental Protection Department’s Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals from Buildings (Commercial, Residential, or Public Use) in
Hong Kong.

Scope 2 GHG emissions primarily came from the purchased electricity. Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions are calculated based on the emissions intensity for electricity sold published by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited and The Hongkong Electric Company Limited.
Include portable water, cleansing water, irrigation water and AC make-up water consumption.

Figures have been restated.

Facilities in operation included Arts Pavilion (opened in 2016), the Xiqu Centre and Freespace (opened in 2019), Art Park (opened in phases between 2018 and 2020), WKCDA Tower (opened in 2021), M+ and CSF (opened in 2021) and Hong Kong Palace Museum
(opened in 2022).

AERA S R AE R 1

UZHBEENRIANBNEEEREASERENEE -

BE IR 76 B R AR R I P BE R B AR B (AR AR BT ) SRR RE RO SN D R AR > R HARRIEIRE F 5t H -

BE-RERBHARNAHEECRERBHRRBANANE - BE-BRERBHIRRBEPCAERREABRIERE) W2 HREREEAE > UUZACHEERT - BHANRHEN 2 EZRRRES(FERAY (HE T2 H
AR) BERBHRRRRNESNBEES)E -

BEZAERAEFREEZRENMEE) BE - BEREHFRREPEENARAARSEBHARADATBHAEBNNHIBERE

BIEGRAK ERAK S BRAKMEBRARNHTB R HEER o

HUFEWET -

BRAZERXRNEFEEMES (20165 8A) » Bt P ORERZER 20195 HA) » EMAE (R2018F X200 D BMA) » BAXEEREE/AIE (021FHA) » M+ REEREFL QOUERAE) » UREBREXCEWE (2022
ERMA) °



Environmental Performance Data Table — Construction®
B R BB —— e

LLL

unit FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
B 2023/24R BUEE B 2022/23BA BU4EFE  2021/22BA B{SEE 2020/2184 B{SE/E 2019/2084 B £
Energy Consumption
kWh
Overall Energy Consumption TR
. . R kwh
Direct Energy Consumption EEERHEES FEE
L - L
Biodiesel 7/ S| 7
. N L
Diesel Ep:i #
[N L
Petrol i #
, . g Kwh
Indirect Energy Consumption BHEREREES TR
kWh
Electricity Consumption BAEE FEE
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions BERBEHEK
. tonne CO,e
ssi B 2R b Al B
Overall GHG Emission RERBHRESE D%E:%{tﬁ%zé‘i
k¢ Cco
Scope 1 Emission? BE— B e fgibﬁiz’:‘ =2
I =]
Scope 2 Emission® BE 5w o Pg:tcﬁ%; 2
= =)
Water Consumption BkE
m]
Overall Water Consumption® HEkE K
/N
Waste BEY
Non-hazardous Waste Disposal mEEEYEES touréﬁne
Non-hazardous Waste Recycled or Reused mEBFRYEIKHBEEREEASE
. . o5 tonne
Construction and Demolition Waste BEMNFRED -
k
Hazardous Waste Produced BEEBRYELR ’/lg)]"r

£331205 INQ 404 san|ep buneasd

m T R

B P

MR T XS B ALNOHLAY LD1YLSId TVHNLIND NOOTMOM LSIM



Environmental Performance Data Table — Construction® (Continued)
REELBHEBEIERE — B (H)

unit FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23 FY 2021/22 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20
B 2023/248 BUEE  2022/230A BUEE 2021/22 B 2020/21 B S E  2019/208 B B
Construction Materials BEHE
Timber A#t to[;;e 195 241 405 2,666 A
Bricks iR tou'%;e 1,465 1,233 100 418 A
Cements KR tou;;e 1,455 1,201 9,531 7,741 A
Cement Mortar AR tou;;e 254 502 720 3,766 A
a tonne
Concrete BT g 209,763 181,230 109,296 129,939 A
. e tonne
Reinforcing Steel Bars (Steel-based) A LB A E) e 187 51,432 16,076 36,874 A
sand b tou’%;e 287 43,945 6,426 3,501 A
Stones g% tou';;e 0 0 0 1,363 A

Data not available

Energy consumption data were calculated based on the amount of purchased electricity and fuels consumed and relevant conversion factors set out in the Energy Statistics Manual published by the International Energy Agency.

Scope 1 GHG emissions primarily came from on-road mobile sources and tree removal. Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions are calculated based on the global warming potential values of the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, and are presented in carbon dioxide
equivalent. The tree emission reduction data are calculated with reference to the Environmental Protection Department’s Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals from Buildings (Commercial, Residential, or Public Use) in
Hong Kong.

Scope 2 GHG emissions primarily came from the purchased electricity. Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions are calculated based on the emissions intensity for electricity sold published by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited and The Hongkong Electric Company Limited.
Include portable water, cleansing water, irrigation water and AC make-up water consumption.

Figures have been restated.

Facilities in operation included Arts Pavilion (opened in 2016), the Xiqu Centre and Freespace (opened in 2019), Art Park (opened in phases between 2018 and 2020), WKCDA Tower (opened in 2021), M+ and CSF (opened in 2021) and Hong Kong Palace Museum
(opened in 2022).

AR B R AE R ]

AE R FE B MUR IR B B PR AR TR B AR 89 (BB TR 5T F ) PR ERISNE B R
BE-RERRHARNAEEECEERBRREANENSE - BE—RERBHERREPCAERLRARE
AR) BEREHBRAMFNESMEEES)H -

BEZRERBEHREIEREIIEE) HEZRERBHRRRTEENARAIRERBEEARABDAHAMEBNOHKRE -

BERAK BRAK  BRBANEBRAANHRAKNHEES -

HFERET -

ERALEREBELIES 2016F/MA) » Biih 0k BEZH Q019F/MA) » BM AR (R2018F R 202050 BMA) » ANAXEEEERAIE 20215 A) » M+ REERE DL (2021F8H8) » UkEBKE X EYE (2022
FRA) -

iFE > LR HARRIRBIRE Tt o
SHMERS) MR REBBELESE > UUZSEHEERT - HANAHEN 2 ZREREB(FHEEEY (B - FEAAH




Financial Review
1A %5 o] Jg

Strong Revenue Growth despite Difficult Market Conditions

The financial year 2023/24 marked the first complete fiscal year post-pandemic.
Despite challenging market conditions, the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority ("WKCDA"” or the "Authority”) demonstrated robust financial
performance over this period.

During the financial year, the Authority has recorded strong revenue growth of
42% year-on-year, from HK$746 million to HK$1,061 million. The West Kowloon
Cultural District (“WestK"” or the “District”) has welcomed 4.4 million visitors to its
museums, performing arts venues, and events. Its various venues have hosted more
than 460 events organised by external hirers. Utilisation rates of key performing
arts venues — Grand Theatre of Xiqu Centre and The Box of Freespace — were
close to 100%. Moreover, the occupancy of the commercial leasing portfolio has
increased to 96% as of 31 March 2024.

Business-to-business (“B2B”) revenue has grown by 35% year-on-year, from
HK$385 million to HK$518 million, with growth observed across all segments
from fundraising to venue hire and commercial leasing. Business-to-customer
(“B2C") revenue has grown by 47% year-on-year, from HK$168 million to HK$246
million, primarily driven by admission income. Interest income has also seen a rise
of 54% year-on-year, from HK$193 million to HK$297 million, having benefited
from interest rate hikes and reflecting the Authority’s ongoing effort on liquidity
preservation through fiscal tightening. Gross receipts from F&B outlets have grown
by 22% year-on-year, and museum shops by 25%, with strong sales in December
2023 when WestK welcomed more than 450,000 visitors during the Christmas and
New Year holidays. This surge was due to the combined effect of the Hong Kong
Tourism Board’s Hong Kong Winterfest and pyrotechnic shows, along with WestK's
first-ever Christmas Market.

ETHRE W WA RS R

2023/ 24 B EEREBEREAEERENMBEE  GEHIFIRIR
EAME AANCEEER(TEERI) WHBRFEKAEBRE-

THBEE EERNKARBENE R BELF42% > H7.46f8
BTEE10.61EBT BAXECE(THAL) HIEYE . REEMIZ
MBEEBHRSIMOBHEFEAR SEBMBITTEIBIOBHEEE
BEmeEs e P OXKERNERETHASSTIEREEMIGH
BIEFREREIL100% IS ) HE2024F 38310 BEMEEHANE
HEBRAEI6%

TEHTE(TB2BI) WIKARFEILR35% > H3.85EBTILES.18
BEET HMEAREER - BSHAAUEHEHESET - CEHEY
(TB2CI) MM AR EERA47% > H1.68EATIEE 2468 T TE
HZKRAES SZSERMERRBMEERFEEBEHEMBUSH
BRTHES NBBAKRELEAS% > H1.3EBTIEE2.97848
o BRBAAMNBRABRFEER22%  BYESRNHEELI AR
F25% HRE2023FENARERERHERBHEH > AARKBESR
ASSBARIG HEXRFARY ARSHEEHREBREZER XM
HIEBENESAKE I MEAEE - URBENEEREHTERBPET
B4R & S FE o
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The Authority's strong revenue growth is underpinned by its long-term strategy
of investing in content, a key driver for visitation and revenue. More importantly,
the Authority’s content-producing capabilities have enabled WestK to become a
creator and exporter of intellectual property (“IP”) and content to museums and
performing arts venues outside Hong Kong. Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now, the first
Special Exhibition curated by M+, toured to Guggenheim Museum Bilbao in Spain
and the Serralves Museum in Porto, Portugal, in 2023 and 2024 respectively after
closing in Hong Kong. With other exports of IP and content in the pipeline, the
Authority remains firmly committed to investing in end-to-end capacity building
and expanding its repertoire of self-produced and commissioned IP, laying the
foundation for WestK to establish itself as a global cultural institution.

Cost Recovery Rates on Par with International Peers

FY2023-24 was the first financial year that M+ and Hong Kong Palace Museum
("HKPM") were both in full-year operation and the performing arts venues were
operating in full capacity, after Hong Kong has emerged from the prolonged
Covid-19 pandemic. With the strenuous cost control effort, the Authority has
contained the increase in operating expenditure at 12% year-on-year from
HK$1,464 million to HK$1,639 million, while delivering an expanding business
portfolio, establishing its position in the international cultural arena through
initiatives like the highly successful Hong Kong International Cultural Summit 2024,
and receiving an increasing number of visitors across its venues including the highly
popular Art Park. As a result of these efforts and achievements, the Authority’s
underlying operating deficit has narrowed by 20% year-on-year from HK$718
million to HK$578 million.

The robust financial performance was reflected in the improvement of the
Authority’s cost recovery rate by 7 percentage points to 44% excluding interest
income, and by 12 percentage points to 63% if interest income is counted. HKPM,
M+, and the Performing Arts Division have maintained cost recovery rates on
par with the established cultural institutions worldwide, at 67%, 42%, and 37%
(2023: 44%, 46%, and 34%) respectively. In particular, the extraordinary financial
performance of HKPM signifies the strong appeal of its blockbuster exhibitions to
both corporate sponsors and audiences, underscoring the importance of investing
in content to build the brand and support the institution’s organic growth.

EERNBARHER ERAKEERGTBRATHRYKE M
HERABRERHFHARNBANIERR - EEENE > EERN
RERMEREN BEAENEHAUBEER  BEYERRBEWAEN
HMBERAANTHHIAFTRLSINNOBYEMRREEM S - M+ ERE
BTHREMNBINRE EMBE 1945FE5 I REBRARE ) 0%E
2023 FE M4 EXBBEMERNTEMEEREXWERTET K
FENENBEFTRAEZNTEYERL EERESHARLEM
HEENMATEE IREBRIREZERENREZHHNES
RA> AERFEATHZARENNABEENAENS  ABELER
At FEXCEMUEBRIERENER-

A 1] S 3 G R ] R

2023/ 24 B EERERERRMSERT EE M+IEBREX
EYEEE2EEENMBEE REEM G NBART2EMNE
B -BER— A ORBHEEEHE fINENTESEENTS
BEEXEEIERE2024) > MEEBIFARBEBRXCEENEL
Ml AARSBHEEERLABRTESHRD  HiEARNTRSIFEE
RIHALKAR EEREBRIENAS REERNIREERERNE
12% > H14.64BBTEHE16.39EBT BEEHNERRSEER
MEFAEERTREVRERME > H7.18E@BTRES.78EB T o

EERBRENMBRE RMEEAAFEKRENNRE L BEANSK
AstE EEERAEAKRELA7TEESHEL44% ; st RAS U A A
FANREERLEEE% FEAREXCHEME - M+ NIREBFEMEN
RAEWNEHEAPIREMBEFREANEEBEL 2A567%
42% F137% (20234 : 44% ~ 46% M 34%) - EH R T XICIEWER
REUR BEHHEHARBREFRSCEEDAENERROD, ARKLER
RAANE BRZEERMEKRNRESEBREEE BEMEBER-



Short-term Liquidity

In April 2024, the Authority completed the financial close of the re-financing of the
Sustainability-linked Loan (“SLL") of HK$5 billion and three-year tenor. The loan
syndicate comprises a total of ten banks from diverse geographies. The significant
over-subscription has demonstrated the banking community’s confidence in the
Authority’s development prospects and capability in fulfilling its mission.

As of 31 March 2024, the Authority’s cash and bank balances were HK$6.2 billion
(2023: HK$7.5 billion), including loan drawdown of HK$1 billion (2023: HK$1
billion). The Authority will continue to uphold fiscal prudence in preserving

liquidity to weather challenging market conditions.

Relaxation of the Enhanced Financial Arrangement

The West Kowloon Cultural District, a visionary, strategic investment by the HKSAR
Government, is one of the largest cultural precincts in the world. An upfront
endowment of HK$21.6 billion was approved in 2008 by the Legislative Council
to implement the West Kowloon Cultural District project. To provide additional
resources for WKCDA to meet the funding needs to deliver and operate the arts
and cultural facilities, in 2016, the Government approved the Enhanced Financial
Arrangement (“EFA") for the West Kowloon Cultural District, under which the
Authority was granted the development rights for hotels, offices and residential
("HOR") portion of the District. The EFA required WKCDA to collaborate with
private developers under the “Build, Operate and Transfer” (“BOT"”) model to

develop the HOR projects and generate revenue through sharing rental income.

In November 2022, the first public-private partnership (“PPP") project of the West
Kowloon Cultural District, the Artist Square Towers (“AST"”) project, located at
the heart of WestK, was successfully awarded despite the challenging market
conditions during the pandemic. The AST project will provide approximately 62,435
square metres of Grade A office space and 2,500 square metres of retail and dining
space, thus enabling WestK to solidify its status as Hong Kong's new cultural
business district.

R B R &

2024F 48 EBER A= - S RATEETNAFERER
RENBTERBRE - ZEWAERA+HARETEMIENIRTS
Hoe BRRFEEZEERR EnRTERHEERNREENSRE
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BE2024F3A31H EBERNAERIRITHEFA62BET(2023F :
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Since the approval of the EFA in 2016, Hong Kong's business and operating
environment has undergone substantial changes. For WestK, the prolonged delay
in the return of the works sites in Zone 2 of the District occupied by the High
Speed Rail (Hong Kong Section) project, the sharp increase in construction costs,
and the global impact of the pandemic which in turn affects the demand for office
spaces, has posed greater challenge to WKCDA. To address the financial problem,
the Authority submitted a proposal to the Government in 2023 to relax the EFA for
the West Kowloon Cultural District.

In July 2024, the HKSAR Government approved the relaxation of the EFA which
permits the sale of residential developments in Zone 2 of the District up to the
limit approved under the District’s Development Plan (i.e. 20% of total gross floor
area of the District). This approval came with certain conditions pertaining to the
scheduling and administration of residential tenders, the tracking of residential
tender proceeds, and certain financial control measures. The relaxation of EFA
will unleash and enhance the development potential of the HOR portion of
the District. In the short term, it provides the necessary conditions such that the
Authority can pursue various financing options; in the medium to long run, it will
allow the diversification of the HOR development models and hence the revenue
streams. In addition, the Authority will formulate and implement more innovative
and progressive revenue generation and commercialisation strategies with a view
to increasing income and reducing operating deficit.

Long-term Financial Sustainability

WKCDA is committed to promoting Hong Kong'’s cultural and creative industries,
creating a vibrant cultural tourism landmark, and supporting the city’s development
as an East-Meets-West Centre for international cultural exchange. To achieve these
goals, WestK will focus on driving revenue generation and commercialisation.
Capitalising on its exceptional connectivity with the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area (“GBA"), home to a population of 86 million, this development
aims to cultivate a high-end cultural and creative cluster. Our ongoing efforts will
drive long-term industry growth and significantly enhance the economic vibrancy

of the neighbourhood, setting the stage for a dynamic and prosperous future.

H2016FMMeafM B L H B UK EENEENKERREEE
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Financial Highlights (Consolidated)

B 5 3 2 (5 )

Financial results for the year ended 31 March

BEIAMNBLFEZMBES

2024
HKS$ million
BEEHRT

2023
HK$ million
BEEET

Income KA

- Underlying (note (a)) - B (E#(a)) 1,061 746

- Reported - 2% 1,220 867
Expenditure 55 (1,639) (1,464)
Deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance costs KREHTE - B RRMEREF KR F

- Underlying (note (a)) - B (;#(a)) (578) (718)

- Reported - E8 (419) (597)
Deficit for the year EERFE

- Underlying - EF (1,336) (1,373)

- Reported - 28 (1,336) (1,373)

. . " 2024 2023
Financial position is at 31 March e o
F3A31B 2R EwEER AEEERT
Total assets EEHRE 28,005 29,017
Total liabilities afERRE (9,242) (8,917)
Total equity DB 18,763 20,100
Note: 3.

(a) Donation income for construction has been excluded from both the underlying income
and underlying deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance costs, because such

income represents the amortisation of deferred income to match the depreciation of the

relevant asset funded by the donation. Both the amortised income and depreciation are

non-cash in nature during the operation period.
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Awards and Recognitions

4 JH B 3 ST

Hong Kong Publishing Biennial Awards

2023
SBOETE# AR S F 5% iR 38 (2023)
@ Publishing Award (Arts and Design)

F&ify Kz atl A

Grand Gallop: Art and Culture of the Horse
(B EER T — BXIEEAM)

DFA Design for Asia Awards 2023

- Merit Award

DFAZE il & R % E s 5t 882023
—ERE

M+ Magazine Imaging Cantopop:

Design and Performativity

M+3E5 (BRI R AT R — RTEEE)

The 24th Hong Kong Dance Awards
FEAZWEFLR2023

@ Outstanding Small Venue Production

N BLS5 St SR B B

Phygital D: Tsang Tsui-shan
— Chroma 11 | Freespace and the Hong Kong
Arts Centre ifva

Phygital D : B2 (EEE ) | BRTEBREE

i thifva

The 25th Hong Kong Dance Awards
FEEAEEFE2024

@ Outstanding Choreography
RS
Sang Jijia &SN
@ Outstanding Medium Venue Production

R R RS IR R(E

Stream of Dust | West Kowloon Cultural District
and City Contemporary Dance Company

(FAREE) | AAX @R KT E A EEE

@ Outstanding Performance by a Male Dancer
BREHSEEREN
Ho Ho-fei {mi&E
Convergence | West Kowloon Cultural District

and Hong Kong Dance Company

(R | BN EEKREBEER

IATC(HK) Critics Award
IATC(HK) BI 3 A 8%

@ Scenography of the Year 2022
FEZARE Ei5E2022

Future of Performance: Bright Day | Freespace

TERKRY (BH) | BEHZERE

@ Performance of the Year 2023
FE R 1382023
@ Director of the Year 2023
FEEREE2023
Birdy Wong Ching-yan =2
@ Performer of the Year 2023
FEEBR2023
Choi Ming-hong ¥BB#i

Artocrite Theater “Venaissance”: / am Tree |

Presented by Artocrite Theater and Co-presented

by West Kowloon Cultural District
BETREMEMEB AL (BYA) |
BETREI MBI RS

SHANGHAI SHOWLIFE Musical Award
2023
2023 F LBREAURETEAEEE

@ Honorary Musical of the Year —
Professional Theatre
(Original Musical)
FEBFTHERE —
HEAB(RATLE)
The Impossible Trial | West Kowloon Cultural

District x Hong Kong Repertory Theatre
(KARED) | BAXIE@XEBEEIE



The 31st Hong Kong Drama Awards
B+ EEREGRK

@ Best Production
RIERF

@ Best Director (Tragedy/Drama)
REGEGER ER)
Fong Chun-kit A&7

@ Best Leading Actor (Tragedy/Drama)
RESEAHGER EAR)
Jordan Chen ZBE1E

@ Best Leading Actress
(Tragedy/Drama)
REXEAHGER ER)
Tunes Ting TR

@ Best Supporting Actor
(Tragedy/Drama)
REBRAER ER)
Clinton Zhang R

@ Best Stage Design
RIEZEGRE

@ Best Sound Design
RIETERE

@ Best Lyrics
R{EIHR

@ Best Original Music (Musical)
RERBSHE(TLA)

@ Outstanding Production of the Year
FEESFHME

The Impossible Trial | West Kowloon Cultural
District x Hong Kong Repertory Theatre
(KRE) | BAXIE@XEREEE

The 32nd Hong Kong Drama Awards
BT EERBERAR

@ Outstanding Production of the Year
FEBHFRE

@ Best Director (Tragedy/Drama)
REGEGER ER)
Birdy Wong Ching-yan E=2fX

@ Best Leading Actress
(Tragedy/Drama)
REXEAHGER ER)
Zhao Yiyi #fRig

@ Best Supporting Actress
(Tragedy/Drama)
RIEREAER ER)
Boat Chan Pl

@ Best Sound Design
RIEZTER

Leung Po-wing RH&

Artocrite Theater “Venaissance”: / am Tree |
Presented by Artocrite Theater and Co-presented
by West Kowloon Cultural District
SETFRAETEMEA  (EPAD |
SEETFRAEIMRBENAXEEEH

Xiqu Opera Black Box Festival (Beijing)
2023 — Honorary Credential Award
20234 55+ & 6 5 2 X /) B 15 155 Bh 2 i 8
—EFHBRR

Experimental Cantonese Opera “Farewell My
Concubine” (New Adaptation) | Xiqu Centre
NEISERI (BRI CréR) | B0
Experimental Cantonese Opera “Wenguang Explores
the Valley” | Xiqu Centre

NS B CUEERAD | B O

Experimental Cantonese Opera “The Imperial
Decree” | Xiqu Centre

NEISBEI(EREE) | B0

Digital Accessibility Recognition
Scheme 2022/2023 — Silver Award
2022/2023 F EEERAEZ 8
— $R%

M+ Website

M+48G

EDigest Brand Awards 2024
4 —m R K 8E2024

@ Best Cultural and Art Promotion Exhibition

RIEXTEREMERRE

M+

2023 Effie Awards Hong Kong

2023F B UFER

@ Gold Effie (Culture & The Arts)
ER(XEREMER)

@ Silver Effie (General Specialty: Experiential
Marketing — Live/Digital/Live & Digital)
RB(EEATIZHELER)

Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now | M+
EREE | —ANEEES | M+

2023 HKMA/Viu TV & Now TV Awards
For Marketing Excellence

2023 HKMA/ ViuTVE

Now TV{4 tH i 15 5 &1 2%

@ Now TV Gold Award
Now TV & #%
@ McDonald’s Hong Kong Excellence in

Branding
ERXEYHREREEHR

Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now | M+
EREE | —NIEEES] | M+
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Marketing Events Awards Hong Kong
2023
2023F BB EHFHALR

@ Best Use of Influencer 2023 (Bronze)
IREERBREFEZEI LR

Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now | M+
ERHE | —NIIREES) | M+

Marketing Interactive PR Awards 2023
Hong Kong

@ Best Performance PR Campaign (Gold)
TREAMBEITHRERN £

Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now | M+
IEEEE | —NWORAFES ) | M+

The 38th International ARC Awards
B=+/\[EARCE] R F 3R K 1%

@ Non-Profit Organisation (Print A.R.): Cultural
Organisation — Gold Award
FFEFMBEIRER)  XEHRBFERE
B & 8%

@ Cover Photo/Design: Cultural Organisation —
Gold Award
HEMER R XEEEBFREN SR

@ nterior Design: Cultural Organisation — Gold
Award
RER  XEHBFRAEN R

@ Photography: Cultural Organisation — Silver
Award
MR B8 & R4 B IR 82

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Annual
Report 2022/2023
ANXEE@EERF2022/2023FFRE

The Gold Standard Award 2023

@ In-House Winner for Media Engagement

WEAMEEES ALK

Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now | M+
MEAE  —NWEEEES | M+

U Magazine Travel Awards 2024

{U Magazine) T jf iff X #% 2024

@ My Favourite Local Destination (Art Culture)
EeE84ithiEs (2 Xt)

M+

BEAM Plus New Building (Version 1.2)
— Provisional Gold Rating

BRERINBEEFE1.2/R —ZCEER

Lyric Theatre Complex
BEIRSES

Green Building Award 2023 — Merit
Award (Existing Building Category:
Interiors)

IRFEHEKL2023

— ERR(HEEEEHENEMNRE)
WKCDA Tower Head Office Fit Out on 6-12/F
ANXICEBERABENATEEC- 1218

HKIA Awards 2022/2023
EHEHEMES2022/2023 Fig

@ Medal of the Year
EREEMBE2FHRANBEAR

Hong Kong Palace Museum

BB EXCEYE

HKIS Awards 2024
ERNEMBEET KIZ2024

@ Construction Building Category Grand Award
BEGET) IRENREBAE

Hong Kong Palace Museum

EBR SR

The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers — Building Services Division
The Excellent Building Award 2023
FREIRMPF(EFRESH) KK
2023

@ Grand Award (New Building Category)
SHARR(FEEBHEIEEEAH)

M+

The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers Structural Excellence Award
2023 — Grand Award

2023 FERTEMBEEHE AR
FHEEALRE

@® Grand Award (Hong Kong Infrastructures &
Footbridges Projects)
EBAR(EEEENBRIERD)

Artist Square Bridge
XN PR

@ Grand Award (Hong Kong Non-Residential
Project)
BHARGIEIEEEAHR)

Hong Kong Palace Museum

BB IR



Hong Kong Lighthouse Club Safety
Project Team Award 2023 — Gold
Award

ERPEER2TREAERKE — 1%

Lyric Theatre Complex

RERGEIS

The 22nd Hong Kong Occupational
Safety and Health Award
BT EEERMELZRELAE

@ Safety Performance Award
— Outstanding award

ZERFEAR —FHER

Lyric Theatre Complex

RERGEIS

RICS Hong Kong Awards 2023
EXFFNEMEF 2023

@ Construction Project Management Team of
the Year
ERFEEARE —
ITREBREBRKE

Hong Kong Palace Museum Construction Project

Management Team:

—  West Kowloon Cultural District Authority

— Rider Levett Bucknall Limited

— Rocco Design Architects Associates Limited

- ARUP

— China State Construction Engineering (Hong
Kong) Limited

BHERE X CHEYETIZEEAEREE
ANXIEREERR

- FILEBRAT

- EBASEEMEBAERAT

- B

- HEREIRE (FE) BRAH

2023 Media Architecture Biennale
Awards

2023 FEREREECFERIIE

@ Best Animated Media Architecture
REHSHEERSE

M+ Facade

M+ Ei%

Mulching Pilot Scheme — Friends of
Y -PARK Award 2023
EREEVMEMELCKEHE — 2023
[(H-EB2ZzKR] Z&FK

@ Outstanding in Exemplary of Mulching in

Park
BETHEABRBEENFEAE ARG’

Art Park

NEXX Sustainability and ESG Awards
2024

NEXX ®] #5 48 % & B2 ESG K 882024

@ Community Education and Engagement

Award
HEHEM2H KR

Freespace

Bz

Y-Care CSR Scheme 2022-2023
Y-Care 1% {k £ 51 21 2022-2023

@ Y-Care Outstanding Performance (Social)
Award
Y-CaredERL(31 &) ML 8

@ Y-Care Golder Partner

Y-Care & (N {#

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
AAXEEEER

List ot Barrier-free

Companies / Organisations

BRERELHE/MAEE CUEEI

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
FET@RBHEER

Xiqu Centre, Freespace, Art Park
B0~ BEHRZERE - BfTAE

years+
( RORRE o
canngorgamsatlon

Awarded by The Hong Kong Coundi of Social Servic
TR R g%

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
ANXEEEIER
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Performing Arts
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Hong Kong Palace Museum

HKPM Founding Partners
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Ms Betty Lo Yan-yan and Mr Kenneth Chu Wai-kee
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The support from a number of Founding Patrons is vital to realise HKPM's
mission — to become one of the world’s leading cultural institutions
committed to the study and appreciation of Chinese art and culture.
The patronage allows HKPM to curate exceptional exhibitions, conduct

innovative research, and further improve the visitor experience.
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Bank of America
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Cathay
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Perrier-Jouét

Rosewood Hong Kong

Sino Group
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M+ Patrons

The support of M+ Patrons has been instrumental in realising the museum’s
vision to become one of the world’s leading cultural institutions and
Asia’s first global museum of contemporary visual culture. The M+ Patron
community is at the heart of the museum’s mission, affirming creative

expression and fostering artistic encounters that shape our global vision.
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Photo Credits
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19-21, 24-28, 31 (bottom), 32, 59, 63-67, 73, 78, 89 (left), 90-91,
101 (bottom)
Photo: Winnie Yeung @ Visual Voices

31 (top left)
Courtesy of Art Basel

31 (top centre)
Courtesy of Art Central

31 (top right)

Senyawa

Music performance Varjranala at Artists’ Night, 2024
Courtesy of the artist and Tai Kwun Contemporary
Photo by Kelly Hebestreit

33, 39-44, 45 (bottom), 46-47, 81, 99
© Hong Kong Palace Museum

34
Installation views of the exhibition Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now
© Photo: Oier Rey Delika, FMGB, Guggenheim Museum Bilbao

35 (top)
Surroundings of the Guggenheim Museum Bilbao filled with polka dots
Photo: José Miguel Llano, Estudios Durero

35 (bottom)

Preview of the exhibition Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now at the Guggenheim
Museum Bilbao

© Photo: Erika Ede, FMGB, Guggenheim Museum Bilbao

36 (bottom)
Photo: Rae Wu

45 (top right)
Photo: Nils Herrmann, Cartier Collection © Cartier

45 (centre right)
Photo: Marian Gérard, Cartier Collection © Cartier

48

Fashion Stunt Partnership with Shanghai Tang for the Madame Song:
Pioneering Art and Fashion in China exhibition

Photo: Michael CW Chiu
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49 (top right), 55, 58 (bottom)
Photo: Lok Cheng, M+, Hong Kong

49 (bottom), 52-54, 58 (top)
Photo: Winnie Yeung @ Visual Voices
Courtesy of M+, Hong Kong

50-51, 56-57, 80
Photo: Dan Leung, M+, Hong Kong
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Photo: Ray Leung @ TR Concept & Visual
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70
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71
Photo: Mak Cheong-wai @ Moon 9 Image
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72
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76, 77 (bottom)
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77 (top right)
Photo: Michael CW Chiu

79, 100 (bottom)
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94 (top right)
Photo: Vincent Tsang

98
Courtesy of M+
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this publication.

49 (FL), 55, 58 (F)
W MEX> M+ R

49 (F), 52-54, 58 (L)
#5: Winnie Yeung @ Visual Voices

B R B M+ H

50-51, 56-57, 80
W REE> M+ FB

68
# 5. Ray Leung @ TR Concept & Visual

69

8. Daniel Démolky,” X —1W A Luc Depreitere,” Daniel Tchetchik,”

Estelle Hanania

70
WE: EEHe Moon 9 Image

71
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Financial Review
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Strong Revenue Growth despite Difficult Market Conditions

The financial year 2023/24 marked the first complete fiscal year post-pandemic. Despite
challenging market conditions, the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA" or
the “Authority”) demonstrated robust financial performance over this period.

During the financial year, the Authority has recorded strong revenue growth of 42%
year-on-year, from HK$746 million to HK$1,061 million. The West Kowloon Cultural District
("WestK" or the "District”) has welcomed 4.4 million visitors to its museums, performing
arts venues, and events. Its various venues have hosted more than 460 events organised by
external hirers. Utilisation rates of key performing arts venues — Grand Theatre of Xiqu Centre
and The Box of Freespace were close to 100%. Moreover, the occupancy of the commercial
leasing portfolio has increased to 96% as of 31 March 2024.

Business-to-business (“B2B”) revenue has grown by 35% year-on-year, from HK$385 million
to HK$518 million, with growth observed across all segments from fundraising to venue
hire and commercial leasing. Business-to-customer (“B2C") revenue has grown by 47%
year-on-year, from HK$168 million to HK$246 million, primarily driven by admission income.
Interest income has also seen a rise of 54% year-on-year, from HK$193 million to HK$297
million, having benefited from interest rate hikes and reflecting the Authority’s ongoing
effort on liquidity preservation through fiscal tightening. Gross receipts from F&B outlets have
grown by 22% year-on-year, and museum shops by 25%, with strong sales in December
2023 when WestK welcomed more than 450,000 visitors during the Christmas and New Year
holidays. This surge was due to the combined effect of the Hong Kong Tourism Board’s Hong
Kong Winterfest and pyrotechnic shows, along with WestK's first-ever Christmas Market.

The Authority’s strong revenue growth is underpinned by its long-term strategy of investing
in content, a key driver for visitation and revenue. More importantly, the Authority’'s content-
producing capabilities have enabled WestK to become a creator and exporter of intellectual
property (“IP”) and content to museums and performing arts venues outside Hong
Kong. Yayoi Kusama: 1945 to Now, the first Special Exhibition curated by M+, toured to
Guggenheim Museum Bilbao in Spain and the Serralves Museum in Porto, Portugal, in 2023
and 2024 respectively after closing in Hong Kong. With other exports of IP and content in the
pipeline, the Authority remains firmly committed to investing in end-to-end capacity building
and expanding its repertoire of self-produced and commissioned IP, laying the foundation for
WestK to establish itself as a global cultural institution.
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Cost Recovery Rates on Par with International Peers

FY2023-24 was the first financial year that M+ and Hong Kong Palace Museum (“"HKPM")
were both in full-year operation and the performing arts venues were operating in full
capacity, after Hong Kong has emerged from the prolonged Covid-19 pandemic. With
the strenuous cost control effort, the Authority has contained the increase in operating
expenditure at 12% year-on-year from HK$1,464 million to HK$1,639 million, while
delivering an expanding business portfolio, establishing its position in the international
cultural arena through initiatives like the highly successful Hong Kong International Cultural
Summit 2024, and receiving an increasing number of visitors across its venues including
the highly popular Art Park. As a result of these efforts and achievements, the Authority’s
underlying operating deficit has narrowed by 20% year-on-year from HK$718 million to
HK$578 million.

The robust financial performance was reflected in the improvement of the Authority's
cost recovery rate by 7 percentage points to 44% excluding interest income, and by
12 percentage points to 63% if interest income is counted. HKPM, M+, and the Performing
Arts Division have maintained cost recovery rates on par with the established cultural
institutions worldwide, at 67%, 42%, and 37% (2023: 44%, 46%, and 34%) respectively.
In particular, the extraordinary financial performance of HKPM signifies the strong appeal
of its blockbuster exhibitions to both corporate sponsors and audiences, underscoring the
importance of investing in content to build the brand and support the institution’s organic
growth.

Short-term Liquidity

In April 2024, the Authority completed the financial close of the re-financing of the
Sustainability-linked Loan (“SLL") of HK$5 billion and three-year tenor. The loan syndicate
comprises a total of ten banks from diverse geographies. The significant over-subscription has
demonstrated the banking community’s confidence in the Authority’s development prospects
and capability in fulfilling its mission.

As of 31 March 2024, the Authority’s cash and bank balances were HK$6.2 billion (2023:
HK$7.5 billion), including loan drawdown of HK$1 billion (2023: HK$1 billion). The Authority
will continue to uphold fiscal prudence in preserving liquidity to weather challenging market
conditions.
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Relaxation of the Enhanced Financial Arrangement

The West Kowloon Cultural District, a visionary, strategic investment by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR") Government, is one of the largest cultural
precincts in the world. An upfront endowment of HK$21.6 billion was approved in 2008
by the Legislative Council to implement the West Kowloon Cultural District project. To
provide additional resources for WKCDA to meet the funding needs to deliver and operate
the arts and cultural facilities, in 2016, the Government approved the Enhanced Financial
Arrangement (“EFA") for the West Kowloon Cultural District, under which the Authority was
granted the development rights for hotels, offices and residential (“HOR") portion of the
District. The EFA required WKCDA to collaborate with private developers under the “Build,
Operate and Transfer” (“BOT") model to develop the HOR projects and generate revenue
through sharing rental income.

In November 2022, the first public-private partnership (“PPP") project of the West Kowloon
Cultural District, the Artist Square Towers ("AST”) project, located at the heart of WestK, was
successfully awarded despite the challenging market conditions during the pandemic. The
AST project will provide approximately 62,435 square metres of Grade A office space and
2,500 square metres of retail and dining space, thus enabling WestK to solidify its status as
Hong Kong's new cultural business district.

Since the approval of the EFA in 2016, Hong Kong's business and operating environment has
undergone substantial changes. For WestK, the prolonged delay in the return of the works
sites in Zone 2 of the District occupied by the High Speed Rail (Hong Kong Section) project,
the sharp increase in construction costs, and the global impact of the pandemic which in turn
affects the demand for office spaces, has posed greater challenge to WKCDA. To address the
financial problem, the Authority submitted a proposal to the Government in 2023 to relax
the EFA for the West Kowloon Cultural District.

In July 2024, the HKSAR Government approved the relaxation of the EFA which permits the
sale of residential developments in Zone 2 of the District up to the limit approved under the
District’'s Development Plan (i.e. 20% of total gross floor area of the District). This approval
came with certain conditions pertaining to the scheduling and administration of residential
tenders, the tracking of residential tender proceeds, and certain financial control measures.
The relaxation of EFA will unleash and enhance the development potential of the HOR
portion of the District. In the short term, it provides the necessary conditions such that the
Authority can pursue various financing options; in the medium to long run, it will allow the
diversification of the HOR development models and hence the revenue streams. In addition,
the Authority will formulate and implement more innovative and progressive revenue
generation and commercialisation strategies with a view to increasing income and reducing
operating deficit.
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Long-term Financial Sustainability

WKCDA is committed to promoting Hong Kong's cultural and creative industries, creating a
vibrant cultural tourism landmark, and supporting the city’s development as an East-Meets-
West Centre for international cultural exchange. To achieve these goals, WestK will focus on
driving revenue generation and commercialisation. Capitalising on its exceptional connectivity
with the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“GBA”), home to a population
of 86 million, this development aims to cultivate a high-end cultural and creative cluster. Our
ongoing efforts will drive long-term industry growth and significantly enhance the economic
vibrancy of the neighbourhood, setting the stage for a dynamic and prosperous future.
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Financial Highlights (Consolidated)
MEHE (5%5)

2024 2023
Financial results for the year ended 31 March HK$ million HK$ million
BZE3AMBLEEZMEXE BEEET BEEET
Income WA
— Underlying (note(a)) — &K (F# () 1,061 : 746
— Reported — 2% 1,220 : 867
Expenditure pI% (1,639) (1,464)
Deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance costs REHITE  BHEERERARRIRTE
— Underlying (note(a)) — B (Ff(a) (578) (718)
— Reported — 2% (419) (597)
Deficit for the year FERT
— Underlying — &R (1.336) ; (1,373)
— Reported — 2% (1,336) : (1,373)
2024 2023
Financial position as at 31 March HK$ million HK$ million
R3A31H ZHBARR E¥EET BEEST
Total assets AERE 28,005 29,017
Total liabilities BEHE (9.242) (8,917)
Total equity LSk ot 18,763 | 20,100
Note: E53: /3
(@) Donation income for construction has been excluded from both the underlying income and underlying (a) EARPARKEHNE - BHEERBMERARN 2 EARFHTERTIEFHEDN
deficit before depreciation, amortisation and finance costs, because such income represents the BEEA  BAEZBARKELTERAES - LAELBEEAABEAENTT
amortisation of deferred income to match the depreciation of the relevant asset funded by the Eoga il BERaMTEBIEReHE -
donation. Both the amortised income and depreciation are non-cash in nature during the operation
period.
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THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EXZRREREERE

Structure of WKCDA
EERAMERE

WKCDA BOARD
BAXEEER
B=R

&

=
F
—

Internal Audit External Affairs District Facility Services District Safety and Projects Business Finance
Department Department Department Security Department Division Development Division Services Division
AERGE HIHEBH EHREEHH BHEL2RREH IR BRRE BBEHRE
Chief Audit Director, External Affairs General Manager, Chief Safety and Chief Projects Chief Business Chief Financial
Executive o EisEE District Facility Services Security Officer Officer Development Officer
REESES EHRBEHELE Z2EREEE BRIERE Officer BRABEE
BEEBRRES
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M+ ACQUISITIONS
COMMITTEE
M+ BEZRE
Corporate Legal and Board Performing Arts M+ Hong Kong
Development Division Secretarial Division Division Palace Museum
BRERE EREBR REDIE EEHELEDE
EBENER
Chief Corporate Executive Director, Museum Museum Director,
Development Officer Gengra! Counsel Performing Arts Director, M+ HKPM
ERRRERAE SRR RARSMTHEE M+ BIEEE §%&E§E}t§1t§mi§

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY At BEEEF 009
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 B $R%



010

Governance Report
CRGE &

Board Functions and Conduct of Business
BEERBEEREE

The Board of WKCDA (the “Board”) was established on 23 October 2008 as the governing
and executive body of WKCDA in accordance with Section 6 of the WKCDA Ordinance. The
current Board Members were appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in October 2022 and February 2024. Mr Henry Tang Ying-
yen was appointed by the Chief Executive as Chairman of the Board with effect from 1
October 2017. In addition to the Chairman, the Board consists of one Vice Chairman, 14
Non-Public Officer Members, three Public Officer Members and the Chief Executive Officer of
WKCDA, who serves as an Ex-Officio Member. The Board has provided valuable knowledge,
expertise and advice for WKCDA to better discharge its statutory duties and oversee the
development of the District.

The Board adopts a set of Standing Orders and a Code of Conduct to regulate its proceedings
and ensure good corporate governance. The Standing Orders regulate matters related to
Board proceedings and business, and the Code of Conduct sets out the standard of conduct
expected of all Board Members, including the control over the acceptance of advantages and
entertainment, the management of conflict of interest, the use of confidential or privileged
information and public funds, and the avoidance of misuse of their capacity as Board
Members. Board Members are required to follow the requirements stipulated in the Code of
Conduct when undertaking their duties.

Board and Committee Members are required to disclose all registrable interests, as set out in
the Standing Orders, both on their first appointment and at the beginning of each calendar
year after their appointment, in accordance with Section 38(1) of the WKCDA Ordinance.
They are also required to declare an interest if they become aware of the existence of one
not previously disclosed, or after the occurrence of any change to an interest previously
disclosed. The register relating to disclosure of interest is made available for inspection by the
public at the WKCDA office.

2023/24 was a busy and fruitful year for the Board, during which five meetings were held.
As the Authority continued with its development programme and oversaw operation of the
venues, the Board'’s focuses have gradually included more business development/operational
matters in addition to construction/project development. Some of the issues discussed by the
Board during the reporting year included:

e Implementation strategy for Public Private Partnership Development in Zone 2 of the
District;

e Works related to the remaining parts of the Integrated Basement and Public Infrastructure
Works to enable the topside cultural and commercial developments in the District;

e First sponsorship at the District level; and

e Financial matters such as re-financing, annual Business Plan and Corporate Plan, Key
Performance Indicators, etc.

Members of the public can watch live webcasts of the open sessions of Board meetings on
the WestK website.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A Xt BEERR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 BF k%

AANMIEEEREER([EER)) RAALXMLEEERRMNE AL
1THAKE - R 2008F 10 A23BREBE(ANVLEEE BIEH) F 615k
o REEERKEN2022F10 A K2024F2 BRBEAEIITHETT
BEEEE - BEEFLANR2017FI1081BETREEZEIAESER
FE -BERN BEREE—UBEE 4UE2BAER=MA
BAE  EERITHRAHRAEAKE -EZRREUHBENNE &
X¥EANES ZTEEREXRZWRITATHE  TEBRANEE -

EERUCERFR) KTATADRESH - URREERARTH
BREER (BRER)ABETEETRIALIAEHEARNER
T RTADIEMEEZRRERANTRIEE  ATREREE
EMaE LT BEMNEEREN  ERAETARREERRAT
L%%ﬁﬁﬂ:i%ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂ%é  BEERKEBARBITRTAD STHRNRERT
)ity °

RB(ANACRERBEN)FEIMNIE  EEZRREZEGKEARE
REZERIERERNE - ABEFHAR  RE(ZRTHR)HFHH
FBERERNNERR - MEBEEFRERBENNEHAERELEANE
BEONEBEREANER BEERRZEERETAENHHNET
BR - ARAAEEERRFREMAMBRELM -

HEERME @ 202324FERE T AWELEEN—F - FRETAEX
CHE CNECERHEHERTAVERSHEE EERMIIEE
SR TRE HERREIN  EBRETEZERRE EEEK - ®E
FERN EZRNTRIERE

s BEAXLERF2EHNDFLESIERR BEKRE

o HEAMBERAENHELBERRRBHEMBNIIZIEAR - £FA
Nt EZER UL M RIA R S AEE

s AAXLEAERESED : &

o MBEE PINERE  FEXBABNEZSE  ABIERSE -

ABREBANCEBHABEEERERARAINE LEE -



Governance Report
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Biographies of Current Board Members

REESEREE

Chairman

EFE

The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
BRELE, REFMBE, GBS, JP

Mr Henry Tang is currently a Standing Committee Member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, President of The Légion
d'Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter and Chairman of the Shanghai Tang Junyuan Education Foundation. Mr Tang served as a Member of the Legislative Council and the
Provisional Legislative Council of Hong Kong for seven years from 1991, and was a Member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR from 1997 to 2011. In 2002, he was
appointed Secretary for Commerce, Industry and Technology of the HKSAR Government. He was promoted to Financial Secretary in 2003, and later served as the Chief
Secretary for Administration from 2007 to 2011. He was Chairman of the Board of WKCDA from 2008 to 2011. Before joining the HKSAR Government in 2002, Mr Tang
was a leading industrialist in Hong Kong. He served as Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and as a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce from 1995 to 2001.

In 1991, Mr Tang was appointed the Justice of the Peace. In 2000 he was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government, and in 2009 he received Hong Kong's
highest honour, the Grand Bauhinia Medal.

BRFLEEABREZEBIBFEZ + The Légion d'Honneur Club Hong Kong Chapter=/E & FBEBEREFESSRER - BAEB 199158 - EELFREFELER
MR E®E - F1997FE201N F R AT BHENTREITREHAKE - 2002F @ EZTAETSEITHRERFIELREEBBE © 2003FEH A& B A7
£ WHE2007FE201MN FHREZTARBERRER © b B R 2008FZ201M FHMHAFRNVELRERBEEREE - BLEE2002FMABTA - RABHGH
THER  MIE1995F EZ2001 FHREAEREIXBE IR AEEEHSRESELE -

ERAEON FREER/ATMHL - N2000FEFERNTREBFRESENES  UN2009FERBEERRERENBHE
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HiawmE

Biographies of Current Board Members (Continued)

REESRHEE (&)

Vice Chairman

BEE

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
REBEE, KEFEE, GBS, JP

A graduate of Pomona College in California, Mr Bernard Chan is the Chairman and President of the publicly-listed Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Chairman of Asia
Insurance Company Limited. He is also the Chairman of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, and an advisor to Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited. He sits on the
boards of several local and overseas companies in financial services, and is a Director of Bumrungrad Hospital Public Company Limited in Thailand.

Mr Chan has a long record of public service. He is the Chairperson of the Hong Kong Council of Social Service and a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. A patron of the
arts, he is the Chairman of Tai Kwun Culture & Arts Company Limited. He is also the Chairman of Our Hong Kong Foundation, and Chairman of the Hong Kong Chronicles
Institute.

Mr Chan was a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s Congress of The People’s Republic of China from 2008 to 2023, and the Convenor of the Non-Official Members
of the Executive Council of HKSAR from 2017 to 2022. He is a former Non-Official Member of Hong Kong's Executive Council (from 2004 to 2009 and from 2012 to 2022),
and a former Member of Hong Kong's Legislative Council (from 1998 to 2008) representing the insurance industry.

His other past positions include Council Chair of Lingnan University, Chairman of the Board of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited, Chairman of the Council for Sustainable
Development, Chairman of the Antiquities Advisory Board, Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, and Chairman of the two Standing
Committees on Disciplined Services and Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Mr Chan has had honorary degrees conferred on him by Lingnan University, City University of Hong Kong, Open University of Hong Kong, and Savannah College of Art and
Design. He is a Trustee Emeritus of Pomona College.

Mr Chan was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2002. He was awarded Commander (3rd Class) of the Most Noble Order of the Crown of Thailand in 2004. In 2006, he
was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government, and in 2020 he received Hong Kong's highest honour, the Grand Bauhinia Medal.

BRE B EEEENEREMIMNPomona College ” MBTMNEREBTERLHLEMNRREIRF  TRAKBATERERSIFE  BART (PE)EM - U ABRAHR
BINEBRRERABTLFEAFRREGEAREGRABETEZTEKE -

RERT EREETS RN VEE - EFBHEREBEIE TEESTEERNE  KEXCENERQREE BEHEFEESIEREEMIEPOLIE -

FRAEAN2008F E2023F MBI BEARRRASEBRENARK - N2004FE2009F K2012E 2022 FHIBWEE AT EZHIEE ST E - 2017F £ 2022 F HifE
EITRESHIIEETHKEBEA ° 1998F E2008FHHE » 2R EXRBANDESHE -

RELBEABFEFABRES LR  BEEMENLENREERER HERRZESLR LUBAZESIR BLELREZAZTESIR  FDEA
BHLERABHFELRBGEHEBEZESIRES -

BREESGREBHAR  EERMAR - EBARKRBERELNBM R RERREBE LR o 1LIMFAPomona College R ERE -

PRI 2002 48 8 KP4+ 147 + 2004 FEZRE B T8 2 Commander (3rd Class) of the Most Noble Order of the Crown of Thailand ° A2006 FEE B RI1TH &
BEERSEFAESE  BR2Q0FERZSRSENALAYE -
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Biographies of Current Board Members (Continued)

REESRHEE (&)

Members (Non-Public Officers)
RE (ELBAR)

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, JP
ELEFE L, GBS, JP

Dr Roy Chung is the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr Chung holds a Doctorate degree in Engineering from the University of Warwick, UK, and a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from City University of Macau. He
has been awarded Honorary Doctorates by the University of Newcastle, Australia, the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (Business Administration), Lingnan University (Business
Administration) and the University of Warwick, UK (Science), and Doctor of Business Administration honoris causa by the University of Macau. He was further awarded
Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the City University of Hong Kong and Doctor of Business Administration, honoris causa by the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University in 2023. Since 2010, he has also held the position of Industrial Professor at the University of Warwick, UK.

Dr Chung is dedicated to the advancement of industry and to youth development, and has been extensively involved in public and community services. He has recently
been appointed as Chairman of the Standing Committee on Youth Skills Competition in January 2024. He was Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries, and
is currently its Honorary President. He is also currently a Court Member of City University of Hong Kong, and served as Chairman of the Vocational Training Council, and as
Court Chairman and Deputy Council Chairman of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Dr Chung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2011 by the Hong Kong SAR Government, and the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2017. He was also appointed a Justice of the
Peace in 2005. In 1997, he was one of the winners in that year’s Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong, and in 2014 was recognised as Hong Kong's Industrialist of the
Year.
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Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SRR 4, SBS, JP

Mr Henry Fan has a long record of public service in Hong Kong. He is currently Chairman of the Hospital Authority. Mr Fan has taken on many other public roles over the
years, including as Non-Official Member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR, Chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority, Chairman of the Standing
Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service, Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures Commission, Independent Non-Executive Director
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, and a Member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee. Mr Fan is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited and of HKR International Limited. He is also the Managing Director of Hong Kong Glory Limited, a family investment company, and Chairman of the Fan
Family Charitable Trust, a charitable foundation.

Mr Fan was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2001 and was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 1998.
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Mr Glenn FOK

ERBEE

Mr Glenn Fok is an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited since June 2019. He is a Senior Consultant of Moelis &
Company, a leading global independent investment bank listed on the New York Stock Exchange. In addition, he is a Member of the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong
Philharmonic Society Limited. In December 2022, Mr Fok was appointed as a Committee Member of the Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme.

Mr Fok was a former Vice-Chairman of UBS Corporate Client Services in Asia. During his 32-year career in investment banking and corporate finance, he was involved
in leading many landmark initial public offerings, domestic and cross-border mergers and acquisitions, complex debt and equity issuances, corporate restructurings and
reorganisations, and strategic financial advisory transactions. Prior to joining UBS, Mr Fok was the Head of Investment Banking Services and Joint Head of Corporate
Finance of Schroders Asia Limited. He served as a Member of the Board of Bank of America (Asia) Limited, the Securities and Futures Commission Committee on Real Estate
Investment Trusts, the Board of Trustees of United College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee and Member of the Council of the
Education University of Hong Kong.
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The Honourable Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP
ERAIES, P

Mr Kenneth Fok is a Deputy of the HKSAR to the National People’s Congress, Vice Chairman of the All-China Youth Federation, Member of the China Federation of Literary
and Art Circles, Member of the Culture Commission under the Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau, and Member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR (the Sports,
Performing Arts, Culture and Publication functional constituency).

Mr Fok is currently the Vice President of the Fok Ying Tung Group, overseeing the Group's investments in Hong Kong and Mainland China. He has always been a staunch
supporter of culture and arts development. He is currently Chairman of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council, Executive Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation
of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, and Advisory Committee Member of Jockey Club CPS Ltd (the operator of Tai Kwun). In 2013, Mr Fok founded the
Guangzhou Nansha Cultural Association in Guangzhou, and in 2019, he organised the Guangzhou-Hong Kong-Macao Parent-Child Art Carnival in Nansha, Guangzhou to
promote the creation of a Greater Bay Area cultural and arts exchange platform. In 2021, Mr Fok initiated a cross-sector collaboration project called “The ARThletes” which
is enhancing interactions between artists and athletes. In 2023, Mr Fok founded THE BRIDGE+ LIVING ART SPACE to integrate art into life and strive to create a harmonious
and inclusive space.

Mr Fok was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2016.
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Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
RBEBLE

As a professional dealer of classical Chinese furniture, Mr Andy Hei has been working on the research, identification, and conservation of huanghuali and zitan furniture
from the Ming and Qing Dynasties. He founded Fine Art Asia in 2006 and INK ASIA in 2015. In recent years, he has also played a key role in facilitating collaboration with
Art Basel Hong Kong. Furthermore, in 2015, he established the Hong Kong Antiques and Art Galleries Association to promote the development of the industry in various
circumstances. As the founder and director of Fine Art Asia, Mr Hei is committed to exploring the possibilities between classic, contemporary, and future in art. From NFTs
and the Metaverse to Al technology, he leads Fine Art Asia in continuing to present a broader and richer artistic vision to its audience.

Mr Hei served as a Council Member of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council from 2017 to 2022. In 2018, he was appointed Honorary Advisor of the International
Craftsmen Association, and in 2019, he became a Trustee of the Friends of Hong Kong Museum of Art. In 2020, Mr Hei became a Non-Official Member of the Advisory
Committee on Admission of Quality Migrants and Professionals under the Immigration Department of the HKSAR Government. In 2022, he was appointed as the Board
Director of The Ink Society. In 2023, he took on several roles, including being a member of the Culture Commission under the Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau, a member
of the Museum Advisory Committee under the Leisure and Cultural Services Department and a member of the Art Sub-committee under the Museum Advisory Committee.
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Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
FFEEZ L, MH, JP

Ms Tennessy Hui is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. She studied law and was trained as a solicitor in Hong Kong. Ms Hui is a keen supporter of community services. She
is currently a Council Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, Chairman of the Liquor Licensing Board, a member of the Hong Kong Examinations
and Assessment Authority, a Non-Official Member of the Assessment Committee for the Funding Scheme to Support Transitional Housing Projects by Non-government
Organisations, and Chairman of the Fishermen Claims Appeal Board (Trawl Ban) and Fishermen Claims Appeal Board (Marine Works). She is also an Observer of the
Independent Police Complaints Council.

Ms Hui was awarded the Medal of Honour in 2016 and appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2011.
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Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP
BHE LA, SBS, SC, P

Mr Jat Sew-tong has been a barrister in private practice in Hong Kong since 1990. He graduated from the London School of Economics and Political Science in 1987 and the
University of Oxford in 1989. He was called to the Bar of England and Wales in 1988 and to the Hong Kong Bar in 1989. In 2002, at the age of 36, he was appointed Senior
Counsel. He served as Recorder of the Court of First Instance of the High Court from 2006 to 2014.

Mr Jat is currently the Vice-Chairman of Hong Kong Sinfonietta Limited, a member of the Research Council of the Our Hong Kong Foundation, a Board Member of the
Hospital Authority and a member of Disciplinary Chair Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission. He was the Chairman of the Independent Police Complaints
Council from 2008 to 2014, and Chairperson of the Minimum Wage Commission from 2011 to 2017. His other public offices included Chairman of the Unsolicited Electronic
Messages (Enforcement Notices) Appeal Board, Chairman of the Criminal and Law Enforcement Injuries Compensation Boards, Chairman of the Review Committee on Trust
Fund for SARS, Deputy Chairman of the Administrative Appeals Board, and Deputy Chairman of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance).

Mr Jat was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2014 and appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2012.

RAEREA190FRETERANE - BEENR1987F R 1989F D Sl EMBEEROA B M RABRFER L RREBEB LB - R0 1988 F ARG HMER
HESKREMER - WN1989FAEE BB REMER - BEEN2002F A6 2 I ERERERKER - WHR2006FE2014F HERSFERRINVEEFREE °

BEARRBELIRELER LR BRETEESMAZESSE BREERKE  ULEALHEEBRERZES iﬂfiﬁﬁuﬂiféé K& - B EBLERE
FERIBHRFEZEGIF (2008F22014F) RFEETIEZESIF (201MFE2017F) - HMABMBEFEEEFAL (ITBA) LFZESIF  FHRIEEC
BEZEETIE [DLIEEELBRZEGIR TRLHEERREIREEARB LFZERRTIRES -

BRAER014FEBERBEEMNE WHR2012F B ZE AR FMMT -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XL BEIER
ANNUAL REPORT 2023/ 24 BAFE k%

019



020

Governance Report
HiawmE

Biographies of Current Board Members (Continued)

REESRHEE (&)

Members (Non-Public Officers)
RE (ERBAS)

Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
FEHLL, P

Ms Rose Lee is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of Swire Pacific Limited and CK Asset Holdings Limited. She is also a member of the Election Committee
of the 13th National People's Congress, Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member of the Board of
Governors of Saint Francis University and Caritas Bianchi College of Careers. She has previously held the positions of Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive of Hang Seng Bank
Limited, Group General Manager of HSBC Holdings plc, Director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, an Independent Non-Executive Director of
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited and MTR Corporation Limited, and Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Hang Seng University of Hong Kong. She also served as Vice
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, Board Member and Deputy Chairman of the Executive Committee of The Community Chest of Hong Kong, and a member
of the Financial Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Ms Lee was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2014.
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Mr LIU Che-ning

BEERL

Mr Liu Che-ning is a career investment banker who has worked at leading international financial firms since 1993. He is currently the Vice Chair of Global Banking at HSBC.

Mr Liu started his career as a New York-qualified corporate lawyer in New York and Tokyo with Davis Polk & Wardwell, for whom he worked from 1989 to 1993.

In 1993, Mr Liu joined Morgan Stanley as an investment banker, where he worked for 16 years. He ran the company’s Hong Kong investment banking business from 2001
to 2009 as Managing Director and head of Hong Kong Investment Banking. During his tenure there, he advised on and handled some of the largest and most important
transactions in Hong Kong, including the listing of the HKEX in 2000, the merger of MTRC and KCRC, and the first issue of the HKSAR sovereign bonds in the international
capital markets.

In 2009, Mr Liu joined HSBC, becoming its Co-Head of Global Banking, Asia-Pacific in 2014. Mr Liu currently handles some of HSBC's most important corporate, financial
and government clients in Asia, advising on strategy and key issues and delivering solutions from HSBC's comprehensive suite of Global Banking and Markets products.

In 1987, Mr Liu graduated from Oxford University with a Bachelor's degree in Jurisprudence (First Class Honours), and in 1989, he was awarded a Master of Laws degree
from Harvard Law School.
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Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
hmEZt, MH

Ms Yolanda Ng is actively involved in public service and community cultural groups. She serves as General Secretary of Cultural Power, Co-Chairperson of the Cultural and
Art Committee of the Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association, Committee Member of Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong and Advisor to
the Our Hong Kong Foundation, and is a Member of the Hong Kong Public Governance Association. She also holds a number of public service positions, including being a
Member of the Mega Arts and Cultural Events Committee and of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings).

Ms Ng was awarded the Medal of Honour in 2013.
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Mr Paulo PONG Kin-yee, BBS, JP
[EEEE B4 L4, BBS, JP

Mr Paulo Pong is the Founder and Managing Director of Altaya Group. He is also a Co-Founder and Executive Director of the Classified Group of restaurants, which is listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr Pong'’s activities in the arts, cultural and tourism sphere include roles as Chairman to the Board of Ocean Park Corporation, a Member of Hong Kong Film Development
Council and Chairman of the Governing Board of JCCAC.

Mr Pong is also a Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Hong Kong-Europe Business Council, Honorary Court Member of Hong Kong Baptist University,
Vice President of The Hong Kong Chinese Importers and Exporters Association, a Member of Former Directors Committee and Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong, and Chairman of the Spirit of Hong Kong Awards Judging Panel.

Mr Pong obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Materials Science and Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He has been awarded the honours of
Chevalier de I'Ordre de Mérite Agricole, Chevalier de I'Ordre des Arts et des Lettres and Chevalier de I'Ordre National du Mérite for his dedication in building links between
France and Hong Kong in business and tourism, the arts, and in culture and education.

Mr Pong was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2024 and was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2018.
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Ms Dee POON Chu-ying

BEMELL

Ms Dee Poon is the President of Brands and Retailing for Tessellation Group, where she also serves as a Director.

She is a Board Member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council’'s Hong Kong — Europe Business Council and a Member of ASEAN Foundation Advisory Council.

Ms Poon is also involved with the Y.L. Yang Foundation, Asia House, Mind HK, The Conference Board's Asia Corporate Leadership Council, Harvard University's Asia
Center International Advisory Committee, Oxford Said’s Ownership Project Family Advisory Council, Bloom KKCA Academy, and the Global Steering Committee of Social
Entrepreneurship to Spur Health. In 2014, she was recognised as a Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum and a Fellow of the Aspen Institute’s China Fellowship
Program.

Ms Poon is actively engaged in the arts, serving on the International Councils of Tate and The Museum of Modern Art (New York). She is also a Council Member of the China
Arts Foundation and a Board Member of Asia Art Archive. Her short film “An Exercise in Futility” was screened at the Beijing International Film Festival and the Cannes Film
Festival.

Also, Ms Poon had editorial roles at iLook Magazine and Modern Weekly, focusing on sustainability. Her retail venture DYSEMEVAS in 2008 showcased emerging Chinese
design.

She holds a BA degree in philosophy from Harvard University.
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Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
BAZ LT, SBS, SC, JP

Ms Winnie Tam is a Senior Counsel of the Hong Kong Bar, a practising barrister, an independent international arbitrator and the Chairman of Des Voeux Chambers. She was
elected Chairman of the Hong Kong Bar Association from 2015 to 2017. She specialises in intellectual property, civil and commercial dispute resolution and international
arbitration and also holds qualification to practise in England and Wales, Singapore and the Greater Bay Area of Mainland China. She was a Recorder of the Court of First
Instance, High Court of HKSAR from 2015 to 2023.

Ms Tam currently serves as a member of the Law Reform Commission, and as the Chairman of the Communications Authority. She is a member of the Chief Executive's
Council of Advisers, the Independent Commission on Remuneration for Members of the Executive Council and the Legislature and Officials under the Political Appointment
System of the HKSAR, and Vice-Chairman of the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Society Limited. Ms Tam served as Chairman of the Performing Arts
Committee under the Board of WKCDA between 2020 to 2022. She is a former member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the ICAC Advisory Committee on Corruption,
and the Council and Court of Hong Kong Baptist University.

Ms Tam was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2018 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2020.
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Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BERZL

Ms Catherine Yen is a practicing accountant. She is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

She serves as Honorary Treasurer for the Federation of HK Jiangsu Community Organisations and was a member of the 12th Jiangsu Province People’s Political Consultative
Conference.

From 2005 to 2010, she was a council member of the Education University of Hong Kong and was a member of the Hospital Governing Committee for the Queen Mary
Hospital and the Queen Elizabeth Hospital from 2011 to 2020 and 2013 to 2015, respectively. She was also a co-opted member of the Main Tender Board for the Hospital
Authority from 2017 to 2019.

From 2014 to 2019, she was a member of the School Allocation Committee under the Education Bureau. She was also a member of the Advisory Committee on Legal Advice
for Unrepresented Litigants and a member of Administrative Appeals Board from 2016 to 2022 and from 2012 to 2018, respectively.

BEAXRTRRXGHE  RERBEER LTS NREE RS MME LM ASRE L RS -
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BALTR2014EE2019F AU ERETRENEEZEGNKE - MW N 2016 FEE 2022 F HEEZMRRNEZEZAEMEESKE - URA2012FE2018F HETK
FHREZEEKE -

026 WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A Xt BEERR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 BF k%



Governance Report
CREE Y

Biographies of Current Board Members (Continued)
REESREE (#)

Members (Public Officers)

RE (ABAER)

The Honourable Kevin YEUNG Yun-hung, GBS, JP

Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism
XIERERKERRB RS BELE, GBS, JP

Mr Kevin Yeung was appointed Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism of the HKSAR Government on 1 July 2022.

Previous to that, Mr Yeung took up the post of Under Secretary for Education in November 2012, and was Secretary for Education from July 2017 to June 2022. Before
becoming a Politically Appointed Official, he worked for the Government since 1992 and was promoted to Administrative Officer Staff Grade C in 2004.

Mr Yeung has served in a number of bureaux and departments over the years, including the Food and Health Bureau, the Home Affairs Bureau, the Kowloon City District
Office and the Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office in Sydney.

Mr Yeung began his career in the private sector before joining the Government.
B ER2022F7 B1BEELEE RIRERBR °
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REESRHEE (&)

Members (Public Officers)

RE (ABAR)

The Honourable Bernadette LINN Hon-ho, JP
Secretary for Development

REARREERL L, P

Ms Bernadette Linn was appointed Secretary for Development on 1 July 2022.

Ms Linn joined the Administrative Service in 1989 and rose to the rank of Administrative Officer Staff Grade A1 in 2019. She has served in various bureaux and departments,
including appointments as Deputy Secretary for Education in 2005, Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Treasury) in 2008, Private Secretary to the Chief

Executive in 2010, Director of Lands in 2012 and Permanent Secretary for Development (Planning and Lands) in 2017.

Ms Linn holds a Bachelor Degree from the University of Hong Kong (major in Literature) and a Master Degree from the University of Michigan, Ann Arbor (major in
Communication Studies).

BESZLTR2NF7TAIBEEREREE -
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Biographies of Current Board Members (Continued)

REESRHEE (&)

Members (Public Officers)
RE(RBAER)
The Honourable Christopher HUI Ching-yu, GBS, JP

Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury

HMREBREHBBRIEFEE, GBS, P

Mr Christopher Hui was appointed Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury of the HKSAR Government on 22 April 2020.

Mr Hui was an Administrative Officer in the Government from 1999 to 2003, during which he served in the Economic Development Branch, the Office of the Government of
the HKSAR in Beijing, and the Home Affairs Department. After leaving the Government in 2003 he moved into the banking sector, working for Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited for over 10 years. He was appointed the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council from 2019 to 2020.

Mr Hui holds a Bachelor and an Master (Hon) Degrees in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the University of Oxford, and Master of Business Administration Degree
from INSEAD. He attended the Stanford Executive Programme (SEP).

FEFAER2020F4 AN HRHEEMEEEREERRE °
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Membership of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (2023/24)
BAAXCEEERREERME BE(2023/24)

Chairman & Vice Chairman BIE /&
The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRFRE, REFBE, GBS, P BRES BS54, REFIZE, GBS, JP

Members (Non-Public Officers) X & (EABEAS)

Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, JP Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
EEFiE L, GBS, JP FEH L, P

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP Mr LIU Che-ning

SeRE A, SBS, JP BEELELE

Mr Glenn FOK Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
BBkt hBEE 2+, MH

The Honourable Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP Mr Paulo PONG Kin-yee, BBS, JP
ERMIZEE, P BEERRSEAE, BBS, JP

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang Ms Dee POON Chu-ying

BEE LA ERSR L

Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
PR LT, MH, JP ER 2L+, SBS, SC, JP

Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BIAESLE, SBS, SC, IP EmEALL
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Membership of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (2023/24) (Continued)
BAANICBRERREERKE FE(2023/24) (&)

Members (Public Officers) X & (AR AE)

The Honourable Kevin YEUNG Yun-hung, GBS, JP
Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism

15 EHE S &, GBS, JP

(LB E Rk R BH&E

Alternate 1R ##:

Mr Joe WONG Chi-cho, GBS, JP

Permanent Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism
EEMELE, GBS, JP
MtEERIRERFEWER

The Honourable Bernadette LINN Hon-ho, JP
Secretary for Development

BERLL, P

ERBRE

Alternate 1E##:

Mr David LAM Chi-man, JP
Under Secretary for Development
WX, IP

ERBEIBE

Mr Ricky LAU Chun-kit, JP

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
BIE LR E, P

EERBEAMER (I%)

The Honourable Christopher HUI Ching-yu, GBS, JP
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
FFIEF %4, GBS, JP

MREBRERRRE

Alternate 1&##:

Mr Joseph CHAN Ho-lim, JP

Under Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury

BB &, IP

M EBREBRBRIBR

Ex-Officio Member & A K &
Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA

HITRER L, GBS

BEAXLRER BITHEAE
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BREEABBE

Chief Executive Officer
TR

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
BERELZ L, GBS

Mrs Betty Fung was appointed by the Board as Chief Executive Officer of WKCDA with effect from 15 October 2021.

Mrs Fung joined the Administrative Service of the Hong Kong Government in 1986. Since then, she had served in various bureaux and departments, including as Press
Secretary to Chief Secretary and Financial Secretary, Assistant Director of Trade, Deputy Government Chief Information Officer and Deputy Secretary for Education and
Manpower.

In 2007, Mrs Fung was appointed Director of Information Services who was the Government’s chief advisor on public relations and publicity matters. She was appointed
Director of Leisure and Cultural Services from 2009 to 2014 to oversee the development and management of cultural, sports and recreation facilities in Hong Kong including
museums, public libraries and performing arts venues. As Permanent Secretary for Home Affairs from July 2014 to April 2018, she oversaw the formulation of culture, sports
and district administration policies and was actively involved in the implementation of the West Kowloon Cultural District project including the Hong Kong Palace Museum
project.

Mrs Fung was Head, Policy Innovation and Co-ordination Office from April 2018 to November 2020 prior to her secondment to WKCDA as Acting Chief Executive Officer
between December 2020 and June 2021.

Mrs Fung has been awarded the Chevalier de I'Ordre National du Mérite for her contributions towards fostering cultural cooperation and exchange between France and
Hong Kong. She has been elected Executive Committee member of the Association of Asia Pacific Performing Arts Centres (2023 to 2025). She was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in 2021.

BREMELTERAXEEEREERZTATIERITHRAR,  M2021F10A15BEH -
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EHE - TABEEBESEEAA RS BREERELEYEER -

B ENR2018F4 AE2020F 11 AEEERAFNERENSELE - ENMABNLMELEEERZA - BRI N2020F12 AE2021F6 AERER N LREERBE
ABEITREH -
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Biographies of Senior Management (Continued)
SREEASRE (&)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer (District Development)
BfTBAR (BEHER)

Ms Wendy GAN Kim See
HEEzt

Ms Wendy Gan was appointed by the Board as Deputy Chief Executive Officer (District Development) of WKCDA with effect from 25 October 2021.

Ms Gan oversees the development and delivery of the infrastructure, arts and cultural facilities, and supporting facilities in WestK. She also has lead responsibility for
formulating the overarching strategies for driving business development and for the hotel, office, residential as well as retail, dining and entertainment facilities of the District.

Ms Gan was the Executive Director of Pacific Century Premium Developments responsible for the overall sales and marketing strategies of the company’s property assets in
Greater China, Japan and Southeast Asia. Before joining Pacific Century Premium Developments, Ms Gan headed the sales and marketing teams of Swire Properties across its
residential, office and retail portfolio.

AAXRERREERETHS XTI REERENTRER (RFHER) - EHR2021F 10925 £ -

BATEEREAAMNERER  EEMNXERRENERMBE  TEAGITRERE  EPEANERE  PAZE  FE UKZE  EHRTHEHEBOEE -
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SREEASRE (&)

Chief Corporate Development Officer

EERBRRARE
Ms Joyce HO
AEMLZ+

Ms Joyce Ho is responsible for the overall corporate development of the Authority. She oversees three departments within the Corporate Development Division: Development
Department, Human Resources Department and General Procurement and Administration Department. Ms Ho joined WKCDA in March 2022 as Director, Development and
Chief Executive Officer's Office.

Ms Ho joined the Administrative Service of the Hong Kong Government in 1995. Over the years, she had held various senior positions in different bureaux and departments,
including Deputy Head, Policy Innovation and Co-ordination Office and Deputy Secretary, Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau. Before joining WKCDA, Ms Ho was the
Principal Hong Kong Economic and Trade Representative, Tokyo.

MEMLTABEERRNERBBER  ZERBERETHR - ANBERMRBREBITH (@ - 0202263 AMAERRE @ EEARIKTRESRRLAER
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MZEM1995FMATBRNBBBER - EREZFR  TEETRRRRBEAMPIHEZERL - EFEERRANERENSRBAE  ARBHIRAEERE
WER - EMAEERBA - ARTEEEFEHERALEEZEREREK -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BAX Lt BEER
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 B R4



Governance Report
CREE Y

Biographies of Senior Management (Continued)

SREBEAERERE (&)

Museum Director, M+

M+EYEER

Ms Suhanya RAFFEL
gLt

Ms Suhanya Raffel leads M+ and oversees all museum activities, including acquisitions, programming, collections care, development, research, institutional collaborations,
and museum operations. She joined M+ as Executive Director in 2016 and was appointed Museum Director of M+ in 2019. Since joining M+, Ms Raffel has led the museum
towards achieving its mission, broadening the institution’s international reach and championing its deep connection with its local community.

Ms Raffel previously served as Deputy Director of the Art Gallery of New South Wales in Sydney from 2013 to 2016. Additionally, she held various positions, including Deputy
Director of Curatorial at the Queensland Art Gallery | Gallery of Modern Art in Brisbane from 2002 to 2012. In this role, she played a vital role in building the contemporary
Asia Pacific collection and leading the gallery’s Asia Pacific Triennial of Contemporary Art.

Ms Raffel currently holds the position of the President of CIMAM, the International Committee for Museums and Collections of Modern Art (2023-2025), and has
been on the CIMAM Board since 2016. She is also a trustee of the Geoffrey Bawa Trust and the Lunuganga Trust in Sri Lanka, and a member of the Bizot group.
In recognition of her contributions, the French government awarded her the title of Chevalier in the Ordre des Arts et des Lettres in 2020, and she was named the
2022 Sydney University Alumni Achievement Awardee for Cultural Contribution.

ERRLTREM+MBR - BETREFEVESRSBNEY  SRWEEE  RIAHE  EEER EEFENR IR BREAFENENEZE - 0RN20165F
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SREEABRE (&)

Museum Director, Hong Kong Palace Museum

BEERELBYEER

Dr Louis NG Chi-wa
REHEBEL

Dr Louis Ng has been the inaugural Museum Director of the Hong Kong Palace Museum since August 2019, overseeing the planning and construction of the museum which
opened to the public in July 2022. He is responsible for the overall management and operation of the museum, supervising the development of its strategic vision and the
delivery of its exhibition, research, collection, programming and education initiatives. He has also championed a number of international partnership initiatives, positioning the
museum as a platform for dialogue among cultures around the world.

Throughout his career in the field of arts and culture, he had held research, curatorial and managerial positions at various museums. He served as the founding Director of
the Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence, which opened in 2000, and held the position of Executive Secretary of the Antiquities and Monument Office in Hong Kong
from 2002 to 2006. Before joining WKCDA, he served as Deputy Director of the Leisure and Cultural Services Department, HKSAR Government, where he oversaw the
department'’s culture-related institutions, including museums, performing arts venues and libraries. He earned his PhD degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, with
a focus on Hong Kong history.

REFBLA2019FAREEFENESXLEYEETRER  EEBYENEIMER  FBEWER202F7 AEXMARMAK - MEIAERBEENEEEFY
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SREEABRE (&)

Executive Director, Performing Arts
RBREMTHAE

Mr Paul TAM
BIRLEE

Mr Paul Tam joined WKCDA in March 2020. Mr Tam leads the Performing Arts Division to deliver world-class programmes and oversee the operation of the performing
arts venues in WestK. He is responsible for steering the strategic planning and sustainable development of these venues, and overseeing their business direction, artistic
development, venue operations, technical and production, facilities planning and delivery.

Mr Tam is a seasoned arts executive with over 20 years of experience in performing arts management. Before joining WKCDA, Mr Tam served as Executive Director of Hong
Kong Ballet, where he oversaw its strategic development, institutional advancement, brand-building, education and community outreach, and international touring. Currently,
Mr Tam is Director of the International Society for the Performing Arts, Board Member and former Chairman of the Hong Kong Arts Administrators Association Governor of
the Federation of Asian Cultural Promotion and Advisor for Our Hong Kong Foundation.
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Biographies of Senior Management (Continued)

BREEASBE (&)

General Counsel

L EER

Ms Amy Maria TAM
BRELL

Ms Amy Tam oversees the Legal and Secretarial Division and manages the legal, Board Secretariat, and insurance functions of the Authority. She joined WKCDA as General
Counsel and was appointed Secretary of the Board of the Authority in August 2018.

Ms Tam has more than 25 years of experience in the legal field. Prior to joining WKCDA, she was employed by Hong Kong Broadband Network Limited from 2015 to 2018
as Head of Legal and Company Secretary in the Legal and Compliance Department. She was responsible for overseeing the legal, secretarial and regulatory matters of the
company. Ms Tam also served as Senior Legal Advisor of MTR Corporation Limited and has extensive in-house experience in property management, telecommunications,
railway operations, intellectual property, regulatory compliance, land issues, insurance, and employment-related matters.
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SREEABRE (&)

Chief Financial Officer
BEMSAE

Ms Carmen LEE
FRXLL

Ms Carmen Lee was appointed by the Board as Chief Financial Officer of WKCDA with effect on 1 March 2022.

Ms Lee oversees the Finance Services Division of the Authority, covering the Finance Department and Innovation & Technology Department. Ms Lee is also responsible for the
Authority’s Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") strategy and reporting. She joined WKCDA in July 2020 as General Manager, Finance and served as Acting Chief
Financial Officer from August 2021 to February 2022.

Ms Lee is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 20 years of experience as a finance professional. Before
joining WKCDA, she served as Project Director, Business Development of a French construction group, Bouygues Construction, and held various senior executive positions in
the group where she has gained local and overseas experience in construction, post-acquisition integration, business start-up, tendering, and operation and management of
public-private-partnership projects.
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SREEABRE (&)

Chief Projects Officer

BEIRAE

Mr Sunny CHAN Wing-chung

FR Pk BE SE 4

Mr Sunny Chan was appointed by the Board as Chief Projects Officer of WKCDA with effect on 24 November 2021.

Mr Chan leads the Projects Division and is responsible for the design, cost, procurement, construction and management of all works projects in WestK. Mr Chan and his
teams oversee the project implementation covering design approval and construction delivery of all planned arts and cultural facilities, and public infrastructure works
entrusted by the HKSAR Government across WestK.

Mr Chan is a Chartered Engineer with over 30 years of diverse large-scale project development experience in a wide spectrum of sectors including private and public
organisations as well as tourism facilities in Hong Kong and Macau.

Before joining WKCDA, Mr Chan served as Senior Vice President, Design & Development at Galaxy Entertainment Group, where he managed the design and construction of
the group’s major projects. Prior to this, he headed the Projects Department of Hysan Development Company and oversaw the strategic planning, design, cost, procurement
and construction of the company’s district as well as office, retail and residential development projects.

Rk EEANA R EEREEREEAERFE IIRZAE - WH2021F 11 A24B8 @5 -

RELBETIRE  EEONMA TRBA MR - RAES KB RZENERFE RELHGHEFAEEEREAXERAE TRER MR ELNTRE
B IR B BEERENUEEMRE - ARFERITTREBNAZENARERRRITIE -

BREEAEREBERFFTIZE - A BEE30FTRAAEIERREMNRKR - SRFEMEMARALERBUARKEREEEEREETIRER -

EMAEERRA - REEEFRTREEFENRARERDSREEE - EREEEZIHE MR RIEE - 28 - MAEHEEXLERAFTNIAEE - BENET
EBRENREAE  UTEEEHAALIER  BEHEANE  TENETHEBSNR - RAEH - REDZEERSE -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A Xt BEERR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 BF k%



COMMITTEES AND PANELS
ZEE - BHAHERIAE

Functions and Conduct of Business

Seven committees have been established under the Board — the Executive Committee
("ExCom"), Audit Committee (“AC"), Development Committee (“DC"), Investment
Committee (“IC"), Performing Arts Committee (“PAC"), Public Private Partnership Projects
Committee ("PPPPC”) and Remuneration Committee (“RC") — along with the Consultation
Panel (“CP") and the Commercial Letting Panel (“CLP"). In conducting their business, the
committees generally follow the Standing Orders and Code of Conduct adopted by the
Board. Separately, CP has adopted a set of guidelines governing the conduct of its business.
CP is required to hold at least one meeting a year, and its meetings must be open to the
public.

Executive Committee

Key Functions

ExCom was established in February 2013 under the Board. It sits above the other committees
under the Board. Its key functions are:

e To provide a steer to the Management of WKCDA on pertinent issues relating to the
District project, including but not limited to the overall development programme,
information and communication technologies strategy, public relations and marketing,
corporate governance, planning for the operation of facilities and business development,
risk management as well as other overall policies and measures;

e To facilitate coordination of the activities among the various Board committees;

e To oversee the formulation and implementation of the annual Business Plan and rolling
three-year Corporate Plan of WKCDA,

e To oversee the financial position of WKCDA in connection with the District project and
provide guidance to the Management in respect of the funding strategy;

e To be the approving authority in matters of financial management, business planning,
budget control, procurement and any other areas delegated by the Board from time to
time;

e To review and endorse WKCDA's sustainability policies and practices; and

e To perform any other functions as may be delegated to it by the Authority or assigned to
it by the Board in accordance with the WKCDA Ordinance.

ExCom membership consists of the chairpersons of the various committees (except AC), the
Boards of M Plus Museum Limited and Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited, representative
from the Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau, and the Chief Executive Officer of WKCDA.

Summary of Work Done

ExCom held three meetings during the reporting year.
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Membership of the Executive Committee (2023/24)
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Development Committee

Key Functions

DC was established by the Board under Section 11 of the WKCDA Ordinance to deal with
matters relating to the planning, development and implementation of arts and cultural
facilities and infrastructural facilities. Its key functions are:

e To advise the Board on the overall policies and strategies relating to the project planning
and development of the District;

e To recommend to the Board a Programme of Implementation for individual building and
infrastructure projects for the District;

e To advise the Board on the viability of proposed facilities, including proposals for defining
project scope, engineering feasibility and cost in order to ensure optimal utilisation of
resources; and

e To monitor the construction progress of arts and cultural facilities, the hiring and
management of consultants and contractors, and related contractual matters for the
planning, design and construction of both individual projects and the District as a whole.

Summary of Work Done

DC held five meetings and considered by way of circulation during the reporting year to
deliberate on the following matters:

Procurement and Management of Consultancies

e Design Consultancy Agreement for M+ Museum and Extended Basement Project in Zone
3A with M+ Consultancy Joint Venture — Proposed Settlement of Claims

e |LTC and Extended Basement in Zone 3B — Extension of Site-based Quantity Surveying
Consultancy Services

e Project Management Consultancy Agreement with Atkins China Limited — Approval of
Additional Sum for Extension of Consultancy Services Period

e Design Consultancy Agreement for LTC and Extended Basement in Zone 3B with
UNStudio/AD+RG - Approval of Additional Sum for Variations and Extension of
Consultancy Services Period

e Podium, Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zone 2 — Updated Scope
and Estimated Fee for Procurement of Consultancy Services for Design and Build
Documentation and Construction Services for the Public Private Partnership Project
Tender
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Podium, Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zone 2 — Approval to Proceed
with Tender Opening and Assessment for Consultancy Services for Design and Build
Documentation and Construction Services for Public Private Partnership Project Tender

Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zone 2 — Approval to Proceed with
Procurement of Consultancy Services for Enhanced Detailed Design of Integrated
Basement and Underground Road and Notional Design of Topside Development in Zones
2A and 2B

Design and Development

Progress Update on District-wide Fire Safety Strategy in Zone 2

Implementation

L2 Contract for LTC and Extended Basement Project — Approval for Interim Extension of
Time and Prolongation Costs

L2 Contract for LTC and Extended Basement Project — Approval of Additional Sum for
Extension of Employees” Compensation Insurance Policy

Approval to Award the Contract of IT Infrastructure for LTC and Extended Basement

Self-Certification of Compliance for Completed Tree Preservation and Removal Proposal
in HKPM

Foundation, Excavation and Lateral Support Works Contract for Integrated Basement and
Underground Road in Zone 2A with Bachy Soletanche — Fujita Corporation Joint Venture
— Proposed Settlement of Notice of Dispute No. 1

Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zones 2A-1, 2B, and/or 2C — Proposal
to Proceed with Procurement of Excavation and Lateral Support (Stages 1 and 2) Works
Contract

Integrated Basement and Underground Road in Zones 2A, 2B and 2C — Approval for
Tendering of Excavation and Lateral Support (Stages 1 and 2) Works Contract

Internal Audit Reports on Capital Project Management

Key Performance Indicators — Interim Results for 2023/24 and Proposed Targets for
2024/25

Capital Projects Business Plan/Corporate Plan for 2024/25 to 2026/27

Regular Reports

044

Projects Division Progress Report

Construction Safety Progress Report
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Membership of the Development Committee (2023/24)
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Performing Arts Committee

Key Functions

PAC comprises members from a broad spectrum of professional fields, including the
arts, business, legal and academic sectors. PAC, with its members’ diverse expertise and
knowledge, assists and makes recommendations to the Board in various specialised areas
relating to the implementation of the WestK project.

The key functions of PAC are:

e To formulate the vision and mission of the PA Division of WKCDA for approval by the
Board and to oversee the mode of governance of the PA Division; and

e To recommend the strategies, policies and guidelines in relation to the PA Division to the
Board for approval.

Summary of Work Done

During the reporting period, PAC held five meetings to provide strategic guidance and
oversight to the work of the PA Division.

PAC reviewed the programming, marketing, and development strategies for the anchor
performing arts programmes, including the HKT x WESTK POPFEST, Freespace Jazz Fest, and
The Impossible Trial — a musical. The Committee also offered suggestions for revisions to the
Guidelines for the WestK Street Performance Scheme.

Furthermore, PAC was consulted on the business development initiatives of the PA Division,
such as the launch of the WestK Performing Arts Corporate Circle.

PAC also played a key role in the development of the LTC project. It provided input on the
missions and artistic strategy of the LTC, the engagement strategy for its Resident Company
Programme, and the framework for its associate partnerships.

Additionally, PAC deliberated and provided strategic guidance for the PA Division's Business
Plan for 2024/25 and Corporate Plan for 2024/25 to 2026/27. This included setting key
objectives, refining the branding and artistic strategy, finalising the programming plan,
optimising the venue hire strategy, establishing Key Performance Indicators targets, and
projecting income, expenditures, and capital expenditures, as well as staffing requirements.

PAC received regular updates on the operations of the PA Division, covering various aspects
such as programming, nominations and awards received, venue hire, finance, as well as
sponsorship and donations.

The Xigu Centre Advisory Panel, reporting to PAC, held two meetings during the reporting
year to advise the Management on matters related to the strategy and policy development
for the operation of the Xiqu Centre. The Panel provided guidance on the Centre's
programmes, operations, facilities management, shop rental, marketing, venue hire, and
ticketing arrangements.

PAC's diligent oversight and strategic input have been instrumental in ensuring the continued
success and growth of the performing arts offerings within WestK.
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Membership of the Performing Arts Committee (2023/24)
REBMZE SR E FE(2023/24)

Chairman £/&
Mr JAT Sew-tong, SBS, SC, JP
BURE %%, SBS, SC, IP
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Membership of the Xiqu Centre Advisory Panel (2023/24)
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Remuneration Committee

Key Functions

The key functions of RC are:

e To make recommendations to the Board on organisational structure and policies relating
to staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and dismissal, with reference to the
Authority’s overall goals and objectives;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the determination of terms and conditions
for employment of employees, including the provision and maintenance of any schemes
for the payment of pensions, gratuities and retirement benefits to employees, former
employees or their dependants;

e To make recommendations to the Board on any other matters relating to the
remuneration, allowances or benefits made available to employees, former employees or
their dependants referred or assigned to it by the Board;

e To review and make recommendations to the Board on changes in salaries and terms
and conditions of employment; and

e To perform any other functions as may be delegated to it by the Authority or assigned to
it by the Board in accordance with the WKCDA Ordinance.

Summary of Work Done

RC held three meetings during the reporting year. RC deliberated on the following major
issues.

Pay Review
While RC had endorsed the 2023 annual pay adjustment proposal for the Chief Executive

Officer, it accepted the Chief Executive Officer's request for a pay freeze in view of the
Authority’s stringent financial situation. RC also reviewed the 2024 pay review outcome and
recommended to the Board a pay increase for all eligible employees in 2024.

Human Resources Plan and Staff Cost Budget
RC endorsed the human resources plan and the associated staff cost budget for 2024/25 to
2026/27 for WKCDA.

Appointment, Employment Contract Renewal, Gratuity Payment, Salary Adjustment and
Incentive Pay for Senior Executives

RC endorsed the employment contract renewal (and approved salary adjustment upon
contract renewal) and the gratuity payment for three senior executives. RC also endorsed and
recommended to the Board the annual incentive pay for two senior executives.

Human Resources Policies and Guidelines

RC endorsed the implementation of new arrangements for employing contract staff. RC also
endorsed the relevant recruitment and appointment guidelines and leave policies to reflect
the new arrangements for employment of contract staff.
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Investment Committee

Key Functions
The key functions of IC are:

e To advise the Board on the Authority’s investment objectives, guidelines and strategies;
e To monitor and oversee the performance of investments made by the Authority;

e To advise the Board on the selection and appointment of investment consultants, fund
managers and custodians, and to oversee and monitor their performance;

e To advise the Board on the selection and appointment of financial advisors on financial
matters and to oversee and monitor the performance of financial advisors;

e To advise the Board on the terms and conditions of external borrowings and to oversee
and monitor external borrowings;

e To oversee and monitor the financial and liquidity position of the Authority and advise
the Board on the financial sustainability of the Authority; and

e To oversee and monitor the implementation of the approved Business Plan and Corporate
Plan.

Summary of Work Done

IC held three meetings during the reporting year. Among the most significant of its activities,
IC deliberated on the following issues.

Reviewing the Proposal for Refinancing

IC reviewed the key terms and conditions of the proposal for the refinancing of the
Sustainability-linked Loan, having regard to the Authority’s financial position and cash flow
projection.

Reviewing the Proposal for Funding Requirements
IC reviewed the Authority’s proposal for funding requirements in the Business Plan and
Corporate Plan in accordance with the financial framework approved by the Board.

Managing Bank Counterparty Risks
IC oversaw the Authority’s management of its approved list of banks and their respective
exposure limits.

Maintaining a Highly Liquid Portfolio

In light of the substantial cash flow needed for the WestK project and the volatility of the
financial markets, IC endorsed a fund management strategy focusing on bank deposits,
which could protect capital while offering reasonable returns and maintaining liquidity for the
Authority to deploy funding efficiently for project development.

Oversight of the Interest Rate Risk Management
IC oversaw the Authority’s management of its interest rate risk exposure after securing the
floating rate Sustainability-linked Loan.
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Audit Committee

Key Functions

The key functions of AC are to consider and advise on financial and audit matters of the
Authority.

Summary of Work Done

AC held four meetings during the reporting year. In the reporting year, the review conducted
by AC include the following:

Review of financial statements and meetings with external auditor
AC approved the external auditor’s audit strategy for the year ended 31 March 2024.

In reviewing the financial statements of the Authority, its subsidiaries and M+ Collections
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2023,

e AC considered and noted the external auditor's confirmation of independence in its
auditor’s report on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023;
and

e reviewed the auditor’s report on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023.

Review of internal audit works

AC approved the work plan of the Internal Audit Department of the Authority for 2023/24
and reviewed four internal audit reports to evaluate and improve internal controls covering
the following areas:

e Project Closing and Final Account Settlement of Xiqu Centre
e Outsourcing Management — Consultancy Services

e Safety and Health Management

e Project Management of Public Infrastructure Works

AC was also briefed on the progress of implementing the audit recommendations.

Review of policies and procedures
AC reviewed/endorsed the following policies for the Authority:

e Non-Assurance Services Concurrence Policy

e Interest Rate Risk Management Policy and Interest Rate Hedging Arrangement for the
Sustainability-linked Term Loan and Revolving Credit Facilities

e Whistleblowing Policy (revision)

Oversight of risk management and control self-assessment
AC was briefed on the results of the regular reassessment of the corporate level risks and the
implementation status of the control self-assessment.
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Membership of the Audit Committee (2023/24)
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Chairman /&
Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BEAZT

Members &% &
Non-Board Members 32 & @K 8
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Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP
PREFECSE L, BBS, MH, JP

Ms Christine LEUNG Wan-chong
Rt o+

Dr Carlye TSUI Wai-ling, SBS, JP
R L, SBS, JP

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BAX Lt BEER

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 BF &

Ms Sandy WONG Hang-yee, JP
=ERLL, P

Mr Raymond WONG Hung-chiu, GBS, JP
EHIEHBL A, GBS, P

Mr Franklin YU



Public Private Partnership Projects Committee

Key Functions

The key functions of PPPPC are to oversee Public Private Partnership (“PPP”) projects —
including all HOR and RDE developments procured by way of the PPP method, from planning,
procurement and project implementation to successful completion of works — carried out by
the Authority, its wholly owned subsidiaries or third-party participants.

Summary of Work Done

PPPPC held three meetings during the reporting year and deliberated on the following issues.

Implementation of the AST project

Following the successful award of the AST Project on 22 November 2022 to Winner Harvest
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, PPPPC received
progress updates on the AST Project, reviewed interfacing issues, and endorsed the execution
of an undertaking for the tree preservation and removal proposal to facilitate the erection of
site hoarding.

Implementation strategy of PPP projects in Zone 2

PPPPC reviewed the design enhancement of the Integrated Basement and Underground
Road in Zone 2, endorsed the proposed implementation strategy for PPP projects in Zone 2
(covering development parameters, implementation sequence and way forward), and also
approved the appointment of Tender Management Team Members for the preparation work
of PPP projects in Zone 2.

Review of Procurement Guidelines for PPP projects
PPPPC reviewed and endorsed the proposed revised framework of the Procurement
Guidelines for PPP Projects for further development and internal reference.
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Membership of the Public Private Partnership Projects Committee (2023/24)

PRESIEEEZESRE RE(2023/24)

Chairman /&
Mr Paulo PONG Kin-yee, BBS, JP
BEFEBA YA, BBS, P

Members &% &
Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, JP
$EEFE L, GBS, JP

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEMBHR A, SBS, JP

The Honourable Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP
ERMILLE, P

Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang
EEmEE

Ms Tennessy HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
FFEE L L, MH, JP

Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
R

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
A2 EL L, GBS
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Mr David AU Ho-cheung
BEELE

Prof CHAU Kwong-wing (since 1 January 2024)
SRR ER ((EHIH 202451 A1 HAE)

Sr Vincent HO Kui-yip, MH, JP (until 31 December 2023)
SRS, MH, JP (EHIE 2023612 A318)

Mr Daniel LAM Chun, SBS, JP (until 31 December 2023)
MBS A, SBS, IP(E#IZE 2023412 A31H)

Mr Christopher LAW (since 1 January 2024)
FEfEhEAE, P(EHH2024F1 A1 HE)

Mr Vernon Francis MOORE, BBS
E {854, BBS

Substitute Member H# K&
Ms Rose LEE Wai-mun, JP
FEH LT, P



Consultation Panel

Key Functions

CP was established by the Board under Section 20 of the WKCDA Ordinance to gather public
views on matters relating to the functions of WKCDA.

CP members represent different segments of the community, thereby providing CP with
diverse knowledge and experience so that it can play a role as a bridge between WKCDA and
the public. CP meetings are open to the public, and the discussion papers and minutes of the
meetings are available on the WestK website.

A Working Group on Youth and Community Engagement (the Working Group) was set up in
December 2014. Its primary objective is to take forward initiatives to raise awareness of the
WestK project among young people and the wider community and to devise implementation
plans for these initiatives.

Summary of Work Done

CP held one meeting during the reporting year to provide an update on the latest
development of the WestK, including the exhibitions, programmes and achievements of M+,
HKPM and Performing Arts Division, as well as the implementation of the work of WKCDA
in strengthening cultural exchange and collaboration with stakeholders from around the
world. CP members were also given an update on the execution and accomplishment of
the community engagement initiative, Crossover Lab Initiative 2023, steered by the Working
Group.

In addition, two visits to the Special Exhibitions of M+ and HKPM were organised respectively
for CP members, introducing the curatorial concepts and exhibitions’ highlights to CP
members.
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Membership of the Consultation Panel (2023/24)
HHERK S £ 8 (2023/24)

Chairman /&
Mr Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
sk e &, SBS, SC, JP

Members K &

Board Members £ EK 8 Prof LAM Miu-ling
Dr Roy CHUNG Chi-ping, GBS, JP MY IR
EEFE L, GBS, P

Ms Josephine LEE Yuk-chi, MH
Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH ZE 2+, MH
hpiE s+, MH
Mr Wilfred NG Sau-kei, GBS, MH, JP
RFELAE, GBS, MH, JP

Non-Board Members 3FEZE B 8
Dr Sylvia CHAN May-kuen, MH

Mr Kyrus SIU King-wai

PREBIEL, MH mREEE

Ms Grace CHENG Sim-yee Ms Eva WONG Ching-hung

BB E 2+ HEII 2L

Mr\ Mohan CHUGANI Mr WONG Kam-leung, BBS

EERE =iBR AL, BBS

Prc/>f Iz_erekaOLLINS Mr Ronald WU Keng-hou, MH

FliEr HIR RZEFE, MH

'\;Li'ij?,r,"y LAl Hin-wing Mr Benny YEUNG Tsz-hei, BBS, MH (since 1 March 2024)
TR S A 1BFER S 4, BBS, MH (fEEf3 20243 B 1 HA2)

Mr LAM Kin-man (until 29 February 2024)
MBS AE (FHAZ 202452 A29A8)
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Commercial Letting Panel

Key Functions

CLP is responsible for providing advice to the Authority on matters relating to the strategy
and implementation of commercial leasing covering RDE and other tenants in the District.

Summary of Work Done

During the reporting year, the CLP held one meeting and considered proposals via circulation
of papers.

With endorsement by the CLP on leasing proposals received from Prospects through
Expression of Interest (EOI) and followed by direct negotiations, the Authority secured new
letting and lease renewal cases for the Xiqu Centre, Art Park and HKPM. In addition, the
Authority has also successfully leased out the remaining four floors of WKCDA Tower in April
2022 and four floors of the M+ Tower during the reporting year. The overall occupancy of
commercial premises substantially increased to 96% at the end of the reporting year.
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Membership of the Commercial Letting Panel (2023/24)
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Chairman &
Dr the Honourable Allan ZEMAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRENXIEL, KEHBE, GBS, JP

Members £ &

Board Member &£ BK &
Ms Dee POON Chu-ying
BT

Non-Board Members 3FE £ BK E
Dr Dorothy CHAN YUEN Tak-fai, BBS, JP
PROTIERE L, BBS, JP

Mr Ringo NG Wing-ho
RKFFTHE

Representative from WKCDA/Ex-Officio Member A L@ EBBRE EARKE
Ms Wendy GAN Kim-see

Deputy Chief Executive Officer (District Development), WKCDA
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M Plus Museum Limited

Key Functions

M Plus Museum Limited was incorporated on 14 April 2016 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
WKCDA.

The Board of Directors of M Plus Museum Limited (M+ Board) formulates the vision and
mission, as well as the strategies, policies and guidelines in relation to museological matters
and professional standards of operation for the museum.

The Acquisitions Committee operates under the M+ Board; its principal function is to review,
approve and make recommendations to the M+ Board and the WKCDA Board on matters
relating to acquisitions by M+.

Summary of Work Done

The M+ Board met four times in the reporting year. At these meetings, the M+ Board was
briefed on the upcoming major exhibitions of M+; the work of and challenges faced by the
museum’s Conservation and Research Team, the Collection, Archives and Library Team, as
well as the Learning and Interpretation Team. Updates on various statistics relating to the
M+ Collections; M+'s Moving Image programmes; the outcome of the M+ Sigg Collection
Cataloguing exercise; the programmes and communication plans for the Hong Kong
International Cultural Summit 2024 hosted by the WKCDA were provided to the M+ Board.

The M+ Board considered and endorsed or approved various proposals at its meetings
or via circulation of papers during the year. These included an acquisition by donation as
endorsed by Acquisitions Committee; amendments to the Guidelines for the General Charter
of Councils of M+; the museum’s Business Plan 2024/25 and Corporate Plan 2024/25 to
2026/27 and Key Performance Indicators 2024/25; the approach of the proposed M+ New
Individual Giving Structure; reappointment of members of the Acquisitions Committee; the
temporary reduction in the price of the museum’s General Admission tickets; the proposal
for the utilisation of the M+ Reserve; the procurement proposal for the tendering of the
outsourced security services for M+; contract award for the food and beverage operations at
the catering kitchen and the M+ Lounge; as well as the 5th variation order for M+ Museum
Event and M+ Lounge catering services. The M+ Board also approved the Report of Directors
and Audited Financial Statements of M Plus Museum Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 and noted the arrangement for the 2023 annual general meeting of M Plus Museum
Limited.
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The M+ Board received regular updates on M+'s business performance and the museum’s
ongoing works on development and achievements to date of the M+ Fundraising; reports
on the acquisitions made for the M+ Collections and outgoing loans on the M+ Collections,
and the latest developments of M+ including its programmes and activities as well as the
manpower plan. It also received the annual analysis on the M+ Collections.

The Acquisitions Committee held three meetings in the reporting year in which it received
regular updates on the acquisition budget and considered and endorsed or approved
acquisition proposals for the M+ Collections and other acquisition-related issues. Reports
on the acquisitions approved by the Museum Director, M+ and the Acquisitions Committee
were presented to the M+ Board and the WKCDA Board on a regular basis. The Acquisitions
Committee was also updated on the museum’s donation acceptance criteria.
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Membership of the Board of M Plus Museum Limited (2023/24)
M Plus Museum Limited EE /K 8 FE(2023/24)

Chairman /&
The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRES B4, REFIENE, GBS, JP
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Vice Chairman BIEE
Mr Alan LAU Ka-ming
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Mrs Cindy CHUA-TAY (since 24 April 2023)
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Mrs Christine IP YEUNG See-ming
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Ms Wendy LEE
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Mr Neil SHEN Nan-peng
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Ex-Officio Members & Ak 8
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Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
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Membership of the M+ Acquisitions Committee (2023/24)
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M Plus Collections Limited

Key Functions

M Plus Collections Limited was incorporated on 12 August 2016 as a wholly owned
subsidiary of WKCDA to act as the Trustee of the M+ Collections Trust (the “Trust”). Under
the Trust Deed made on 28 March 2017 by WKCDA, M Plus Collections Limited, as the
Trustee, holds the legal interest in the Museum Collections for the benefit of the Hong Kong
community. M Plus Collections Limited has engaged M Plus Museum Limited to manage
the Museum Collections on a day-to-day basis, while M Plus Collections Limited provides
oversight of the Museum Collections through an annual audit.

Summary of Work Done

The Board of M Plus Collections Limited (“the M+ Collections Board”) held two meetings
during the reporting year. At these meetings, the M+ Collections Board received regular
updates on the financial position of the Trust and reports on collection activities including
summary of outgoing loans in 2022/23, the Conservation and Storage Facility compression
project, the collection display rotations in 2023, the upgrading of the Collections
Management System, visitation numbers of the Research Centre as well as various statistics
on the M+ Collections.

The M+ Collections Board also received updates on M+'s presence and marketing strategy
for various social media platforms in the Mainland and was given an overview of the M+
Collection Retail; the exhibition content debrief of the ‘Madame Song: Pioneering Art and
Fashion in China" exhibition; M+'s efforts on sustainability and the Green Protocol Refresh of
the Bizot Group of International Museum Directors; as well as the outcome of the M+ Sigg
Collection Cataloguing exercise.

The M+ Collections Board noted the arrangement for the 2023 annual general meeting of
M Plus Collections Limited. It also approved the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements of M Plus Collections Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 as well as the
Trustee’s Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Trust for the year ended 31 March
2023.
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Membership of the Board of M Plus Collections Limited (2023/24)
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Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited

Key Functions

Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of WKCDA. The Board
of Directors of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited (the “HKPM Board"”) is responsible for
formulating the HKPM's vision and mission, as well as its strategies, policies and guidelines in
relation to curatorial matters, professional standards and operation.

HKPM aspires to become one of the world’s leading cultural institutions committed to the
study and appreciation of Chinese art and culture, while advancing dialogue among world
civilisations through international partnerships. Located at the western tip of the District,
with sweeping views of the city’s iconic Victoria Harbour, the museum was opened to the
public in mid-2022. Embracing new curatorial approaches, the museum offers a Hong Kong
perspective and a global vision, presenting the finest objects from the Palace Museum,
the HKPM, and other important cultural institutions around the world. Through innovative
research and travelling exhibitions, as well as educational, cultural, and professional exchange
programmes, it builds international partnerships and helps position Hong Kong as an East-
meets-West centre for international cultural exchange. The museum is a collaborative project
between WKCDA and the Palace Museum. It is funded by the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust with a donation of HK$3.5 billion for its establishment, as well as some of the
annual exhibitions and education programmes from 2023 to 2031.
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Summary of Work Done

The HKPM Board held six meetings during the reporting year. At these meetings, it endorsed
the procurement of outsourced visitor services, as well as the proposed budget for the Palace
Museum loan management fee and the update on the placement of fine art insurance for
the 2023/24 exhibitions, for approval by the WKCDA Board. It also endorsed the Business
Plan for 2024/25 and Corporate Plan for 2024/25 to 2026/27.

The HKPM Board also discussed the progress report on Key Performance Indicators for
2022/23; the half-yearly update for 2023/24 and proposed targets for 2024/25; the strategic
plan for art conservation programme; the update on learning and engagement programme
plan; the update on docent programme; the customers’ digital touchpoints; the donor
recognition and engagement plan; the visitor experience satisfaction survey report; the
update on publication strategy; the update on exhibition programme 2024/25; and the GS
Charity Foundation sponsorship proposal.

The HKPM Board approved the changes and new features of the membership programme;
the revised ticketing and admissions strategy; the update on ticketing strategy; and an
acquisition proposal (donation of works). It also noted three other acquisition proposals
(donation of works).

In addition, the HKPM Board approved by circulation the report of directors and audited
financial statements for 2022/23; a proposal to invite the WKCDA Board to approve the
written resolutions in lieu of the 2023 annual general meeting of Hong Kong Palace Museum
Limited; and endorsed the tender award for outsourced visitor services.
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Membership of the Board of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited (2023/24)

EBNELEYEERATNEESERERE(2023/24)

Chairman &
Ms Winnie TAM Wan-chi, SBS, SC, JP
B2 3, SBS, SC, JP

Vice Chairman EIEE
Prof LEE Chack-fan, GBM, GBS, JP (until 31 December 2023)
FIBFHER, KRFEE, GBS, JP(EHE20234128318)

Mr TSANG Tak-sing, GBS, JP *
wiERk LA, GBS, JP *

Members &% &

WKCDA Board Members AL EEEREERKE
Mr Andy HEI Kao-chiang

BB EE

Ms Yolanda NG Yuen-ting, MH
hfEE L, MH

Non-WKCDA Board Members 3EFANA LR EE BESEHKE

Mr Anthony CHEUNG Kee-wee (since 1 January 2024)
EHE LA ((EER20245F 1 A1HRR)

Prof CHING May-bo (since 1 March 2024)
REBEHX (EHH2024F3 A 1HE)

Mr Kevin CHING Sau-hong (since 1 May 2023)
EBEEE (EHH2023F5 810 %E)

Prof Raymond FUNG Wing-kee, JP (until 31 December 2023)
R EHIR, P (EEIE2023F12A31H)

Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung, BBS, JP (since 1 May 2023)
TR, BBS, IP((EHAR20234F5 A1 H )

Mrs Ann KUNG YEUNG Yun-chi, BBS, JP (since 1 January 2024)
BEi5 B LT, BBS, JP (EHAH 202451 A1 Hi#R)

Ms KUOK Hui-kwong (since 1 January 2024)
EH A+ ((EHIR20245F1 A1 HE)

Mrs Stella LAU KUN Lai-kuen, SBS, JP (since 1 January 2024)
2IFEBIR L, SBS, IP (M 202451 A1 H#E)

Mrs Nancy Maria LEE CHANG, JP (until 31 December 2023)
FlsRBE L, IP(EHIZ20235F12A318)

Ms Nisa Bernice LEUNG Wing-yu, MH, JP (until 31 December 2023)
REAF L, MH, JP (88 E 2023412 8318)

Prof LI Ping (since 1 January 2024)
FEHIR ((EHIHR202451 A1H#)

Mr LOU Wei
EEEAE

Prof Harold MOK Kar-leung (until 31 December 2023)
RERRHEZ (EHE2023F12A318)

Mr Daryl NG Win-kong, SBS, JP (since 1 May 2023)
KA, SBS, P (fEHRFR2023F 5 A1 HiR)

Ms Helen SO Hiu-ming
ik

The Honourable Robert TANG Ching, GBM, SBS, JP
Biasta, REFBE, SBS, P

Prof Joseph TING Sun-pao, BBS (until 31 December 2023)
THANHR, BBS ((EHAZE 2023512 A31H)

Dr Andrew Stephen YUEN Wei-man (since 1 May 2023)
Frf@ i+ (8202345 A 1HAR)
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Membership of the Board of Hong Kong Palace Museum Limited (2023/24) (Continued)
EAME N CEYREERATNESENE FE(2023/24) (&)

Members (Public Officers)ik & (REEA 8)

Mr Joe WONG Chi-cho, GBS, JP

=EME L, GBS, JP

Permanent Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism
XLEERIEERFEWER

Alternate {&## : Mrs Vicki KWOK WONG Wing-ki, JP
BERERWL L, P
Deputy Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism
XbiEE RikERBWER

Mr Vincent LIU Ming-kwong, JP
28 kA, P
Director of Leisure and Cultural Services

BERLEBEER

Alternate 1X## :  Ms Eve TAM Mei-yee
BERLZL
Deputy Director of Leisure and Cultural Services (Culture)

RREEEEHFRF R (L)

Ex-Officio Members E AR &

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
A2 EL L, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
AN LR EEBITHER

Dr Louis NG Chi-wa (since 1 May 2023)
REER LT (EBH2023F5A1048)
Museum Director, HKPM
BBEWELEYEER

Remarks 5T

*  Mr TSANG Tak-sing, GBS, JP has served as a member of the HKPM Board since 9 April 2020. He took
up the appointment as Vice Chairman of the HKPM Board on 1 January 2024.

* BIBEKSEE, GBS, JPA2020F4 AR EEERBHELEMEBEEERBKE » WN2024%1 71
HREEREMNE UL EYEEEREIEF
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West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited

Key Functions

West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited, is a wholly owned subsidiary of WKCDA.
Established on 30 January 2019, it was set up to raise funds in support of the Authority’s
charitable activities for the advancement of education and cultural development for the
benefit of the Hong Kong community. It has obtained charitable status under section 88 of
the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited is the primary governance body for
fundraising matters across the Authority. Its key functions are:

e To formulate strategies and policies relating to fundraising operations and associated
activities across all areas of WKCDA,

e To ensure professional standards of fundraising operations;
e To be responsible for the receipt and allocation of donated funds; and

e To ensure that donations are used in accordance with the purposes for which they are
donated.

Summary of Work Done

The Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited approved the Report of
the Directors and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, the proposed
naming of the Seminar Hall at the Xiqu Centre, the execution of Deed of Gifts for the M+
Artwork Acquisition, the release of donations to WKCDA, HKPM and M+, as well as the
written resolutions in lieu of the 2023 annual general meeting of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Foundation Limited via circulation of board papers. No meetings were held during the
reporting year.
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Membership of the Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited (2023/24)
AAXLEESEERARNESHNE FE(2023/24)

Chairman &
Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEMBER ST, SBS, JP

Members & &

WKCDA Board Members A XL EEREERHKE
The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP
ERFLE, KEFIBE, GBS, JP

The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRE BAEE, KEFIBE, GBS, P

Non-WKCDA Board Members 3EFE XL EEEREERKE
Dr Peter LAM Kin-ngok, GBM, GBS (until 15 November 2023)
MEERH L, KEFIZE, GBS ((EEAE2023F11A158)

The Honourable Victor LO Chung-wing, GBM, GBS, JP (until 15 November 2023)
FfhEssEs RGBS, GBS, JP({EHAE20234F11 A158)

Prof Douglas SO Cheung-tak, BBS, JP (since 16 November 2023)
BB, BBS, JP ({EHIH2023F 11 A16H )

Ms Wendy LEE (since 16 November 2023)
sl 2+ ((FHAR2023F 11 A 16 H#E)

Ex-officio Member ERKE

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
A2 EL L, GBS

Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
AN LR EEBITHER
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Blue Poles Limited

Key Functions

Blue Poles Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of WKCDA. It was incorporated to become
the employer of a replacement contractor and to complete the construction of WKCDA's M+
project in the event that the original main contractor was unable to complete the works.

The original main contractor’s employment under the main works contract for the M+ project
was terminated on 17 August 2018, and Blue Poles Limited assumed responsibility for the
completion of the construction of the M+ project from 18 August 2018.

Summary of Work Done

The BPL Board held three meetings during the reporting year. At these meetings, the BPL
Board approved the settlement of a number of final accounts with various trade contractors
for the construction of M+ and monitored defects rectification works to deliver better
experience for M+ visitors.

The BPL Board also approved the Report of the Directors and the financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 as well as the submission of the written resolutions in lieu of the
2023 annual general meeting of the BPL to its sole member via circulation of board papers.

Governance Report
CREE Y

Blue Poles Limited

FERIBE

Blue Poles Limited 2 EIE B2 EMB AR - EMASIAEAR AR
BHEE  AEAERATEIRANAERE LT IEMNBERL TR
KRERBHM+IEE BEETIE -

FEAEXTEAEEEM+EETETIRAOMNETN2018F8A17HLK
1 » MMBlue Poles Limitedd2018%F8 A 18H#E » AE TR M+IBE R EZE
TEMET-

TERE

BPLESERNBEFEANRITT ZANEHE E2RFPIELEELHLHE
EHREM+ D HEORRIRE  WHENERSHEBETLR  FM+EY
SRR IRA & AL IS RIE (EREE -

BPLEERIMAEMERRAZE AR - #UERKE2023F3A31HILFED
EERERMERE - WHEMBPLAIE —BK B Z2EIRE - LAY
EERIT2023FAFHEANENSHEBEE -

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BEA XL BEIER
ANNUAL REPORT 2023/ 24 BAFE k%

073



Governance Report
HiawmE

Membership of the Board of Blue Poles Limited (2023/24)
Blue Poles Limited EE /5 5 & % 8(2023/24)

Chairman /&

Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
Chief Executive Officer, WKCDA
ISIZMELZ T, GBS

A LR EEBITRAEE

Members X &

WKCDA Board Members ANLEEEREERKE
The Honourable Bernard Charnwut CHAN, GBM, GBS, JP
BRE BAEE, KEFIBIE, GBS, P

Mr Henry FAN Hung-ling, SBS, JP
SEMRHR AL, SBS, JP

Non-WKCDA Board Member JEFANXIL R EEREERKE
The Honourable Ronald ARCULLI, GBM, GBS, JP
BEERELE, KEFIBE, GBS, P
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The members of the Board are pleased to present the Annual Report, together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

West Kowloon Cultural District Authority

Pursuant to the WKCDA Ordinance (Cap. 601) (the WKCDA Ordinance), which took effect
on 11 July 2008, WKCDA was established to develop West Kowloon into an integrated arts
and cultural district.

Board members

The members of the Board since 1 April 2023 and up to 31 March 2024 are set out on pages
30 to 31.

Principal activities

The functions and objectives of WKCDA are set out in Sections 4(1) and 4(2) of the WKCDA
Ordinance. In brief, the principal activities of WKCDA are planning, developing, operating
and maintaining the arts and cultural facilities, related facilities, and ancillary facilities of the
District. Details of the principal activities of the WKCDA's subsidiaries are set out in note 11
in the financial statements.

Financial statements

The results of WKCDA and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2024
and the financial position of WKCDA as at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 82 to 144.

Transfer to reserves

The Group's deficit for the year of HK$1,336 million (2022/23: deficit of HK$1,373 million)
was transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the statement of
changes in equity.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Movements in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during the year are set
out in notes 12 and 13, respectively, to the financial statements.

Capital

Details of WKCDA's capital are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. Upon
establishment of the M+ Collections Trust (the Trust) during the year ended 31 March 2017,
WKCDA made a contribution of HK$1,214 million from its endowment fund to M Plus
Collections Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of WKCDA) as the Trustee on behalf of the
Trust.
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Report of The Board
3 A e E

Operation Review

The operation review of WKCDA for the year ended 31 March 2024 is set out on Annual
Report: Business Review pages 16 to 121.

Financial summary

A summary of the financial results and of the net assets of the Group for the last five years is
set out on page 145 to 146.

Indemnity Provisions

Section 40 of the WKCDA Ordinance provides that:

‘No personal liability is incurred by a Board member or a committee member in respect of
anything done, or omitted to be done, by him in good faith in relation to the performance
or purported performance of any function under this Ordinance (including a function
purportedly delegated or sub-delegated under this Ordinance).’

Directors liability insurance is in place to protect the Board and committee members of
WKCDA against potential costs or liabilities arising from claims brought against them.

Board members’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which WKCDA, or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a member of the Board had a material interest, existed at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of WKCDA were entered into or existed during the year.

Auditor

The financial statements were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, which was appointed by
the Board in September 2020, in accordance with Section 29 of the WKCDA Ordinance.

On behalf of the Board

EREEER

Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP

BRFXE - KREFHE, GBS, JP

Chairman of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
AAXtRERREZRER

Hong Kong, 4 September 2024
B, 20249848
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (the “Authority”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), which are set out on pages 82 to 144, comprise:

e the consolidated Statement of Financial Position of the Group and the Statement of
Financial Position of the Authority as at 31 March 2024;

e the consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure and Other Comprehensive Income
of the Group and the Statement of Income and Expenditure and Other Comprehensive
Income of the Authority for the year then ended;

e the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity of the Group and the Statement of
Changes in Equity of the Authority for the year then ended;

e the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of the Group and the Statement of Cash
Flows of the Authority for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Authority as at 31 March 2024, and of the Group's and the Authority’s
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Authority is responsible for the other information (“Other Information”). The Other
Information obtained at the date of this auditor’s report is the information included in the
financial statements of M+ Collections Trust and our auditor’s report thereon, but does not
include these financial statements of the Group and the Authority and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Other Information (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Authority and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

The Authority is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Authority is responsible for assessing the Group's
and the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Authority either intends to liquidate the Group and the Authority or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 29 of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and Authority’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Authority.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Group’s and the Authority’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s and the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group or the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)
(established in Hong Kong pursuant to

the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority Ordinance)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
BERKESTTMERA
Certified Public Accountants

RS RTED

Hong Kong, 20 June 2024
& 20246 A208

Independent Auditor’s Report
B o7 % B i e A
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Financial Statements

B4 85 e R

Statement of Income and Expenditure and Other Comprehensive Income

W 32 Be b 4 v WY g

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024
WE20244:3 731 H L4

The Group The Authority
£8 EEE
2024 2024
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T pited BT T
Income I&A
Revenue W zs 4 922,308 | 673,807 | 475,933 | 344,947
Bank interest income RITH B HA 297,310 193,154 : 297,161 192,866
1,219,618 866,961 773,094 537,813
Expenditure B ]
Staff costs BTRA 5 (448,290) | (442,845) : (288,092) | (298,689)
Programmes and research £ B M E A (342,843) | (306,198) | (61,302) | (68,091)
Other operating expenses HEibiEE A 9 (847,205) : (715,301) : (1,038,983) (847,698)
Reversal of impairment losses SR AERNE/BESRD 16 - - 113,151 | 30,265
. (1638338) (1464344 ___ (1275226) (1,184,213
Deficit before depreciation, amortisation, KRETHITE - # - BERAERABH
finance costs and income tax AIIRFE (418,720) | (597,383) ; (502,132) (646,400)
Depreciation and amortisation FERBY 12813 (846,082) (742,617) | (753.462) (671,433)
Finance costs BERA 6 (71,513) ; (32,977) (71,513) (32,977)
Income tax Frig®t 0 - - = -
Deficit and total comprehensive loss for FEAFR2EGEEE
the year (1,336,315) (1,372,977) : (1,327,107) | (1,350,810)
The notes on pages 89 to 144 are an integral part of these financial statements. FERIZMENM T RAMBRMERNEELD -

082 WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BA Xt BEER
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 EIF R4



The Group
&=

2024
HK$'000

Financial Statements

St B R %

Statement of Financial Position
5k B &

As at 31 March 2024

202443 H31H

The Authority
BEER

2024
HK$'000

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment and interest in

leasehold land
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Current assets

Inventories

Museum collection

Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank interest receivables

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Amount due to a subsidiary
Amount due to M+ Collections Trust
Trade and other payables

Deferred income

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
RHBARZRE

W - BE RS RTRE L
AR

R aE

FBEE

TR

8 R

& 5 R E AR
BB AR 2 S8

RN IRAT LB,

Ao RIRITHESR

REBEE

BB ARZ &5

&M+ Collections TrustZ £ %8
B 5 REHAD R

EEWA

RBEEFE

BERBERRBAR

12
12
13

14
15
16

16
18
19
21

BETT

BET T

- - ] 50 50

19,479,796 . 18,651,813 | 19,158,452 18,263,598
1,519,002 | 1,586,712 1,519,002 | 1,586,712
85,772 117,287 74,142 105,675
21,084,660 20355812 . 20,751,736 . 19,956,035
8,842 8,471 | 3 3

26,097 23,797 - -
576,138 : 1,014,225 | 527,750 : 989,108

- - 134,821 | 222,852

99,006 : 131,609 ! 99,006 : 131,609
6,210,177 : 7,482,806 : 6,196,999 : 7,466,437
6,920,260 8660908 . 6958579 8810,009

- ] - 311,898 250,228

351,418 | 362,829 351,418 362,829
2,853,749 | 3,027,326 | 2,404,317 2,717,755
229,164 249,929 155,396 158,082

_____ 3434331 3640084 3223029 34388
_____ 3485929 : 5020824 ¢ 3735550 : 5321115
24570589 25376636 . 24,487,286 . 25277,150

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY BBA XLt BEER
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S B Rk %

Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

S 5 iRk Ol % (#)

As at 31 March 2024
it 20244 3H 31 H

The Group The Authority
£8 EHEF
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE ]
Deferred income EIERA 21 4,793,382 | 4,247,517 4,682,934 : 4,135,767
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 22 1,000,000 : 1,000,000 : 1,000,000 1,000,000
Accrued contract gratuities JERT A BN & 14,018 29,615 | 9,793 19,717
5807400 5277132 5692721 5155484
Net assets BEFE 18,763,189 . 20,099,504 = 18,794,559 20,121,666
Equity i
Capital - Endowment from the Government of &% — BB R BI17BUR BT K
HKSAR 23(a) 21,600,000 | 21,600,000 | 21,600,000 21,600,000
Distribution reserve to M+ Collections Trust M+ Collections TrustZ 2k ## & 23(b) (1,214,000) ; (1,214,000) (1,214,000)
Accumulated deficits and other reserves R RFEREAMEE (1,622,811) ; (286,496) (264,334)
. 18,763,189 = 20,099,504 = 18,794,559 . 20,121,666

The financial statements on pages 82 to 144 were approved by the Board of the Authority ERE44EMMEREN2024F6 A0 EERREZRZE - I

on 20 June 2024 and were signed on its behalf by: HAUATATRERES :

The Honourable Henry TANG Ying-yen, GBM, GBS, JP Mrs Betty FUNG CHING Suk-yee, GBS
BRERE - KEHMEE > GBS, P BRERELZL > GBS

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

EEZRERFE THUAEE

The notes on pages 89 to 144 are an integral part of these financial statements. FERIZMENM T RAMBRKRNEELD -
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Balance at 1 April 2022

Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 31 March 2023

Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 31 March 2024

R20229F4 B 1 BHI&E

FEAFREEBRER

M202343 A31 BH& R

FREAFREEERAE

R2024F3 831 B EER

Financial Statements

St B Rk %

Statement of Changes in Equity
HE i 5% ) &

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024
BE202443 731 H L4

The Group
&8
Capital -
Endowment Distribution Retained
from the reserve to profits/
Government M+ (accumulated
of HKSAR Collections deficits) and
iéﬁ = Trust other reserves
E#4 8] M+ Collections RERF
THE Trust (RFHHRF) Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
21,600,000 . (1,214,000) ; 1,086,481 | 21,472,481
- - (372977 (1,372,977)
. 21,600,000 | (1,214,000) (286,496) 20,099,504
5 = (1,336315)  (1,336,315)
. 21,600,000  (1,214,0000  (1,622,811). 18,763,189

The notes on pages 89 to 144 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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S B R %

Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

E 4k 52 B) % (4])

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024
WE20244:3 731 H L4

Balance at 1 April 2022

Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at 31 March 2023
Deficit and total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 31 March 2024

MH2022F 41 HHE

FRAFREEEBRERE

M202343 A31 BH& R

FREAFREEERAE

R20245F3 831 B &R

The Authority

EEE
Capital -
Endowment Distribution Retained
from the reserve to profits/
Government M+ (accumulated
of HKSAR Collections deficits) and
igﬁ = Trust other reserves
EB45 M+ Collections RBEBF
THE Trust (RFHKF) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
21,600,000 . (1,214,000) ; 1,086,476 | 21,472,476
- - (1,350,810)  (1,350,810)
. 21,600,000 . (1,214,000) (264,334) 20,121,666
5 = (1,327,107 (1,327,107)
. 21,600,000 . (1,214,0000  (1,591,441). 18,794,559

The notes on pages 89 to 144 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Operating activities
Deficit for the year
Adjustments for:
Reversal of impairment losses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Bank interest income
Interest expense on bank borrowings
Changes in working capital:
Increase in museum collection
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in net amounts due from
subsidiaries

Decrease in amount due to M+ Collections Trust

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Increase in deferred income

(Decrease)/increase in other non-current liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases/construction of property, plant and

equipment, investment properties and intangible

assets

Donations received from The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust

Net receipt/(placement of) time deposits with
original maturities over three months

Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities

EEED

FREFRF

HEIFEA -
EREEREBRED
e R

B 5 REMERTURERE

HEME  BERRBZER

RITFBIA

RITERF BT
EEESEH -

YR ML 0

=FEGEMm, md

B 5 REMERRD (3G 0)

WM B AR 2 & EFERLD

(35m)

JEfM+ Collections TrustZ < 85 4

B 5 REMBERMTKCRLD),/#m

U ASE N

Hipdemsa s Ond ), 8Eh

EEEZHAMANREFHE

REED
BE2ENE  BERRE REY
EMBIARE

(a)
BREAESGEERETES BN
(a
REEARBMA=EA 2T BFREHF
2B (I BE R0
2 HF B
RETHEE (FA) NRLERE

Financial Statements

St B Rk %

Statement of Cash Flows

Bl 4 ok

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024
BE 202443 H31 H L4

The Group The Authority
58 EEF

2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BETT BT T BT
(1,336,315) (1,372,977) (1,327,107) (1,350,810)
- - (113,151) (30,265)

846,082 742,617 753,462 671,433

- 10,718 - 10,718

1,326 86 - 86
(297,310) (193,154) (297,161) (192,866)
71,513 32,977 71,513 32,977
(2,300) (11,042) - -

(371) (2,020) - 1
438,087 (515,478) 461,358 (494,354)
- - 262,852 (51,223)
(11,411) (1,267) (11,411) (1,267)

(355,374) 352,163 (376,904) 337,251
409,417 405,284 448,337 266,212
(15,597) 2,781 (9,924) (549)
______ (252,253); (549312 __ (138,136): _ __ (802,656)
(1,394,458) (1,434,519) (1,485,697) (1,165,925)
115,682 368,470 96,144 349,055
4,640,254 (7,368,497) 4,640,254 (7,368,497)
329,913 66,038 329,764 65,750
3,691,391 (8,368,508) 3,580,465 (8,119,617)
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S B R %

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

B 4 U R (#)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2024
WE20244:3 731 H L4

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Finance costs paid on bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

BMEED
RITREEPSRIA
ENRITEREZBEKRAE 6

BMEEDH (A, EENRLTIE

RERBRESEEYWEN (BD) BHE

FOANRERREEEN

FRNBEERESEEY 17

The Group The Authority

58 EEF
2024 2023 2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT BET R BT
- 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
(71,513) (32,977) (71,513) (32,977)
_______ (71,513): 967023 ¢ _ _(1513) 967,023
3,367,625 (7,950,797) 3,370,816 (7,955,250)
114,309 8,065,106 97,940 8,053,190
3,481,934 114,309 3,468,756 97,940

Note:

(@) The cash reimbursement from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (“HKJCCT") of HK$116

million (2023: HK$368 million), in the form of cash donation, was received to finance the construction
costs of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, of which HK$37 million (2023: HK$202 million) was
included in the "Purchases/construction of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and

intangible assets”.

The notes on pages 89 to 144 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1 General Information

The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (the “Authority”) and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” in the financial statements. The Authority was
established as a body corporate in Hong Kong under the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority Ordinance (the “WKCDA Ordinance”), Cap. 601, which was enacted on 11
July 2008. The address of the principal office of the Authority is 9/F WKCDA Tower, West
Kowloon Cultural District, 8 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The functions and objectives of the Authority are stipulated in sections (4)(1) and (4)(2)
of the WKCDA Ordinance respectively. In brief, the principal activities of the Group are
the planning, development, operation and maintenance of the arts and cultural facilities,
related facilities or ancillary facilities of the West Kowloon Cultural District (“WKCD").

The WKCD Development Plan (“DP”) was approved by the Chief Executive-in-Council
on 8 January 2013. The approved DP provides a statutory land use planning framework
to guide the development and redevelopment of land within the WKCD. Subsequently,
the Authority applied for a 15% increase in the total gross floor areas of the WKCD
site under section 16 of the Town Planning Ordinance. The planning application was
approved by the Town Planning Board on 14 November 2014.

As announced in the January 2017 Policy Address, the Government decided to provide
the Authority with an enhanced financial arrangement by granting it the development
rights over all of the hotel/office/residential (“HOR") portion of the WKCD. On 28 May
2019, the Chief Executive-in-Council decided to grant the site to be known as “Kowloon
Inland Lot No. 11260"” (“Lot”) to the Authority at a nominal premium of HK$1,000, free
of administrative fee, for a lease term of 50 years subject to the approved basic terms
and conditions for the land grant of the Lot. The Government executed the land grant
on 2 April 2020. The land grant enables WKCDA to take forward the development of
the site into an integrated arts and cultural district together with the HOR development.

As at 31 March 2024, the following arts and cultural facilities were in operation: Arts
Pavilion (opened in 2016), Xiqu Centre and Freespace (opened in 2019), M+ Museum
and Conservation and Storage Facility (opened in 2021) and Hong Kong Palace Museum
(opened in 2022).

Financial Statements

S 5 e %

Notes to the Financial Statements

S 5 i % Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2024
WE2024F3H31 HILFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE20244E3 031 H L4 %

2 Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable individual
HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and requirements of the WKCDA Ordinance. The
material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to both years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of accounting estimates. It also requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if
the revisions affect only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the
revisions affect both current and future years.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A Xt EBEERR
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2 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

i

)

New standard, amendments, improvements to standards and interpretation adopted

Amendments to existing standards which are effective in the current financial
year and adopted by the Group

During the year, the Group has adopted the following amendments to existing standards
which may be relevant to the Group's operations and are effective for accounting periods
beginning on 1 April 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure of
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The amendments to standards listed above did not have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the current and prior periods.

Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
WE2024F3H31 HILFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE20244E3 031 H L4 %

2 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations which are not yet effective

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards which
may be relevant to the Group but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following new standards,
amendments and interpretation to existing standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2024:

Amendments to HKAS 17 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current
Amendments to HKAS 17 Presentation of Financial Statements — Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
Amendments to HKFRS 167 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
(2020)? Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Statement of Cash Flows — Supplier Finance Arrangements
HKFRS 77
Amendments to HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates — Lack of

Exchangeability
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture

(i)  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
(i) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
(i) New effective date to be determined

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these standards
and amendments, certain of which may be relevant to the Group’s and the Authority’s
operations and may give rise to changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements.
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2

Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

(c) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

In the Authority’s Statement of Financial Position, the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Authority on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d) Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Authority’s subsidiaries are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is the Authority’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are recognised in surplus or deficit.
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2

Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and interest in

@

094

leasehold land

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than assets under construction, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure during
the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values over its estimated
useful life as follows:

Buildings

— Building structure 50 years

— Facade 20 years

— External works — soft landscaping 10 to 15 years
— External works — hard landscaping 30 years

Leasehold improvements 5 to 15 years or the unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment

— Building services 20 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 15 years
— Exhibition furniture and fixtures 2 to 5 years

Computer equipment
— ICT infrastructure
— ICT equipment

8 to 20 years
2 to 8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction, such as materials, direct staff costs, construction
overheads, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the asset concerned is transferred to the appropriate property, plant and
equipment and investment properties categories when all the activities necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use are substantially completed.

WEST KOWLOON CULTURAL DISTRICT AUTHORITY A Xt EBEERR
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 / 24 BF k%

2

EEETEE (&)

(e) W% - MEKRME - REWFENBE + s

ERN I

BREZTREN W% - BELRRBERARZTERZFRE
BIEAR - KAREREBEREEXRAHENMAY - REKXARE
ERATEAEESREZIER RN RRLENE - MazRE M
RABERI SEAT B - A BREEEMNIREERERS —
E(ER) - MAREMEENMREEREEREENFERNRLANK

Xk e

FERBERZE +’§ &

EEF A EREHD

#E

—BE&E

— HMfE

—SMNERTAE — EYRE
—SNEBTRE — BERRR
HEMEEE

RERE

—EFHE

—RE - RBERIE
- BEREREE

B

— BB ERRE

— B B R R R

EEERSHHR  9R
EH AR (WER) -

ERTRERANRERNRFIREBBAR KABEIRAEEKX
AR BEEEIRA  TREEHX - AEFHESERE
BRERTeMRGERA (ER) -

BME - BEERENKALZIATH
EEMGFRISBEE

504

204F

102 154

304

5% 15 sk FIER AT & F 5
(AREERE)

204F
3E 156
2E54

8ZE20%F
2E8F

NEENFGEEMAERFY g

FHEBTIERAMLD TKE  BAEBRESELENM I

I BEENME - BE KR

REBMREMELER -

REBE

BEERABREREN



2 Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and interest in

@

(ii)

(iii

=

leasehold land (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress until the construction is
completed and the assets are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and is recognised in the Statement of Income and Expenditure on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Investment properties

Investment property includes leasehold land and its related improvements and/or
buildings held to earn rental income. This includes land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related transaction costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the
investment properties over their estimated useful lives.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs
are expensed in the Statement of Income and Expenditure during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, and its carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes.

Interest in leasehold land

On 2 April 2020, the Government executed the land grant for the site known as
“Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11260" to the Authority at a nominal land premium of
HK$1,000 for a lease term of 50 years. The interest in leasehold land is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the lease term.
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2 Material Accounting Pol